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INTRODUCTION TO THE TRUST
A BRIEF HISTORY
There has been a Royal Hospital for around one hundred and fifty years, serving
the population of Chesterfield and the surrounding towns and villages in North
Derbyshire.
The hospital quickly built a reputation for high-quality services and excellent
patient care, meeting local needs within available resources. This continues
today. The hospital is modern and progressive and strives to make continual
improvement for the benefit of its community.
On 29 April 1984 the current hospital was opened in Calow, two miles outside
Chesterfield’s town centre. Nine years later, on 1 April 1993, the Royal became
one of the country’s first NHS trusts, remaining in the NHS and still under direct
control of the Department of Health. NHS trusts had more control over their own
affairs, but central financial constraints remained.
Developments over the last 25 years since the hospital was opened, have
allowed the Royal to continually improve services and facilities for patients and
staff. In the largest area of the hospital all the main surgical and medical
specialties are provided, as well as clinical and non-clinical support services.
These include:











Intensive care, high dependency and coronary care units;
Emergency Services (including A & E);
A theatre suite including specialist theatres for orthopedics and two post
anaesthetic care units;
Pathology laboratories, physiotherapy and occupational therapy;
Diagnostic radiology, CT scanning and MRI scanning;
A cardiac catheter suite;
Osteoporosis centre;
Ten out-patient suites including a rapid access chest pain clinic;
Scarsdale Wing, housing: antenatal clinic, chemotherapy unit, dialysis unit
and day care unit dedicated to cataract operating theatre; and
Nightingale Wing, housing: the children’s services at the hospital. Its
development allowed the hospital to integrate outpatient and in-patient wards.

In 2003, by achieving a three-star rating in the national ‘league tables’, the Royal
was able to apply for NHS foundation trust status. Monitor (the independent
regulator of NHS foundation trusts) approved the application in December 2004
and Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust began life on 1 January
2005 as a ‘public benefit corporation’.
As a foundation trust, the Royal remains firmly within the NHS. It is accountable
to the local people it serves through their membership of the Trust and election to
the council of governors. They are working with the Trust to shape the Royal’s
future and build a hospital they can be proud of.
Foundation trust status is allowing the organisation greater freedoms and more
control over the services we provide and develop. It also means for the first time
that we have been using financial gains to our benefit, reinvesting them in-patient
services and developments.
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STRATEGIC STATEMENT
Our Mission
We want:


To be your hospital of choice

Our Aims
We will:









Put you – the patient – at the centre of everything we do
Offer our patients the specialist hospital care they need
Deliver complementary and integrated services by working with other health
and social care organisations
Create high-quality care from our resources
Keep and build on our relationships as ‘partners in care’
Provide good career and educational opportunities for our staff
Create a safe, clean, pleasant, modern and welcoming environment
Find, recruit and keep exceptional staff

Our Values
We believe in:






Integrity, openness, accountability and honesty
Respect, fairness, dignity and individual need
Offering our staff opportunity to reach their goals and aspirations
Promoting initiative; and providing support and encouragement
Striving for excellence, sharing learning and adopting best practice

Our Expectations
We expect:




Everyone working for, and involved with our organisation, to stand by these
principles at all times
You (our patients and visitors) to tell us when you think your experiences of
our hospital are ‘excellent’ or not ‘up to scratch’
Everyone – staff, patients and visitors – to help us to reduce infection by
washing their hands.
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STATEMENT OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
In its fourth financial year as an NHS foundation trust, Chesterfield Royal Hospital
has continued to flourish. This is chiefly because of our dedicated staff, financial
stability, a comprehensive investment programme, and a joint assurance by our
board of directors and council of governors to provide high-quality services to the
area we serve.
Thanks to the hard work of our staff we achieved excellence in the Healthcare
Commission’s annual health check awards (published Thursday 16 October
2008) -for the second year in a row. Nationally, this now makes the Royal the
tenth best performing Trust over the three-year period 2005/06 to 2007/08. Top
marks in more than sixty standards also meant the Trust was the only acute
hospital in the East Midlands to gain ‘excellent’ ratings for both ‘quality of service’
and ‘use of resources’.
To mark this outstanding result the board of directors backed a second staff
reward payment. All eligible staff received a £200 (proportionate for part-time
staff) payment in December 2008. This was only possible because of the Trust’s
stable financial position and the number of patients treated above contract (that is
non-recurrent monies were available to fund the award).
Further non-recurrent funds are not likely to be available, as the financial situation
is forecast to become less flexible. Therefore, this is likely to be the last time the
board can consider making a reward available. However, whilst we were able to
pass on a financial bonus, the board felt it was the right action to take and this
payment went to staff with our thanks.
Cleanliness and low rates of hospital-acquired infection remain key concerns for
patients choosing where to go for treatment. We have pledged to provide a safe,
clean and welcoming environment. And over the past year, we continued to
invest in our multi-million pound infection prevention programme ‘Save Lives –
Clean Your Hands’.
A new steam cleaning regime, alongside a raft of infection control measures saw
the Trust record new low levels of hospital-acquired infections. With hand
washing sinks installed at all ward entrances and an education programme in
place to gain support from patients and visitors, infection prevention has been
enormously successful. The scheme was given a boost In September 2008,
when the Secretary of State for Health visited the Royal to our campaign in action
- and recommended the approach as a model of good practice.
As a result, from 1 April 2008 to the end of March 2009 (by which time 65,000 inpatients had received treatment in the Royal) we had recorded just eight cases of
MRSA. In the same 12-months, 147 cases of Clostridium difficile occurred – a
reduction of 34 cases when compared to 2007/08 (181 cases reported). It means
that the risk of contracting the infection as an in-patient is now reduced to 0.2%.
We have also started routine MRSA screening for all patients coming in to
hospital for surgical procedures. The programme, part of a national initiative,
discovers the number of patients who harmlessly carry the MRSA bacteria on
their skin or in their nasal cavities – so they can be treated before their procedure.
The development will further lessen infection risk.
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Fast access to services is also paramount if patients are to continue to make the
Royal their ‘hospital of choice’. The 18-week wait (achieved by the Trust in
December 2007, a year ahead of the Department of Health’s deadline) has
remained challenging, not least because patients continue to find very short waits
a ‘culture shock’.
Despite an unplanned increase in referrals from primary care we have beaten the
two national benchmarks (90% of admitted patients and 95% of non-admitted
patients treated within 18 weeks). For admitted patients our rate is 96.4% of
patients treated within the 18-week time-frame. For non-admitted patients this
reaches 96.6%.
We aim to improve on this during the forthcoming year, treating an increasing
number of patients within an even shorter ten-week time-frame.
The Trust is committed to protecting its services, reputation and finances and,
throughout the year, work has continued to enhance and embed risk
management processes into the culture of the organisation.
Within the year the Trust’s risk management strategy has been revised to reflect
an integrated system of risk reporting allowing for more timely and accessible
information. A high level focus on risk governance has been maintained by the
Trust’s risk committee.
2008/09 was the final year of our three-year savings programme designed to
lessen the running costs of the hospital over the period by 10%. Our final
workforce review - covering administrative and clerical staff - was completed this
year. While the reviews have been a testing time for our staff, they have
remained professional, loyal and committed to delivering excellent services
throughout. Our organisation now has the financial stability necessary to further
improve on clinical quality in the years to come.
Financially, the Trust has had a strong year - achieving a net surplus of £7.8m
(against a planned surplus of £7.4m) and was in financial surplus throughout
2008/09. It has had a recurrently balanced income and expenditure account
throughout the year placing it in a robust financial position going into 2009/10.
By 2012 the Trust will have spent some £80m on refurbishment and improvement
of the hospital since becoming an FT. This will largely have been funded through
internal resources. It is vitally important therefore for the Trust to make and retain
a surplus to support this especially in challenging economic times.
Thanks to our stability, we continue to take advantage of our biggest financial
freedom – the ability to invest surpluses to improve and develop services and
facilities for patients. One part of this investment programme, a £5m scheme to
provide specialist children’s services on-site reached fruition in November 2008.
It was the result of many years of planning and had formed a major part of the
Trust’s early bid for foundation status, with funding provided for in previous
financial years. The scheme is welcomed for the difference it has made to young
people’s lives. It transferred a range of services that cater for children with ongoing disabilities, including mental health.
HRH The Princess Royal officially opened ‘The Den’ (as named by local children)
in March 2009 and publicly commented on the superb facility and the child and

4

adolescent accommodation, which comes with a mechanical garden and themed
examination rooms.
Approximately 1500 of our members also had the
opportunity to view The Den before it opened – at a special membership and
family day in October 2008.
Following on from this success, capital spending for the year remained a priority,
with around £11m invested in schemes and purchases. The main areas of
development included: a new CT scanner and scanning suite, a children’s play
area outside the children’s ward, upgraded toilet facilities on wards, new histology
laboratory, the continuation of an all ward upgrade programme, directorate
medical equipment and an expansion of car parking on-site – with an extra 527
spaces planned.
We also saw our £2m main entrance re-development completed in November
2008. The modern design is welcomed for its ‘non-NHS’ approach, which is
relaxing, less stressful and more efficient. It boasts a centralised outpatient
reception desk, more seating and a ‘chill out’ zone under a glass roof.
It has improved catering facilities for patients visitors and staff, provides for a
prominent and modern security office, a dedicated area for patients awaiting
ambulance transport, extra toilet and hand wash facilities and computerised
check-ins. It also supports another commercial outlet, an advice centre, and a
booked admissions service - for patients to visit to agree and book a date for their
surgery.
We don’t intend to stop here. We will continue to improve and develop our estate.
During 2009/10 we will undertake a £2m refurbishment of our central delivery
suite to provide home from home comfort, with en-suite bathrooms, extra birthing
pools and improved facilities for partners. We have also announced our biggest
foundation trust capital scheme so far – a minimum £14.5m project to provide
three extra wards on-site, to future-proof the hospital for an estimated five-year
period in terms of emergency admissions and projected patient numbers.
Alongside its core business of patient care, we are mindful that we are North
Derbyshire’s largest employer and have an influential role within the community.
We are keen to support local business, fuel local economy, and during 2008/09
we continued to develop this stance.
In refurbishing our main entrance, the new Café@theRoyal, is an in-house facility
that is supporting local suppliers. Bread, dairy products, vegetables, fruit and
meat – as well as consumables - are all sourced and bought from companies
within a 50-mile radius of the hospital. As well as backing local economies, this is
also good for the environment, reducing carbon miles.
We are keen to meet the challenge of ensuring our members are involved,
informed and on-board. Membership is an integral part of our day-to-day
business and is an important part of our success.
Last year, we said we would aim to grow our membership by an estimated 2,500
– specifically in areas of our catchment that were under-represented. Through a
targeted recruitment campaign, membership increased from 12,000 in February
2009, to almost 15,550 by 31 March 2009.
Once again this shows that local people have a real interest in signing up for
membership voluntarily – pointing to a willingness to join in the Trust’s future.

5

Since we became an NHS foundation trust, we have actively sought opinion and
views from governors and members – to help shape services, develop projects
and to see plans come to fruition. Last year, they helped the Trust to secure
much-needed planning permission for extra on-site car parking. More than 2000
written views and comments were offered for the local authority planning
committee to consider.
Governors and members have also been actively involved in the planning
process of our proposed multi-million ward development. In January 2009, the
local authority planning committee met with representatives from the Trust’s
board and council to debate the scheme as part of a pre-application process.
More than 250 members attended the second part of the evening to give their
views on the proposals.
The full application went forward with a statement of community involvement
providing an outline of how the Trust has altered plans because of members’
suggestions. Planning permission was granted in April 2009 and the scheme will
get off the ground in the summer of 2009, for an autumn 2010 completion.
Last year it was also clear that foundation trust memberships offer health
communities excellent consultation opportunities.
The Trust’s council of
governors, while discussing Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust’s ‘vision’ for
health and healthcare document, felt the debate should be opened far wider.
Governors felt the issues (stemming from Lord Darzi’s review of the NHS) would
have far-reaching outcomes for local people – and they should have an
opportunity to ‘have their say’.
In an unprecedented move, we (the Trust) organised the consultation for the PCT
in October 2008. As well as its own 12,000 members, the memberships of
(aspirant FT) Derbyshire Mental Health Services NHS Trust and Derby Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust were also consulted. This amounted to over 20,000
people in the county.
With a response rate of almost 25%, the PCT now has a comprehensive range of
opinions and thoughts on which to base their final decisions. It is believed to be
one of the largest, most successful consultations undertaken with foundation trust
members.
Throughout this report there are examples of success, innovation, development
and engagement. Our pledge for 2009/10 is to continue to achieve high
standards in all these areas. Our focus, however, will be on clinical and nursing
quality, standards of care and outcomes – while maintaining or improving all other
targets and keeping financial stability. We would wish to assure our patients that
our aim, alongside the council of governors that represents them, is to provide
them with excellence in everything we do.

Richard Gregory
Chairman

Eric Morton
Chief Executive
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DIRECTORS REPORT
THE DIRECTORS OF THE TRUST
The directors appointed to membership of the board who were in post during the
year from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 were:
Mr Richard Gregory

Chairman

Mr Eric Morton

Chief Executive

Mr Michael Hall

Deputy Chairman, Senior Independent Director and NonExecutive Director

Mrs Janet Birkin

Non-Executive Director

Miss Deborah Fern

Non-Executive Director

Mrs Pam Liversidge

Non-Executive Director

Mr David Whitney

Non-Executive Director

Mr Terry Alty

Corporate Secretary

Mr Paul Briddock

Director of Finance and Contracting

Mr Ron Clarke

Director of Nursing (retired 31 December 2008)

Mr William (Bill)
Lambert

Medical Director (retired 7 April 2008)

Mr John McDonnell

Medical Director (from 1 April 2008)

The Trust considers each of the listed non-executive directors to be independent.
Further details about the board of directors and the directors of the Trust can be
found on page 50 of this report.
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THE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE YEAR
The principal purpose of the Trust is the provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England.
Services are delivered within a strong support infrastructure of high quality staff
who are appropriately trained and rewarded.
Services are delivered in a modern estate where the quality of the patient
environment is continually improved to ensure it is fit for purpose and meets all
legislative requirements, using the most appropriate and up to date technology.
The Trust’s activities are governed by the terms of Authorisation as agreed by
Monitor and by legislation. During the year the Trust has continued to develop the
services offered by the Trust.
The Trust provides high quality timely healthcare, delivered in a way that focuses
on positive experiences with the hospital, and ensures that patients, relatives and
their carers, attend, and indeed return to, the Royal Hospital as their provider of
choice.
The Trust maintains strong governance and management arrangements, which
are fit for purpose and react to the changing NHS environment.
The Developments and Performance of the Trust During the Year
2008/09 was a very successful year for Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust.
Service Developments
Clinical Quality
The service developments undertaken during the year adhere to our strategic
themes taking the Trust forward as ‘Your hospital of first choice’. Many of the
developments for the year have made a major contribution towards improving
clinical quality, and those of significance include:


Building upon the 2007/08 infection control business case, the board of
directors approved a further package of measures designed to reduce
healthcare acquired infections (including Clostridium difficile and MRSA) in
June 2008 and the Trust achieved its annual trajectory for both types of
infection;



Increased domestic services to cover 24 hour terminal cleaning and recurrent
funding for our deep cleaning team;



The Trust commenced routine MRSA screening for all surgical procedure
patients in line with a national initiative;



Maintenance of our low waiting times for first outpatient appointment,
diagnostic tests and elective surgery, achieving 96.4% of patients treated
within the 18 week referral to treatment timeframe;
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Measures to cope with increasing numbers of emergency medical patients
being referred from primary care including:







the opening of additional medical inpatient beds with consequent
relocation of medical day care beds and re-designation of other
inpatient beds to medicine,
the employment of an additional consultant to work on the
emergency management unit,
the employment of a single point of access co-ordinator to review
patient histories prior to accepting GP emergency referrals to
hospital for admission,
the appointment of a discharge co-ordinator;

The extension of our service to care for patients suffering from a stroke via:



the appointment of additional nursing staff and therapy staff,
together with additional posts to further strengthen our speech and
language therapy team,
approval for a second stroke physician with a view to delivering
thrombolysis at critical times of the working week for appropriately
selection patients;



Enhancements to our Hospital at Night service through additional F1 medical
staff and the appointment of a Night Matron;



Increased theatre time for trauma patients to ensure that all patients admitted
as an emergency with a fractured neck of femur received surgery within 48
hours of admission;



The appointment of an additional consultant to support the expansion of our
ENT service plus increased medical and nursing staff in ophthalmology and
dermatology;



Increased consultant radiologist and radiographer establishments to facilitate
additional MRIs, CT scans and extension of the breast screening programme;



Relocation of therapy services from Suite 1 outpatients into Suite 5, to
facilitate the transfer of adult audiology services onto the main hospital site;



Significant investment in our children’s’ services with additional posts
covering; school nursing, special care baby unit, epilepsy nursing, and
immunization programmes;



Enhancements to our CAMHS service via increasing; therapists, consultant
psychiatrist, specialist nurses, support workers and support for 16 to 18 year
olds;



Expansion of our primary care van delivery and collection service, to facilitate
mail and pathology drop off and collections, twice a day at every GP practice
in North Derbyshire, plus SureStart and other centres;
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Capital Expenditure
The Trust continues to take advantage of its ability to invest surpluses to improve
and develop service facilities for patients. During 2008/09 capital spending for
remained a priority, with around £11m invested in schemes and purchases. The
capital programme was been driven by the trust’s Site Development Strategy as
developed in conjunction with the council of governors and included:


Major refurbishment of the main entrance and concourse;



A children’s facility, ‘The Den’;



A children’s play area outside the children’s ward;



Upgraded toilet facilities on wards;



New histology laboratory;



Continued ward upgrade programme;



New directorate medical equipment;



An expansion of car parking on-site, with an extra 527 spaces planned;



New CT scanner installation;



A new medical records building;

In addition, during the latter part of the year, building work commenced on the
first phase of upgrades to our central delivery suite, and throughout the year the
hospitals’ other central areas, stairwells and toilets were subject to refurbishment.
The trust successfully applied for a grant towards the cost of replacing boilers
from the Department of Health during 2008/09.
Performance
For the second year in a row we achieved excellence in the Healthcare
Commission’s Annual Health Check making the Royal the tenth best performing
Trust over the three-year period since 2005 and the only acute hospital in the
East Midlands to gain ‘excellent’ ratings for both ‘quality of service’ and ‘use of
resources’.
All the standards included within Monitor’s Compliance Framework were met
throughout 2008/09, and the Trust’s achievement against the Healthcare
Commission’s existing and new national targets for the same period was good
with all standards directly attributable to the Trust being achieved.
Additionally, assessment of the Healthcare Commission’s core standards for
better health indicated full compliance in all areas for 2008/09.
The Trust retained Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts maternity standards
level 3 throughout 2008/09 and NHSLA risk management standards level 1.
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Despite an unplanned increase in referrals from primary care we have beaten the
two national benchmarks (90% of admitted patients and 95% of non-admitted
patients treated within 18 weeks). For admitted patients our rate is 96.4% of
patients treated within the 18-week time-frame. For non-admitted patients this
reaches 96.6%.
Activity achievement during 2008/09 compared to current plan is detailed below.
It is of note that despite increased referrals, the outpatient activity during 2008/09
was below the original plan agreed with the commissioners. This arose primarily
because of a reduction in follow up attendances in 3 areas: ENT, ophthalmology
and anticoagulant clinic. The reduced anticoagulant activity was a result of a
planned change in service in year, whereby Derbyshire County PCT transferred
responsibility for this service from the trust to GPs. The reduction in ENT and
ophthalmology follow up activity was managed by the trust to bring the new to
follow up ratios in the specialties more in line with practice elsewhere.
Clinical activity
Cases
Elective

Plan
2008/09
31,491

Actual
2008/09
31,552

Non elective

32,137

33,548

Outpatients

258,519

255,612

A&E

58,730

59,475

Finance
2008/09 was the third and final year of the Trust’s 3-year savings programme
designed to reduce the running costs of the hospital over the period by 10% and
our final workforce review covering administrative and clerical staff was
completed in the autumn of 2008.
The Trust achieved a net surplus of £7.8m (against a planned surplus of £7.4m)
as at 31 March 2009 and was in financial surplus throughout 2008/09.
It has had a recurrently balanced income and expenditure account throughout the
year placing it in a robust financial position going into 2009/10.
The Trust now has the financial stability necessary to continue our investment of
surpluses and to further improve on clinical quality in the years to come.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Fair View of the Trust’s Business
Financial Performance
Income from Activities
The total income from patient-care activities for the year 2008-09 was £146.4m
(2008: £136.7m). This represents 90.2% (2008: 90.3%) of total income for the
year. This is shown graphically below:

Income Generated from Non-Healthcare

Included below are details of £15.9m (2008: £14.6m) of non-healthcare income
received, which has been generated from the provision of non-healthcare
services. This represents 9.8% of total income in year (2008: 9.7%).
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Monitor also monitors the Trust’s financial performance on a quarterly basis using
specific financial risk ratings. The Trust’s performance against Monitor’s 2008/09
financial risk ratings is shown below:
The Trust achieved a financial risk rating of 5 in all quarters during 2008/09 on
Monitors’ scale of 1 to 5 (a score of 1 being ‘high-risk’ and 5 ‘low-risk’). The Trust
is forecast to maintain a ‘low-risk’ score of at least 4 for 2009-10.

Metric
EBITDA margin
EBITDA
%
achieved
Return on assets
I&E surplus margin
Liquid ratio (days)
Weighted average
rating

Weighting
25%
10%
20%
20%
25%
100%

2008/09 (plan)
% Ratio
Rating
10.3%
4
113.7%
5

2008/09 (actual)
% Ratio
Rating
10.3%
4
101.1%
5

11.0%
5.7%
53.4

10.6%
5.4%
62.1

5
5
5
4.8

5
5
5
4.8

Planned Investment Activity
The Trust’s investment (in terms of capital expenditure) for 2008-09 is shown
below. A total of £11.2m (2008: £10.5m) of expenditure was spent during the
year.
The major items were: The Den, a new children’s facility on the Calow site, a
centralised reception and outpatient’s facility including a refurbished café and
coffee bar in the front entrance, the continued modernisation and improvement of
the existing wards, a new patients’ records library, and new medical equipment in
support of existing and new services. Some initial expenditure was also spent on
a major projects to be completed in future years- the construction of 3 new wards
In addition, £615,000 (2008: £157,000) of charitable capital assets were donated
to the Trust during the year from its charitable funds including a new CT scanner.
Capital investment – major schemes for the 2008/09 financial
year
Specialist children’s facility ‘The Den’
Ward upgrades
Maternity upgrades
Centralised outpatient reception including a refurbished café
and coffee bar
Outpatient areas
Medical records library
New wards
Car parking & roadways
CT scanner
Child play area
Other
Minor building schemes
Equipment & IT
NHS capital expenditure
Donated assets
Total capital expenditure
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Total 2008/09
£000
3,236
888
135
2,695
481
525
331
262
126
108
270
555
1,577
11,189
615
11,804

Buildings used in the provision of healthcare are classed as ‘protected’ assets,
whereas other buildings and all equipment are ‘unprotected’. The table below
shows the expenditure for each of these categories:
Capital investment analysis for the 2008/09 financial year
Protected asset investment
Unprotected asset investment (i.e. equipment including IT)
Donated capital investment
Total capital expenditure

Total 2008/09
£000
8,693
2,496
615
11,804

Position of the Trust at the End of the Financial Year
The Trust achieved a net financial surplus of £7.8m (2008: £7.9m).
An Earnings before Interest Taxation Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) of
£16.8m (2008: £13.4m) was achieved. The net surplus of £7.8m was £0.4m in
excess of the plan. This will be carried forward to fund future capital investment.
Cash increased by £5.6m from £15.6m to £21.2m. A working capital facility of
£11m was also in place, giving cash headroom in excess of £32m and the Trust a
healthy financial position.
In 2008/09 the Trust had no requirement to borrow against the prudential
borrowing limit of £45.4m set in its terms of authorisation, which consisted of
£34.4m new borrowing and the working capital facility of £11m.
Financial Disclosures
Going Concern
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS
foundation trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adapt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts.
Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are consistent with the prior year.
Payment Practice Code
The national ‘better payment practice code’ requires the Trust to aim to pay all
valid invoices within 30 days of receipt (or the due date - whichever is the later).
Performance this financial year shows that 96.3% (2008 97.5%) of invoices paid
complied with this measure. More detail can be found at note 7 to the accounts.
Number
66,360
63,902
96.3%

Invoices paid April 2008 to March 2009
Invoices paid within 30-day target
Percentage paid within 30-day target
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Value (£000)
65,850
63,324
96.0%

Value for Money
The Trust has a record of implementing cost improvement programmes (CIP)
designed to improve efficiency. In 2008-09 the Trust was required to deliver a
recurrent 3.0% efficiency (2007-08 2.5%). This has been achieved through the
implementation of a centralised workstream approach to deliver a 10% saving
over 3 years from 2006/07 to 2008/09. The amount achieved in line with plan was
£4.1m (2007-08 £3.2m).
The economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources are monitored
regularly and detailed reports are supplied to the Board of Directors and Hospital
Management Committee, and made available to the Council of Governors and
Joint Consultative Committee. Internal systems and procedures are in place to
ensure that value for money remains a primary aim of the Trust. More details can
in the account accounts and financial statements section of this report.
Investments
The Trust made no investments through joint ventures or subsidiary companies
and no other financial investments were made. No financial assistance was
given or received by the NHS foundation trust.
Land Interests
There were no significant differences between the carrying amount and market
value of the Trust’s holding of land. The value of land for existing use purposes
is assessed at existing use value. For non-operational properties including
surplus land, the valuations are carried out at open market value. The carrying
value of Edmund Street land has been impaired as it is surplus and no longer in
use.
Private Patient Income
Under the Trust’s terms of authorisation, the proportion of private patient income
to the total patient related income should not exceed its 2002-03 proportion. The
allowable percentage for the Trust was 0.2%. The private patient income from 1
April 2008 to 31 March 2009 was £110,000 (2008: £108,000) – compared to total
patient related income of £146.4m (2008: £136.7m). This represents a proportion
of 0.08% (2008: 0.08%). The Trust is therefore compliant with this obligation.
Charitable Funds
All charitable fund expenditure is classed as granted to the hospital from its
charities. Items over £5,000 are capitalised and included in the Trust’s closing
fixed assets on its Balance Sheet. The Charitable Fund Annual Report and
Accounts 2008/09 are published separately and are available from the Trust on
request.
Political and Charitable Donations
There have been no political or charitable donations made during the financial
year.
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Compliance with Cost Allocation and Charging Requirements
The Trust has complied with the cost allocation and charging requirements set
out in HM Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information guidance.
Accounting Policies for Pensions and Other Retirement Benefits
The accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits are set out in
note 1.18 to the accounts and the arrangements for senior employees’
remuneration can be found in the remuneration report on page 95 of this report.
Significant Events Since Balance Sheet Date
There are no significant events since the balance sheet date that are likely to
have a material impact on both the Trust and financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2009.
Significant Activities in the Field of Research and Development
The Trust has not had any significant activities in the field of research and
development during 2007/08.
The Main Trends and Factors Underlying the Development, Performance and
Position of the Business Entity During the Financial Year and an Indication of
Likely Future Developments
2008/09
2008/09 was the third and final year of the Trust’s 3-year savings programme
designed to reduce the running costs of the hospital over the period by 10%.
Building upon the 2007/08 infection control business case, the board of directors
approved a further package of measures designed to reduce healthcare acquired
infections (including Clostridium difficile and MRSA) in June 2008.
Our final workforce review covering administrative and clerical staff was
implemented in the autumn of 2008, following the opening of our new children’s
facility and newly upgraded hospital front entrance.
2008/09 and Ongoing
The main themes which emerged from the Trust’s service development strategy
and subsequent annual plans remain relevant for 2009/10 and the medium term
and are as follows:


Provision of high quality and timely healthcare, delivered in a way which
focuses on positive experiences with the hospital, and ensures that patients,
relatives and their carers, attend, and indeed return, to the Royal Hospital as
their provider of choice.



Services delivered in a modern estate, where the quality of the patient
environment is continually improved to ensure it is fit for purpose, meets all
legislative requirements, and are delivered using the most appropriate and up
to date technology.

16



Provision of services from within a strong support infrastructure, delivered by
high quality staff who are appropriately trained, feel valued and rewarded, and
want to continue working within the Foundation Trust and identify with its
success.



Maintenance of strong governance and management arrangements which are
fit for purpose and react to the changing NHS environment.



Underpinned by a strong financial framework, which ensures that the
Foundation Trust is financially viable in both the short and medium term.

The Trust is planning a significant capital expenditure programme of £20.0m,
£13.0m and £11.8m in 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 respectively.
The Trust has applied for a £14.5m loan from the Foundation Trust Financing
Facility (FTFF) to fund a development to build 3 new wards via our ‘improving
quality through capacity’ scheme.
The remainder of the capital expenditure programme is to be funded through
internally generated resources, namely non-cashflow expenditure (depreciation),
I&E surpluses over the 3-year period, and cash receipts from the sale of
peripheral sites.
Likely Future Developments - Lord Darzi’s ‘Our NHS, Our future’ review
The full implications of Lord Darzi’s ‘Our NHS, Our future’ upon the trust are
beginning to emerge with a number of specific work streams having been
established within the East Midlands SHA and Yorkshire and the Humber SHA.
The relevant work streams are:




stroke services
trauma
angioplasty

The Trust is currently participating in the development work that is taking place in
both SHAs with a view to understanding which of the two alternative linkages will
be the most beneficial for the population that we serve.
The Trust very strongly supports the view that clinical services should be
delivered as close to the patient as reasonably possible, consistent with evidence
based best practice and taking into account the optimum efficiency, effectiveness
and good value for money.
The Trust also believes very strongly that any proposed changes must take into
account the views of the local population along with the most recent clinical
evidence in a balanced way.
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Related Party Transactions
Under Financial Reporting 8 ‘Related Party Transactions’, the Trust is required to
disclose, in the annual accounts, any material transactions between the NHS
foundation trust and members of the board, members of the key management
staff or parties related to them.
Any such disclosures can be found in the annual accounts for the year ending 31
March 2009.
Contractual Arrangements
The organisations with which the Trust considers material transactions have
taken place during 2008/09 are:



Derbyshire County PCT and
East Midlands SHA

Details of the transactions can be found in the annual accounts for the year
ending 31 March 2009.
Risk and Assurance
Effective risk and performance management is continually monitored within the
Trust. A lead director has been identified for each area of risk and individual
responsibilities of the lead directors, managers and staff are identified in the
Trust’s risk management strategy. The Trust uses a number of methods to
assure itself of the risk and performance management of the Trust, including:


Regular review and update of the Trust risk registers by risk owners
(thereby ensuring a bottom up approach) and robust review of the Trust’s
corporate risk register (live risks scoring 12 or above) on a monthly basis
by the risk committee;



Monthly reports produced by the directors providing detail on the financial,
clinical and performance management of the trust including an up to date
analysis of the current key risks within the Trust, as well as including
forecasting and historical trends;



Monthly risk reporting to the board;



The work of internal and external audit during the financial year to support
the Trust in understanding its risk and performance management; and



Monitoring and review of performance against the Healthcare
Commission’s standards for better health and self-certification as to
compliance with each element.

The board also addresses the risks when the quarterly self-assessment
document is completed for Monitor. This arrangement ensures the board of
directors understands the strategic business risks to the trust in the context of the
trust’s strategic direction.
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Description of the Principal Risks Facing the Trust
The table below provides details of the principal risks and uncertainties currently facing the Trust in the specific context of the annual service and
financial plan. This presentation is therefore distinct from the Trust's corporate risk register, which contains a broader range of operational risks.
Type of Risk

Risk

Governance

Lord Darzi’s review.
Potential impact of service
reconfiguration following
next stage of review. ie
Trauma stroke care and
Primary angioplasty.

Residual risk 2009/10
Magnitude Likelihood
(5=worst)
(5=worst)
4
3

Mitigating Action

Trauma
The Trust has completed the service specification, which outlined the
requirements for each level and we fulfil the requirements to be a Level 2
trauma centre. The SHA is using a firm of consultants create a model on
what the future service configuration could look like. The Trust is
awaiting the outcome of this work and the designation of which Trusts
are to be at Level 1, 2 or 3.
Stroke Care
The Trust has completed the initial stages of competing within East
Midlands to provide a primary service. If successful, this would enable
the Trust to work well with both the North Trent and East Midlands
models. North Trent have not adopted the same process for establishing
if a local, primary or comprehensive service should be provided. The
Trust is working with all parties to ensure that the best patient care is
provided for North Derbyshire.
Primary Angioplasty
The Trust has been working closely on strategic changes with North
Trent and East Midlands. The roll-out of primary angioplasty for North
Derbyshire patients to be taken to Sheffield Teaching Hospitals is ready
but ambulance service issues will not be resolved for at least one year.
The Trust has also completed the initial stages of competing within East
Midlands to provide a gold standard acute coronary syndrome service for
patients repatriated following angioplasty.
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Governance

Non-achievement of MRSA
target. Failure to meet
contractual standard &
increase in risk to patients.
Increased risk of litigation &
loss of reputation.

4

2

Trust achieved target in 2008/09 but remains vigilant.
Continued focus on reducing risk of infection associated with
invasive devices. Daily monitoring and reporting with root
cause analysis of all new cases. Detailed updates reported
to each board meeting. Elective MRSA screening introduced
in March 2009. Plans being developed to introduce MRSA
screening for all non-elective patients by April 2010.
Currently all high risk patients are screened.

Authorisation

The risk of Trust not
complying with terms of
authorisation and not
undertaking satisfactory
self- certification.

5

1

Quarterly and annual board certification of compliance with
the terms of authorisation following consideration of current
performance on risks and assessment of likely future risks
(see section 4).

Finance

Delivery of cost
improvement targets. The
Trust is required to deliver
£16.2m in cost efficiency
savings over the next 3
years in order to deliver its
financial and service
strategy. (See 2.3.7).

4

2

Firm plans are in place for 2009/10 and close liaison
between finance and budget managers is planned to ensure
continued monitoring for these and identification of future
year plans.
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Finance

Fraud and Corruption. The
Trust is at risk of fraud and
corruption from staff,
contactors and users of the
Trust’s services. Failure to
have a dedicated local
counter fraud specialist
(LCFS) can jeopardise the
Trust’s compliance with
healthcare standards.

3

1

The Trust has a dedicated LCFS in post and a work plan is
produced, agreed and monitored each year by the Trust’s
audit committee. During 2008/09 the Trust’s audit committee
considered and approved an increase in the provision of
counter fraud days from 45 to 70 per annum to allow for
additional recurrent proactive-work. This measure has been
commended by representatives from the national Counter
Fraud and Security Management Service. The LCFS
undertakes fraud awareness presentations around the Trust
including the Corporate Induction Programme. The Trust’s
experience is that the number and value of suspected and
detected fraud is minimal in comparison to the Tust’s overall
budget.

Finance

Financial implications of
introducing the new
standard contract from
2010/11 onwards.

5

0

Dialogue with PCT during 2009/10 in preparation for
implementation.
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Information Risks and Data Losses in 2008/09
The Trust has a strong information governance focus, and has consistently
achieved a minimum of Level 2 performance against the requirements of the
Information Governance Statement of Compliance (IGSoC) in the Department of
Health’s Information Governance Toolkit.
Information governance risks are managed in accordance with the Trusts risks
management standards and, where appropriate, are recorded on directorate risk
registers.
The Trust reported one 'near miss' serious untoward incident involving data within
the Trust in October 2008. Investigation of the incident subsequently concluded
that there had been no loss of data or breach of confidentiality.
Insurance Cover
The Trust has insurance arrangements through the NHS Litigation Authority
(NHSLA) to cover the risk of legal action against its directors and officers and
additional liability insurance totalling £5m with Chubb uk.
Countering Fraud
In 1999, the government set up the NHS counter fraud service through the
Secretary of State directions. The service has the central co-ordinating and
directing role, revising policy and processes to prevent fraud arising, providing
information to target counter fraud action, continuously identifying the nature and
scale of the problem of fraud and corruption and setting and monitoring the
standards of counter fraud work.
The Trust as a foundation trust is not bound by the Secretary of State directions
but, under a clause in the contract held with the PCT, the Trust has agreed to
take all necessary steps to counter fraud affecting NHS funded services and will
maintain appropriate and adequate arrangements to detect and prevent fraud.
The Trust has a nominated local counter fraud specialist, employed through the
internal audit service, carrying out a range of activities to counter fraud on a local
level. Counter fraud specialists are trained and accredited to ensure that their
work is carried out professionally and in compliance with all relevant legislation.
During 2008/09 the Trust’s audit committee considered and approved an
increase in the provision of counter fraud days from 45 to 70 per annum to allow
for additional recurrent proactive-work. This measure has been commended by
representatives from the national Counter Fraud and Security Management
Service.
The work carried out by the counter fraud service is within seven generic areas:
Four of these areas relate to proactive prevention activities and include:
Creating an anti fraud culture
 Undertaking fraud awareness training
 Fraud training included in the Induction training
 General publicity using posters, leaflets and emails
 Annual staff survey undertaken by the service
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Fraud awareness month held during the year

Deterrence
 Liaison with the communication manager
 Formal communication strategy
 Production of three news letters a year
Prevention
 Introduction of preventative systems
 Liaison with internal audit
 Undertaking regular review of all policy documents
 Protocols maintained between HR and the counter fraud service
 Identifying fraud risk
Detection
 Counter fraud service undertake a national proactive exercise
 The Audit Commission undertake a national fraud initiative
The final three areas relate to investigation, sanction and redress.
A small number of concerns raised by staff have been investigated and resolved
by the local counter fraud office and the Trust has undertaken 2 formal
investigations that required entering onto the counter fraud service case
management system. These have not resulted in sanction and/or redress.
External Auditors
The Trust’s auditors for 2008/09 were:
KPMG
2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham
B3 2DL
The total cost of audit services for the year was £43,580 ex VAT. This was for the
statutory audit of accounts for the year April 2008 to March 2009 and services
carried out in relation to these. The external auditors also undertook the
Charitable Funds Audit and the restatement of the opening IFRS balance sheet
as at 1 April 2008 audit. The separate fees for that work were £5,750 ex VAT and
£6,000 ex VAT respectively.
The Trust did not purchase any further services from the external auditors that
are outside Monitor’s Audit Code. The Trust expects its external audit provider to
act independently. Under the terms of engagement they are required to have
control processes in place to ensure that this status is preserved and to notify the
audit committee of any matter that could compromise the independence or
objectivity of the audit team. The audit committee monitors this position and the
auditor is required under ISA 260 to confirm this position in the annual
governance report.
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Directors’ Statement
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the auditors are unaware, and the directors have taken all of the steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information.
Care Quality Commission
The annual health check has been replaced with ‘periodic reviews’ of
commissioners and providers by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
The Trust received confirmation that its application for registration with the CQC
had been granted unconditionally from 1 April 2009.
The CQC, which took over from the three health and social care regulators (the
Healthcare Commission, the Commission for Social Care Inspection and the
Mental Health Act Commission), has set out its proposals for assessing
organisations in a consultation paper which reveals that 2009/10 will be treated
as a ‘transition year’ before registration standards come into force in April 2010.
The implications for the Trust are:




Performance will be assessed against standards for better health mid-year
(Nov 09) with further assurance against the standards required for the
remainder of the year;
There will be a small change to indicators against which performance is
assessed;
Changes to the way in which financial management is assessed may be
introduced by Monitor.

The CQC will follow up with Trusts any significant areas of risk and publish the
results of the declaration and other relevant information, so that service users can
make informed choices and to help service providers and commissioners to make
decisions.
If providers of services do not meet the essential quality standards, or if the CQC
believes that people’s basic rights or safety are at risk, it will take action. Its
enforcement powers include fines and public warnings, the application of specific
conditions, or if absolutely necessary, removal from the register.
The Trust is satisfied that plans in place to meet the essential quality standards
are adequate to ensure ongoing compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s
registration requirements.
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OUR STAFF
Staff Employed
During 2008/09 the average number of staff (excluding bank staff) employed by
the Trust was 3304.
Staff Employed 2008/09

319

411

285

Support Services
Allied Health
Admin Services
Health Sciences

609
1469

Nursing and Midwifery
Medical and Dental

211

Sickness Absence
The sickness absence rate for 2008/09 was 4.94 per cent.
Equality and Diversity
Equality and diversity are important themes for the Trust, both in terms of
providing services which are responsive to the needs of patients and in terms of
recruiting and retaining staff from a wide range of backgrounds to ensure its
services can be delivered effectively.
The Trust aims to ensure a consistent approach to equality and diversity through:




Organisational policies, which promote and support equality and diversity,
e.g. equal opportunities, harassment at work, flexible working, support for
domestic and other responsibilities.
Training to raise awareness among staff of equality and diversity in both
employment and in the delivery of services to patients.
Training managers in the effective use of the organisational policies which
support equality and diversity.

As a public authority, the Trust also has a number of statutory duties relating to
the promotion of equality in respect of race, gender and disability. The Trust’s
single equality scheme for 2007 – 2010 and related action plan set out the steps
the Trust is taking to meet its statutory duties, including the equality assessment
of service and policy developments.
Equality impact assessment is a process of assessing the likely impact of a
service or policy development from a race, disability or gender equality
perspective, and where a substantial impact can reasonably be foreseen, to
consult those potentially affected by it and in particular to consider any ways in
which a negative impact can be mitigated.
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Alongside the single equality scheme and action plan, the Trust publishes related
documents, such as reports on the equality impact assessment of employment
policies and data on equality and diversity in employment.
The Trust’s single equality scheme, the supporting action plan and related
documents are published on a dedicated page on its website:
http://www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk//about/equality-and-diversity
The Trust has established an implementation structure for the single equality
scheme. This is led by the equality and diversity steering group, which is chaired
by the chief executive, reports to the board of directors and has two other
executive directors taking lead roles on different aspects of equality and diversity.
Two implementation groups, each chaired by an executive director, support the
equality and diversity steering group.
The service equality implementation group focuses on overseeing the
implementation of those aspects of the single equality scheme that relate to the
delivery of services. Its membership includes clinical staff, directorate managers
and external stakeholders.
The employment equality implementation group focuses on overseeing the
implementation of those aspects of the single equality scheme that relate to
employment. Its membership includes HR professionals, directorate managers
and staff side representatives.
Policies for Disabled Employees and Equal Opportunities
The Trust’s diversity and equality strategy and its supporting policies are the
cornerstone of its approach to equality of employment opportunity. We recognise
our responsibility to provide (as far as is reasonably practicable) job security of all
employees.
Our policies aim to ensure that no job applicant or employee receives less
favourable treatment where it cannot be shown to be justifiable on the grounds of:










Age
Gender
Gender identity
Marital status
Sexual orientation
Race
Nationality
Ethnic origin
Colour or disability

- in relation to recruitment and selection, promotion, transfer, training, discipline
and grievance and all terms and conditions of employment.
Policy Applied for the Continuing Employment of Disabled Persons
As a foundation trust, we recognise the important role we must play as an active
and socially responsible member of the local community and that our patients,
clients and staff represent the community we serve.
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Policy Applied for Career Development of Disabled Persons
We know that having a committed and motivated workforce depends on staff
feeling that they are treated with fairness, respect and dignity and that they have
equal opportunities for self-development. We want to ensure that our staff are
not discriminated against, or harassed, on the grounds of their ethnic origin,
physical or mental ability, gender, age, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.
Equally, if this happens, we want staff to feel confident about using our policies to
raise concerns and to have them addressed.
Providing Information to Employees
Well-informed and involved staff lead to well-informed patients, relatives and
public. Issues that affect staff - in the way services are delivered; and changes
that affect their working environment or practices – are consulted upon. Over the
past three years this has been particularly important in relation to workforce
reviews, which have led to major changes to staffing structures across the
organisation. The final review – covering administrative and clerical services –
was completed and implemented during the year.
Staff at the Trust can access a variety of communication materials that best meet
their needs. These include:











pay-slip bulletin - information pertinent to everyone (corporate development,
employment issues etc) circulated to every member of staff with their monthly
pay-slip;
staff magazine - Royal Standard re-launched in 2008 and focusing on staff
and the roles they play in the organisation;
membership magazine - The Member, is distributed to all community and staff
members of the foundation trust every quarter and updates the foundation
trust’s membership on service developments, proposals and plans;
e-mail briefings - regular briefings to all staff via their personal e-mail
accounts, on a variety of subjects affecting the Trust - from departmental
moves to estates issues;
‘Ask Eric’ - staff can use the intranet chat forum to ask the chief executive
questions, or put forward concerns, ideas and suggestions. All staff using the
scheme are guaranteed a response direct from the chief executive – usually
within five working days or less;
posters, leaflets, reports - produced specifically for staff;
Intranet - the staff only section of the Trust’s website facility. Staff can access
policies and procedures, patient information, an on-line telephone directory
and up-to-date news about the Trust - including finance reports, performance
reports and minutes from key meetings such as the council of governors.
There is also an anonymous chat forum – where staff can post discussion
threads and topics
Monthly Trust briefings are held in all directorate areas, which are designed to
cascade information about key decisions being taken by the Trust to staff and
to seek feedback from staff on the issues covered.
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Action Taken to Encourage Involvement of Employees in the Foundation Trust
Concerned about the negative feel of results from the 2007 Healthcare
Commission staff survey, the Board of Directors agreed that the Trust should
commission an external survey of all staff. This would allow the board to get a
better understanding of the local issues affecting staff - and what it could best do
to address them.
A survey called ‘What’s in it for me?’ was undertaken in July 2008. Shorter and
simpler than the Healthcare Commission’s survey, it concentrated on the Trust
and its own staff - rather than on national themes.
Nearly 60% of the Trust’s workforce contributed to the survey. Staff focus groups
debated initial results and in November 2008, staff were asked to choose the top
actions they wanted the Trust to move forward.
A tripartite committee – made up of board directors, staff side representatives and
staff governors – was also set up to oversee the project. In February 2009, the
final action plan – listing 16 improvements, changes and benefits - was
published. The top six points are a priority for 2009/10 and work has already
progressed in each of the areas where staff have stated they want to see
immediate improvement:


Reduce the use of agency staff by filling all vacant substantive posts as they
arise and offering staff extra hours



Re-visit all workforce reviews two years after full implementation to see if the
changes are working as they should be and to look again at things that aren't



Following workforce review keep under review patterns of working hours in
each workplace to ensure the right balance between the needs of the service
and support for staff to work flexibly



Enable staff to buy or sell each year an amount of annual leave to increase
flexibility in tailoring annual leave to individual requirements



Introduce a staff recognition scheme with annual awards to individuals and
teams (presented at an awards ceremony) to recognise quality innovation and
achievement (including excellent attendance etc)



Guarantee proper consideration of all counter-proposals made by staff going
through organisational change, with a written response to each, and apply
pay protection to counter-proposals.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES
Carbon Management and the Environment
Having successfully established a Corporate Citizenship Committee to oversee
the Trusts approach to carbon management and environmental management, the
Trust has had a successful year in taking this agenda forward.
We joined wave three of the Carbon Trusts Carbon Management Programme,
and successfully ‘graduated’ on the 20 March 2009.
Our target for reducing carbon is 30% based upon the 2007 emission levels and
this is in excess of the 25% reduction target promulgated, in the ‘Saving Carbon,
Improving Health’ carbon reduction strategy for England which was published in
January 2009.
We have a number of key projects aimed at targeting carbon reduction including
the second phase of replacing our coal fired boiler system with a system using
gas as the primary fuel. To support this we have successfully bid against the
Department of Health Energy Fund and have achieved a grant of around
£730,000.
Working with the Carbon Trust, we believe, put us in an advantageous position to
meet the aims of the NHS carbon reduction strategy and has helped us to focus
on the projects which will make the greatest difference to our performance. We
also hosted an opportunities event in the town centre in September 2008, which
brought together not only staff from the Royal Hospital but also colleagues from
the local authority and other partners. The aim of the event was to both raise
awareness of our carbon reduction programme but also, to generate ideas for
enabling us to meet our carbon reduction target. The day was a great success
and in excess of seventy ideas were put forward. Where feasible, all of these
ideas are being pursued.
The Corporate Citizenship Committee assumed responsibility for agreeing the
final Carbon Reduction Plan and the Committee has met on a quarterly basis
throughout the year. For the first time, we are producing an annual Corporate
Citizenship Committee Report, which will detail all of the Trust’s activities around
both sustainability and the wider citizenship agenda.
In recognising our wider responsibilities to the local community and as part of our
drive to reduce carbon emissions, we have introduced our own in-house catering
outlet, Café@theRoyal, into the front entrance as part of a wider development of
our main concourse. One of our aims with the café has been to utilise local
produce and local warehousing to support the initiative. We also aim to produce
as much of the food, freshly prepared, on the premises as is possible.
We set ourselves a 50 mile radius from the Royal as being local for the purposes
of supplying the café and we have been able to achieve this objective and also
obtain competitive pricing.
Other initiatives this year have been around our travel plan which has seen us
move forward and sign up to a cycle to work scheme which enables staff to take
advantage through a salary sacrifice of the renting of quality cycles at reduced
rates. We have also introduced further pedestrian areas on site to improve the
facilities for those both walking to the hospital and those wishing to take exercise
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whilst on site. As part of a planning application for additional car parking we have
also pledged £17,000 of support to assist the Borough Council in creating a cycle
and pedestrian link into the back of the hospital.
Our main aim for the next twelve months will be around delivering against the
carbon reduction agenda and obtaining Board approval for our strategy for
meeting the ‘Saving Carbon, Improving Health’ document.
Waste Management
Following the changes to the waste management regulations in 2007, the
Environment Agency undertook nationwide compliance inspections during 2008.
We received our visit from the environment agency on 18 July 2008 and all
aspects of compliance with waste legislation were audited, including the
completion of the last two years of waste transfer notes, systems for segregation,
storage and transfer of waste, storage of fuel oil and emergency procedures with
regard to the uncontrolled release of any substance to the environment or water
course.
Although we have not yet received a formal report from The Environment Agency
we were asked to make some improvements to both waste segregation and the
checking of waste contractors licences which have now been put in place.
Overall therefore this was an extremely satisfactory audit.
The last year has seen an increase in the amount of both clinical and domestic
waste generated by the hospital, with an additional 137 tonnes of clinical waste
for treatment and over a 100 tonnes of domestic waste.
A significant quantity of this additional waste has been generated through the
investment in improved infection control measures and the increase in both
cleaning materials and precautions taken by staff around hand hygiene.
The waste disposal tonnages for the three years 2006 to 2008 are shown in the
table below:
WASTE DISPOSAL TONNAGES 2006 - 2008
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To balance out the increases in waste volume, we have been undertaking a
number of waste audits to look both at compliance with legislation and to ensure
that measures are in place to both properly segregate and dispose of waste
generated. A number of initiatives to reduce waste have also been pursued
including changes to the categorisation of pathology waste, which reduced costs
by around £14,000 per year and the introduction of the reusable sharps
containers which is both safer and reduced waste volume.
Security
During the past year the Trust has invested heavily in updating its security
systems.
In particular, the front entrance development also included an upgrade to the
main security office. This upgrade saw an investment of £100,000 in digital
equipment to enable improved monitoring of the Trust’s 74 CCTV cameras and
also has a significant enhancement in the quality of recorded CCTV footage. As
part of this development we also introduced an additional 4 external pan, tilt and
zoom CCTV cameras for the perimeter of the site.
The security of our wards at night had been identified as an issue through the
security risk assessment process and we wished to improve the control of access
to the wards after visiting times, and also to manage the risk of the potential for
patients absconding from our wards.
All our main wards now have access control systems which operate between
9pm and 8am. In additional to the uses listed above, the access control can also
be utilised for other purposes such as assisting with the management of infection
control outbreaks and we are also planning to use this system to support the
implementation of the protected meal initiative which is a key plank of our
nutritional strategy.
We believe that this demonstrates the flexibility of access control not only to
support security but also to be used proactively to support the general operation
of the hospital.
As part of our work with the local community we have become involved in a
number of local security forums in particular the Safer Chesterfield Board. We
also continue to work with the Police Advisory Team on building design and the
specialist children’s development ‘The Den’ has been awarded the nationally
recognised secured by design status.
In terms of the number of incidents on our site the last twelve months has seen
around 500 incidents reported of which 283 related to violence and aggression.
Where at all possible, we pursue prosecutions against individuals who commit
crimes on Trust property and against Trust employees. Over the past twelve
months we have had 10 successful prosecutions and are awaiting the outcome of
a further 6 cases.
We have also used the Trusts ‘Withholding Treatment from Violent and
Aggressive Patients’ policy a number of times and on two occasions this had led
the Trust to withhold treatment from two patients due to their violent behaviour.
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Fire Safety
We undertook an internal audit report in 2008 regarding fire safety training
particularly, in an effort to improve upon attendance at fire lectures. This was as
a result of a decrease between 2006/07 of 7.5%.
We have now restructured the fire training and the fire safety adviser has moved
from a system of monthly lectures to a departmental based system which is more
interactive, aimed at reducing time spent in the classroom and also is intended to
be more meaningful in describing situations which employees may face, in their
own departments, in the event of a fire.
In terms of fire alarm activations there were a total of 41 during the year with only
4 actual fires all of which were minor in nature. The table below illustrates the fire
alarm activations over the past three years and shows the significant reduction in
actual fires.
The increase in unwanted fire signals is as a result of the level of construction
contractor work on site.
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Health and Safety and Occupational Health
The health and safety management framework within which the Trust operates
reflects the HSE guidance ‘Successful health and safety management (HSG65)’,
which was last updated in 2003. The principles of this guidance are shown below
and the framework for this report reflects this approach to the management of
health and safety.
To operationalise the management of health and safety, the health and safety
management committee meet on a bi monthly basis.
This is chaired by the director of allied clinical and facilities services, as the
director leading on health and safety, and attended by general managers as well
as the environmental risk team.
A joint staff and management health and safety committee meets on a bi-monthly
basis, chaired by the director of allied clinical and facilities services. The staff
side chair of the joint consultative committee (JCC) is also a member of this
committee.
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The number and type of health and safety incidents and any trends in these are
monitored on a regular basis through the joint staff and management health and
safety committee, and action to tackle specific issues is agreed. The health and
safety management committee co-ordinates a Trust-wide approach to higher
level health and safety issues, such as stress at work.
The Trust has an on-site occupational health service provided under contract by
an external NHS provider. This is nursing-led but with access to a consultant
occupational health physician.
The service includes recruitment health
screening, in-service screening and review, and access to counselling and
psychological support.
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PATIENT CARE AND STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS
Information for Patient and Carer
Patient and public involvement (PPI) is an integral part of the Trust’s work and
has been strengthened by its foundation trust status. The Trust prides itself on
listening and responding to patients to improve services delivered locally and
ensuring that they are patient centred. As a result of listening to patients, the
Trust has been able to:







Improve access and reduce waiting;
Offer more information and choice;
Build closer relationships;
Provide safe, high-quality and co-ordinated care;
Provide a clean, comfortable and friendly environment; and
Improve the patient’s experience.

Patient and Public Involvement Team
The Trust has a patient and public involvement team, which is based within the
clinical standards and governance directorate. This team supports the Trust’s PPI
agenda, structures and activity. Working with staff from across the organisation
the PPI team takes the lead in ensuring that the Trust listens and responds to
patients’ views in order to influence service delivery.
The PPI team also supports the PPI committee, which is a subcommittee of the
council of governors; more details of the committee’s work can be found on page
74 of this report.
The PPI team provides the following support to the PPI forum:






Advice on Trust practice
Assistance to influence the PPI strategy and development plan
Regular updates on feedback from patients and the public
Practical help and advice for PPI projects and initiatives
Ensuring members are included in all appropriate changes and developments

In addition the PPI team acts as a link to the independent PPI forum. PPI forums
were the statutory body responsible for representing the views of the local
population; there was one PPI forum for each NHS trust. During the year PPI
forums were disbanded and Local Involvement Networks (LINKs) were
introduced from April 2008.
LINKs were established through the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Bill and have a number of powers including:





Requiring information requested to be presented
Right to respond to reports (only PCT/ LA)
Referral to Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Enter and view services provided at a reasonable time

The Advice Centre
A significant development for the Trust was the establishment in November 2008
of the advice centre. This new and innovative service merged the previously
34

separate patient advice & liaison and complaints teams. The advice centre is
located in the refurbished entrance to the hospital and aims to be very much ‘on
the front line’, helping patients, visitors and staff with issues, concerns or
problems.
The advice centre team work together to prioritise issues which are brought to
them, to ensure that all types of feedback, ranging from compliments, requests
for information about services, requests for meetings with clinicians, and
concerns and formal complaints are dealt with speedily, effectively, and in a way
which meets the wishes of the service user. Concerns and formal complaints are
categorised from level 1 (minor concern which can be dealt with fairly quickly by a
telephone call from a member of staff) to Levels 3 and 4 (serious concerns which
require a detailed investigation and more formal response, which may be either in
writing or at a meeting).
This change in structure also means that the advice centre team are well placed
to commence with the implementation of changes in line with the NHS complaints
regulations that became effective in April 2009, placing greater emphasis on
complainant-focused resolution of concerns and complaints. The advice centre
team are developing and building upon the established strong links that existed
with directorates.
Set out below is the number of items that have been dealt with by the advice
centre between January and March 2009:
Clinical
mtg

Compli
-ment

Gen
Query

Jan 09

1

6

77

Feb 09

2

8

62

Mar 09

4

4

82

‘Have
your
Say’ *

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level
4**

67

14

31

196

5

51

17

35

180

17

83

37

30

2

Total

259

* only dealt with by the Advice Centre since February 2009
** new category introduced in March 2009

Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
The patient advice & liaison service acts as a readily accessible point of contact
for patients and their families to raise concerns or request information. They are
able help patients, relatives or other users of the Trust’s services to achieve
speedy resolution to a problem or concern, by liaising with key staff in
directorates. They can also provide information on the Trust’s services and on a
wide range of healthcare issues.
The PALS service have acted as a liaison between support groups in the
community and individual clinicians who have agreed to give a talk on their role.
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Complaints Handling
The Trust takes complaints seriously and acts to ensure problems are resolved
quickly, to improve experiences for future patients.
Trends in relation to the reasons for complaints, response times and action taken
as a result of a complaint are all monitored, to make sure that issues are
investigated quickly, trends are identified, and services improve as a result of
complaints being made.
The advisers focus on helping complainants, working with directorates on the
investigation process and completing detailed responses.
More complaints are being resolved by inviting the complainant to meet with
investigating officers or clinicians, so that the Trust can provide a much more
personal response to their concerns and questions. Complainants may wish to
be supported by a friend or family member, or by an advocate from the
Independent Complaints Advocacy Service (ICAS) and this is welcomed. With
the complainant’s agreement, meetings are also recorded and provided on CD,
so that the complainant has a complete record of the discussion.
Information on the number and type of complaints received during 2008/09 can
be seen in the table below.

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
5 June 2009
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0
0
0
0
0
46
2
7
3
19
0
10
0
5
0
26
18
1
1
6
0
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0
0
0
0
0
4
1
0
1
1
0
0
0
0
1
3
2
0
0
0
1

15
0
7
6
2
22
0
3
2
3
0
12
0
2
0
27
14
5
1
4
3

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
1
0
0
0

4
0
1
3
0
16
2
1
2
1
1
5
0
1
3
8
2
5
0
0
1

3
0
3
0
0
2
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
0

10
0
6
2
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
15
1
3
0
1
10

15
3
1
5
6
57
6
2
3
2
0
32
0
7
5
29
12
7
0
7
3

2
2
0
0
0
34
5
0
0
2
0
14
5
3
5
15
10
2
1
1
1

Total

Pathology

Orthopaedics

Not Specific

Medical
Specialities

Imaging

Emergency
Care

Clinical
Governance
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
0

Women's &
Childrens

3
0
2
1
0
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
9
5
3
0
0
1

Surgical
Specialities

0
0
0
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
1
1
2
1
0
0
1
0

Planning &
Performance

Delays, Changes and cancellations
Cancelled operation/procedure
Other
Delay in appointment
Changed/cancelled appointment
Clinical care
Other
Delay in diagnosis
Delay in treatment
Failure to diagnose
Delay in investigation
Clinical Care (Medical)
Clinical Care (midwifery)
Clinical Care (Nursing)
Outcome of procedure
Communication and Interpersonal Relationships
Attitude of member of staff
Other
Confidentiality
Communication - verbal
Communication - written

Central
Services

Critical Care

Complaints Received April 2008 – March 2009

53
5
20
17
11
186
17
13
11
29
2
75
5
19
15
137
65
27
3
22
20

General care on the ward
Other
Hygiene needs
Healthcare associated infection
Moving and Handling
Nutrition/Feeding & Drinking
Observation/monitoring
Pressure area care
Privacy & Dignity
Patients property
Discharge arrangements
Condition of patient on discharge
Delayed discharge
Discharge medication
Other
Inappropriate discharge
Environment & Facilities
Access
Car Parking
Cleanliness (General areas)
Cleanliness (Ward)
Other
Patient meals
Smoking
Patient transport

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
1
1
16
2
6
1
0
2
3
2
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5
2
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
1
7
0
0
1
3
3
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0

38

2
0
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

20
5
3
2
1
1
2
1
0
5
8
1
1
0
3
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

8
3
2
1
0
2
0
0
0
0
4
1
0
1
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1

8
3
0
3
0
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5
2
0
1
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
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15
6
7
2
5
5
1
1
6
24
2
1
3
9
9
19
2
6
1
1
3
3
2
1

Medication issue
Medication error - dosage
Timing of medication
Medication error - type
Health care record
Labelling issue
Other
Waiting times
Waiting time in Emergency Dept
Waiting time in out-patient clinic
Other
Totals:

1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
8

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
31

39

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1

1
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
1
0
0
87

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
9

3
0
1
2
2
0
2
1
0
1
0
98

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
1
0
41

0
0
0
0
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
7

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
28

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
4
0
2
2
114

1
1
0
0
1
0
1
1
0
0
1
60

6
1
2
3
4
1
3
9
1
4
4
486

QUALITY ACCOUNTS 2008/09
PART 1 – QUALITY NARRATIVE
“I would like to congratulate everyone for their achievements in the past year.
We continue to provide outstanding care to our patients, whilst remaining
financially sound. The Board remains committed to delivering high quality care,
and improving the quality of services we offer.
During the past year the Trust has increased its focus on quality through the
development of Trust-wide, directorate and speciality specific indicators, which
reflect the quality of clinical practice and clinical outcomes. The early indicators
are already reported to the Board and they are driving improvements in the
quality of care delivered to our patients.
This focus will be further developed in the coming year and the Trust has worked
closely with our staff and commissioners to agree a schedule of quality indicators,
which reflect local priorities. This process will enable us to embed a culture of
quality improvement, addressing issues when they arise and ensuring the best
possible quality of care for our patients.”

Eric Morton
Chief Executive
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
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Priorities for Quality Improvement
The Trust is developing a strategy for quality improvement with the aspiration to
improve our position on valid national comparators. In the initial stages our focus
will be on areas of clinical quality that will impact upon overall mortality.
The priorities for quality improvement listed on the following pages are grouped
into the three priority areas identified within High Quality Care for All:




Clinical Effectiveness,
Patient Safety
Patient Experience.

Clinical Effectiveness
Priority 1: Reducing our In-Hospital Stroke Mortality Rate
During 2008/09 the Trust focused on the care of Stroke patients following a
number of alerts relating to mortality for Acute Cerebrovascular Disease from the
Dr Foster Real Time Monitoring System (see chart 1). As well as being a priority
area with regard to mortality, the Trust wants to be in a strong position to be
considered as a centre for the delivery of thrombolysis in order to be able to
provide initial acute care for patients locally. The key evidence with regard to
quality of care for Stroke patients is the National Sentinel audit.
Chart 1 – In-hospital mortality for Acute Cerebrovascular Disease - CumulativeSum Chart January 2008 to February 2009 (Source: Dr Foster Real-Time
Monitoring)

The Sentinel Audit 2008 results (see table 1), which are based on a review of
admissions during April to June 2008, showed that the Trust was below average
on a number of key indicators; however these data were collected prior to the
changes described above being implemented.
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Table 1 – Comparative Trust performance on the 9 key indicators on Stroke Care
(Source: Sentinel Audit 2008)
All sites
25%
score
below

Median
score

25%
score
above

CRHFT

Ind

Description

1.

Patients treated for 90% of stay in a
stroke unit*

43.8

56.3

68.6

57

2.

Screened for swallowing disorders
within first 24 hours of admission*

57.6

73.3

87.8

70

3.

Brain scan within 24 hours of stroke*

44.4

57.3

69.6

32

4.

Commenced aspirin by 48 hours after
stroke

76.9

88.3

95.8

72

5.

Physiotherapy assessment within first
24 hours of admission

74.4

88.0

94.1

91

6.

Assessment by an Occupational
Therapist within 4 working days of
admission

43.2

69.0

85.0

61

7.

Weighed at
admission

60.6

75.7

87.3

85

8.

Mood assessed by discharge

43.2

67.8

86.6

55

9.

Rehabilitation goals agreed by the
multi-disciplinary team

79.7

91.8

97.1

96

Average for 9 indicators

61.5

71.5

80.4

68

least

once

during

As a result of the above information the Trust has already taken action to improve
performance, as follows:




Where the diagnosis of Stroke is suspected by staff with the Emergency
department they will arrange a CT Scan prior to admission to the ward.
Patients with a suspected stroke are now being admitted directly to the Stroke
unit, rather than via the Emergency Management Unit, which had been the
case previously.
The Trust has secured funding for an additional Specialist Stroke Physician.

The impact of these changes will be measured using the 9 key sentinel indicators
and the mortality data from Dr Foster.
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Priority 2: Fractured Neck of Femur
Fragility fractures and their care are a challenge to our health care system and
our society. Already in the UK around 300,000 patients with such fractures
present each year, and current projections indicate that numbers of hip fracture
patients will continue to rise. This picture is reflected at the Trust, where the
number of patients admitted with a fractured neck of femur has increased by over
50% in the past 10 years.
The evidence-base for hip fracture care is improving rapidly and, in general
terms, shows that prompt, effective, multidisciplinary management can improve
quality and mortality, and at the same time reduce costs. Two key elements of
good care are reducing the time from admission to surgery and prompt
mobilisation.
The national aspirational targets for time from admissions to surgery are as
follows:



50% of patients with fractured neck of femur should be operated on within 24
hours of admission
85% of patients with fractured neck of femur should be operated on within 48
hours of admission

The table below shows the time from admission to surgery by quarter from April
2007 to March 2009.
Table 2 – Breakdown by quarter of time to theatre for patients admitted with a
fractured neck of femur (Source: Trust trauma database)
Time to theatre
Quarter
April to June 2007
July to September 2007
October to December 2007
January to March 2008

< 24 hours

< 48 hours

Prior to March 2008,
performance was
only monitored
against the 48 hour
target.

51%
52%
59%
78%

April to June 2008

57%

81%

July to September 2008

46%

81%

October to December 2008

56%

82%

January to March 2009

55%

85%

In order to achieve this the Trust has introduced an additional trauma list and now
has robust monitoring processes which includes the recording of a reason for all
patients who are not operated on within 48 hours. In addition, an audit process
has been established to monitor the time to mobilisation and identify why patients
are not mobilised within 24 hours of operation.
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Patient Safety
Priority 3: Medication
International studies on medication errors are complex to interpret. The most
conservative estimates suggest one or two significant medication errors occur per
hundred occupied bed days, with higher rates in specialist settings. Following
publication of the National Patient Safety Agency’s (NPSA) report on medication
incidents, ‘Safety in doses’, the Trust undertook a review of medication incidents
reported by our staff. The chart below shows the medication incidents reported
from our Trust (in black) compared to those reported from other organisations in
our cluster. To make the comparison more meaningful, the figures show the rate
of reported incidents per 100 admissions.
Chart 2 – No. of medication incidents per 100 admissions (Source: National
Patient Safety Agency National Reporting and Learning System)

Given that the Trust’s overall rate for incident reporting is above average, the
chart suggests that the number of medication incidents at the Trust compares
well with other organisations, however we are not complacent. We are therefore
examining the structure for drug rounds, reviewing the process for responding to
medication incidents and extending the range and scope of medicines related
education.
We will continue to monitor progress through our own incident reporting process
and via the NRLS reports.
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Priority 4: Continue to Reduce Hospital-acquired infections
For 2008/09 the Trust continued to focus on Infection Control, maintaining low
levels of MRSA and after a difficult start to the year, with a significant outbreak of
027 Clostridium difficile, ended the year meeting its targets (see table below).
The achievement of the target relating to Clostridium difficile resulted from an
increased focus on all areas of infection prevention and control, particularly
relating to hand hygiene, antibiotic control and environmental cleanliness.
Criterion

Measure

Outcome

Clostridium
difficile

10% reduction in hospital acquired
infections compared to 2007/08
outturn (maximum of 163 new
isolates).

18% reduction achieved

MRSA

No more than 12 bacteraemia
infections

8 reported, which is 4 under
trajectory for the year

10% reduction in hospital acquired
non bacteraemia infections compared
to 2007/08 outturn (maximum 76
cases)

69% reduction achieved

Achievement of minimum scores of
95%

95% average score
achieved for the year

Cleanliness
audits

In addition, during 2008/09 the Trust:





Implemented the ICNet system to enable near real time monitoring and
improved care management
Expanded the infection control champion role to include medical staff
Developed a Trust-wide hand hygiene training for staff; at the end of March
2009, 2,556 staff had received this training; and
Introduced patient and visitor information packs full of information to help
prevent infection

During the year the Trust’s score on the Department of Health’s ‘Code of Practice
for the Prevention and Control of Healthcare Associated Infections Selfassessment Tool’ increased from 85% to 93%. An action plan is in place to
address all outstanding areas.
For 2009/10 the focus for infection control will be on sustainability with the
production of a long-term strategy for infection control, which will enable this
Trust to embed the current good practice.
Due to changes in the definition of hospital attributed cases of Clostridium difficile
it has been agreed that Trust performance will only be monitored against
hospital-attributed cases and the trajectories are as follows:



2009/10 – 125 cases
2010/11 – 110 cases

The MRSA standards are:



No more than 12 bacteraemia infections
No more than 76 hospital acquired non bacteraemia infections.
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Patient Experience
Priority 5: Patient satisfaction
In line with the Trust’s aim to be the hospital of first choice for local people,
patient satisfaction and positive feedback is seen as a key indicator of success.
The Trust conducts a wide range of patient and public involvement work each
year, however the key indicator of patient satisfaction is the national patient
surveys, in particular the annual inpatient survey.
The results of the 2008 inpatient survey show that overall patient experience
remains positive, however there has been a slight deterioration in the number of
questions for which the Trust was in the top 20% (green).
Table 3 – Comparative Trust performance on the National Inpatient Survey 2008
vs. 2007 (Source: Healthcare Commission/Care Quality Commission
Comparative reports)
Performance
Green (top 20%)
Orange (mid 60%)
Red (bottom 20%)

2008
29
31
2

2007
31
29
2

The results, along with written comments, have been analysed at a Directorate
level and action plans have been developed in order to share good practice and
address shortfalls identified by the patients.
In addition, a significant piece of work, led by the Chief Nurse and Principal
Matron, is underway to monitor the care and treatment provided at ward level and
obtain regular feedback from the patients. This work will help to monitor action
plans and performance in order to continually improve the services delivered and
ensure that they are patient centred.
Priority 6: Nursing Care
The quality of nursing care is paramount to patient experience, patient safety and
clinical effectiveness and the Board needs a mechanism to assure itself on the
quality of on basic nursing care.
The quality of nursing care and patient experience will be monitored through the
introduction of nursing metrics and continuous patient experience surveys. The
nursing metrics will enable the Trust to monitor key nursing activities, whilst the
patient surveys will give patients an opportunity to give feedback on their
experience. This information will then be used to highlight good practice and
drive improvement, as follows:




The results will be fed back to wards and directorates on a monthly basis to
ensure action is identified where necessary
Trends from the data will be used to identify training requirements
Performance data will be displayed within the ward area to highlight
performance to patients, visitors and staff.
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Response to Regulators
The Trust’s recent declaration to the Care Quality Commission indicated full
compliance with all of the core standards. During 2008/09 the Trust was not
subject to any follow-up visits from the Healthcare Commission in relation to the
core standards.
In August 2008, the Trust received a Healthcare Commission Hygiene Inspection
as part of their planned programme to visit all acute trusts. The Healthcare
Commission reviewed four standards and rated on each of these green,
indicating the that the inspectors had not found any significant breaches on the
Health Act.
We also achieved a green governance rating from Monitor.
Response to LINks and to Feedback from Members and Governors
During 2008/09 the Trust has begun to build good relations with the newly
established LINks but has not been subject to any visits or reports.
The main conduit for feedback from governors is via the Public Involvement
Committee, which is a sub-committee of the council of governors. The report
from this committee appears elsewhere in the annual report.
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PART 2 – QUALITY OVERVIEW
Quality Metrics
We have chosen to measure our performance against the following metrics:
Metric

2008/09

2007/08

Comparator

No. of hospital acquired
Clostridium difficile infections

124

162

146
(08/09 trajectory)

No. of hospital acquired MRSA
infections (non-bacteraemia)

26

84

76
(08/09 trajectory)

0.361

N/A

~

Hospital standardised mortality
ratio

100.72
(94.9-106.8)

108.4
(102.4-114.7)

100
(national average)

Mortality ratio – Acute
Cerebrovascular Disease (Stroke)

112.02
(90.6-137.0)

145.3
(123.1-170.5)

100
(national average)

Post-operative mortality rate

99.12
(85.6-114.1)

105.6
(92.4-120.2)

100
(national average)

Readmission rates (all patients)

99.42
(95.5-103.3)

99.7
(96.6-102.7)

100
(national average)

Patients treated for 90% of stay in
a stroke unit

57%

N/A

56.3%

% of patients with fracture neck of
femur operated on within 48 hours
of admission

82%

60%

~

Proportion of inpatients who rated
their care as good or very good

81%

79%

Top 20%

Proportion of inpatients who
stated that they were treated with
dignity and respect

90%

90%

Top 20%

% of patients who spent less than
4 hours in A&E

98.7%

98.9

~

Patient Safety Indicators

Medication incidents per 100
admissions
Clinical effectiveness

Patient Experience

1

Based on incidents reported to the NPSA during the period 1 April 2008 to 30
September 2008
2
Includes data up to and including February 2009.
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National Priority Indicators
The following indicators support the national priorities as set out in the
Department of Health’s Operating Framework plus an additional indicator of
compliance with the national core standards and should be included (as relevant)
in the quality reports of all organisations.
National Priority
Measure

2008/09

2007/08

147

181

8

10

Maximum waiting time of two weeks from urgent GP referral to
first outpatient appointment for all urgent suspect cancer
referrals (Standard – 98%)

99.6%

97.6%

Maximum waiting time for two weeks from urgent GP referral to
first outpatient appointment for all referrals (revised calculation
from Q4)

97.02%

N/A

Maximum waiting time of 31 days from decision to treat to start
of treatment extended to cover all cancer treatments (revised to
include subsequent treatments from Q4)

99.0%

100%

Maximum waiting time of 62 days from all referrals to treatment
for all cancers (includes shared breaches with Sheffield)

98.9%

N/A

Maximum waiting time of 62 days from all referrals to treatment
for all cancers (revised calculation from Q4, includes shared
breaches with Sheffield)

97.8%

N/A

18-week maximum wait by 2008
Admitted patients:
Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment

96.4%

N/A

18-week maximum wait by 2008
Non-admitted patients:
Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment

96.6%

N/A

Maximum waiting time of four hours in A&E from arrival to
admission, transfer or discharge

98.7%

97.9%

Maximum waiting time of 31 days from diagnosis to treatment
for all cancers (existing target)

100%

100%

Maximum waiting time of 62 days from urgent referral to
treatment for all cancers (existing target, includes shared
breaches with Sheffield)

97.9%

98.8%

People suffering heart attack to receive thrombolysis within 60
minutes of call

79.8%

70.6%

Maintain level of crisis resolution teams set in 03/06 planning
round [or subsequently contracted with PCT]

N/A

N/A

24/24

24/24

Clostridium difficile year on year reduction (10% annual
reduction as reported on MESS)
MRSA maintaining the annual number of MRSA bloodstream
infections at less than half the 2003/04 level (Trajectory – no
more that 12 per year)

Compliance with Core Standards as declared to the Healthcare
Commission/Care Quality Commission

Please note: - the revised calculations for Cancer Targets from Q4 only includes WTA for patients who DNA
their outpatient appointment.
The Cancer Waiting Times National System is currently not available due to all the new revised
calculations, therefore the figures have been processed through an internal system and may
change when the National System is updated.
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MANAGEMENT/GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Introduction
The board of directors manages the business of the Trust and is the legally
responsible body for the delivery of high quality, effective services and for making
decisions relating to the strategic direction, financial control and performance of
the Trust.
The board of directors has a business focus, providing active leadership of the
Trust within the framework of prudent and effective controls to ensure compliance
with its terms of authorisation.
All members of the board of directors have joint responsibility for every decision
of the board of directors regardless of their individual skills or status.
Role of the Board of Directors
The role of the board of directors includes:












Setting targets, monitoring performance and ensuring the resources are used
in the most appropriate way;
Providing active leadership of the NHS foundation trust within a framework of
prudent and effective controls, which enables risk to be assessed and
managed;
Making sure the NHS foundation trust performs in the best interests of the
public, within legal and statutory requirements;
Responsibility for ensuring the quality and safety of healthcare services,
education, training and research delivered by the NHS foundation trust and
applying the principles and standards of clinical governance set out by the
Department of Health, the Care Quality Commission and other relevant NHS
bodies;
Being accountable for the services provided and how public funds are used,
and exercising those functions effectively, efficiently and economically;
Making sure the NHS foundation trust complies with its ‘terms of
authorisation’ set by Monitor;
Having specific duties relating to audit, remuneration, clinical governance,
charitable funds and risk assurance;
Deciding the Trust’s strategic direction - in consultation with the council of
governors;
Setting the Trust’s values and standards of conduct and ensure that its
obligations to its members, patients and other stakeholders are understood
and met; and
Working in partnership with the council of governors.

Board Focus
In the Trust’s first two years as an NHS foundation trust, a significant turnover in
the membership of the board resulted in the appointment of a new chairman and
five new non-executive directors. Consequently, the focus of board development
over the last two years has been on building the relationships between directors
and on developing the relationships between the directors and the governors.
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The board of directors has reviewed its values and standards to ensure that they
meet the obligations that the Trust has to its patients, members of staff and other
stakeholders. Periodically the board of directors reviews the strategic aims after
consultation with the council of governors and takes responsibility for the quality
and safety of the healthcare services, education, training and research.
The board now devotes most of its time and agenda to clinical quality and the key
elements of the patient experience, including infection control, hygiene, feeding
and nutrition and privacy and dignity. Over the next twelve months, the board’s
priority for development will be to have an engaged collective understanding of
measures of clinical quality and how these are used to produce meaningful
quality accounts which properly reflect patients’ everyday experience of the
Trust’s services.
Composition of the Board of Directors
The board is a unitary board consisting of a non-executive chairman, five nonexecutive directors (one of whom is the senior independent director) and five
executive directors.
The composition of the board of directors is in accordance with the Trust’s
Constitution and it is appropriate to fulfill its statutory and constitutional function
and comply with Monitor’s Terms of Authorisation. An annual review of the board
of directors’ balance, completeness and appropriateness is undertaken. On 31
December 2008 the Trust’s Director of Nursing retired and the opportunity for a
revision to this role was taken by the Board such that the replacement post of
chief nurse was created to commence on 1 April 2009.
The Chairman
The chairman is responsible for ensuring that the board of directors focuses on
the strategic development of the Trust and for ensuring robust governance and
accountability arrangements are in place, as well as evaluating the performance
of the board of directors, its committees and individual non-executive directors.
Non-Executive Directors
Whilst the executive directors are responsible for the day-to-day operational
management of the Trust, the non-executive directors share the corporate
responsibility for ensuring that the Trust is run efficiently, economically and
effectively. Non-executive directors use their expertise, interest and experience
to scrutinise the performance of management, monitor the reporting of
performance, and satisfy themselves as to the integrity of financial, clinical and
other information. The non-executive directors also fulfil their responsibility for
determining appropriate levels of remuneration for executive directors.
The board’s small number of standing committees has allowed all the nonexecutive directors scope to develop their skills and experience as members of
committees and, in most cases, as committee chairs. Non-executive directors
have also taken lead roles on specific projects, such as the children’s unit and the
re-development of the front entrance. Internal induction and development for the
non-executive directors has been supplemented by their involvement in external
networks and paid training identified through appraisal.
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Directors’ biographies can be seen on page 59 of this report.
Board Meetings
The board of directors meets a minimum of ten times a year in order that it may
regularly discharge its duties.
Attendance at the board of directors meetings during 2008/09 is presented in the
table below:
Name

Position

Meetings Attended
Board

Joint
BoD/CoG

Time Out

Annual
Report
and
Accounts

Mr R Gregory

Chairman

11/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

Mr M Hall

SID and NonExecutive Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Chief Executive

11/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

11/12

1/2

1/1

1/1

10/12

2/2

1/1

0/1

6/12

1/2

1/1

1/1

10/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

12/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

Director of Finance
and Contracting
Corporate
Secretary
Director of Nursing
(to 31 Dec 2008)
Medical Director
(to 7 Apr 2008)
Medical Director
(from 1 Apr 2008)

10/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

11/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

5/9

1/2

0/0

1/1

0/0

0/0

0/0

0/0

8/12

2/2

1/1

1/1

Mrs P Liversidge
Mr D Whitney
Miss D Fern
Mrs J Birkin
Mr E Morton
Mr P Briddock
Mr T Alty
Mr R Clarke
Mr W Lambert
Mr J McDonnell

Code of Governance
It is extremely important that the board of directors maintains the highest
standard of probity and demonstrates adherence to best practice in corporate
governance. Monitor published a Code of Governance in September 2006 to
assist with this aim and requires foundation trusts to make an annual declaration
of compliance with the Code.
Following the annual review, the board of directors confirms that, with the
exception of the points below, the principles of the code were applied and the
requirements met throughout the year to 31 March 2009.
The Trust’s approach to the application of the main and supporting principles of
the code is described throughout the body of this report.

52

The exceptions to compliance are with respect to provision C.2.1, as the
executive directors do not have fixed term or rolling contracts; and provision
C.2.2, as no non-executive director should have more than two reappointments
or serve more than three terms for a maximum of three years per term.
Board of Directors and Council of Governors
The chairman also chairs the council of governors meetings. This is a unique
position which ensures that there is effective communication between both
forums. The governors are invited to discuss strategic issues in detail at the
council of governors meetings and advise the chairman of their views. The
chairman ensures their views are considered at the board of directors meeting as
part of the decision making process.
Joint meetings between the board of directors and the council of governors are
held twice a year, and there have also been longer time-out sessions for the
directors and governors to look at specific themes. The chairman and nonexecutive directors also meet the governors to help promote shared
understanding of the non-executive role.
Where a dispute between the council of governors and the board of directors
occurs, in the first instance the chairman of the Trust would endeavour to resolve
the dispute.
Should the chairman not be willing or able to resolve the dispute the senior
independent director and the vice-chairman of the council of governors would
jointly attempt to resolve the dispute.
Should the senior independent director and the vice chairman of the council of
governors not be able to resolve the dispute, the board of directors, pursuant to
section 15(2) of Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act, will decide the disputed matter.
Board Sub-committees
The board of directors has delegated decision-making authority to the risk
committee, the audit committee, the clinical governance committee, the
remuneration committee and the charitable funds committee. These committees
are required to provide the board with written minutes of their proceedings.
Risk Committee
The risk committee provides objective assurance to the public and the board of
directors that the processes are in place across the Trust to ensure high quality
risk management processes are maintained and monitored. Its main duties are
defined in its terms of reference and include:





Review the Trust’s up to date risk profile;
Receive, consider and test the Trust’s corporate risk register, assurance
framework and annual statement on internal control and monitor the
effectiveness of the process;
Consider and challenge risk prioritisation as provided by the risk owners
including discussion of any perceived discrepancies;
Monitor the risk profile of the Trust against risk thresholds and provide the
board of directors with regular assessments of the risks facing the Trust
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based on ‘traffic light’ categorisation and an overview of the management of
identified risks;
Monitor the effectiveness of risk management systems within the Trust;
Review the risk management strategy and annual risk management report;
Oversee the development of an integrated risk management system;
Promote risk awareness and give advice to the board of directors;
Consider urgent and ad hoc issues and where appropriate recommend them
to the board or relevant committee with risk action plans;
Monitor progress on compliance with the standards for better health and
advise the board of directors on the Trust’s annual declaration; and
Liaise with the audit committee and the clinical governance committee to
ensure that any issues of common concern are addressed appropriately.

The committee is chaired by Richard Gregory, chairman of the Trust. The
attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2008 and 31
March 2009 was:
Name

Position

Mr R Gregory

Chairman

8/8

Mr M Hall

SID, Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Clinical Governance Committee
Chief Executive

7/8

Mr D Whitney
Mr E Morton

Meetings
Attended

5/8
8/8

During 2008/09 the risk committee has overseen the following areas of action:







Considered and approved the move to one system for risk management
within the Trust;
Approved the use of Datix as the database for risk management and the
timescale for transfer to the system;
Reviewed the corporate risk registers throughout the year;
Considered and recommended the approval of a revised risk management
strategy; and
Considered and recommended to the board a declaration of full compliance
against the Healthcare Commission’s standards for better health for 2008/09.
Noted the content of the Trust’s assurance framework and statement on
internal control.

Audit Committee
The audit committee provides objective assurance to the public and the board of
directors that the processes are in place across the Trust to ensure high quality
governance and internal control systems are maintained. Its main duties are
defined in its terms of reference and include:




Monitor the integrity of the financial statement of the Trust and any formal
announcements relating to the Trust’s financial performance;
Monitor governance, risk management and internal controls;
Monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function;
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Review and monitor external audit’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process. Develop and implement policy on the
employment of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;
Review of standing orders, financial instructions and scheme of delegation.
Review of schedule of losses and compensation;
Review of the annual fraud report;
Provide assurance to the board of directors on a regular basis; and
Report annually to the council of governors, identifying any matters in respect
of which it considers that action or improvement is needed.

The committee receives reports from internal and external auditors and
undertakes detailed examination of financial and value for money reports
received by the board of directors.
The committee is chaired by Michael Hall, senior independent director and nonexecutive director of the Trust. The attendance of committee members at
meetings held between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Mr M Hall
Mrs J Birkin
Miss D Fern (to Aug 08)
Mrs P Liversidge

SID and Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

5/5
5/5
2/2
5/5

The audit committee reviews the arrangements by which staff of the Chesterfield
Royal NHS foundation trust raise issues of concern in confidence about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting and control, clinical quality, patient
safety or other matters. The review includes consideration of the proportionate
and independent investigation of such matters and appropriate follow up action.
The audit committee has delegated authority to commission additional
investigative and advisory services outside of the audit code from the external
auditors, ensuring continued auditor objectivity and independence. No such work
was however undertaken during 2008/09.
During 2008/09 the audit committee has overseen the following areas of action:










Consider 32 internal audit reports and reviewed the recommendations
associated with the reports;
Reviewed the progress against the work programme for internal and external
audit and the counter fraud service;
Considered the annual accounts and associated documents and provided
assurance to the board of directors;
Considered and approved various ad hoc reports about the governance of the
Trust;
Increased counter fraud provision and promoted the counter fraud service;
Maintained close links with the risk committee and the clinical governance
committee;
Received the quarterly reports from Monitor;
Provided continuing monitoring of the financial status of the Trust;
Addressed consultation documents such as the review of the application of
the private patient income cap; and
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Tender process for internal audit contract and appointment of RSM Bentley
Jennison as internal auditors with effect from 1 April 2009.

Clinical Governance Committee
The clinical governance committee supports the board of directors by providing
objective assurance that processes are in place across the Trust to ensure high
quality clinical services are provided. Its main duties are defined in its terms of
reference and include:












Provide strategic assurance to the Trust in relation to clinical quality and
clinical governance issues.
Formally receive regular reports on clinical governance, quality assurance of
clinical services, and other related issues. In doing so, gain assurance that
appropriate action has been taken and consider whether further strategic
review is required.
Systematically review patient safety data and trends, including significant
clinical complaints, incidents and all inquests and ensure appropriate action
has been taken in respect of these.
Guide the development of key performance measures for clinical quality,
monitor compliance and ensure that action is taken when these performance
indicators suggest it is required.
Review the minutes of clinical management team and directorate clinical
governance committee and monitor the actions of these groups in respect of
their clinical governance responsibilities.
Performance manage the directorate clinical governance groups to ensure
appropriate action is taken in relation to the clinical issues raised.
Monitor the outcome of clinical accreditation visits, external reviews and
audits as appropriate.
Provide assurance to the board of directors that systems and processes in
operation within the Trust are functioning effectively.
Monitor the clinical aspects of the Trust's risk management strategy; and
Receive regular report from the Safeguarding Children Governance Group
and in doing so, gain assurance that appropriate action has been taken in
relation to national guidance and serious case reviews.

The committee is chaired by David Whitney, non-executive director of the Trust.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2008
and 31 March 2009 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Mr D Whitney
Mrs J Birkin
Miss D Fern (from Nov 08)
Mr B Lambert
Mr J McDonnell
Mr R Clarke

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Medical Director (to 7 Apr 08)
Medical Director (from 1 Apr 08)
Director of Nursing (to 31 Dec 08)

12/12
5/12
2/5
0/0
11/12
9/9

During 2008/09 the clinical governance committee has overseen the following
areas of action:
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The development of action plans as a result of reviews of patients’ care and
root cause analyses following untoward incidents, near misses or inquests.
The review and replacement of weighing scales throughout the Trust as a
following a national alert.
Review and updating of the Trust-wide clinical risk register.
A review of practices for the safe administration of chemotherapy, as part of
the expansion of this service on-site.
A review of the quality assurance processes in place within Pathology
following a Medicine & Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA)
review of blood bank, which raised significant concerns.
The development of further clinical quality indicators and a review of the
structure for reporting these through the clinical standards and governance
report, including the Dr Foster alerts in relation to mortality, length of stay and
re-admission rates.
Review of decontamination practices, to ensure appropriate safeguards are in
place.
Review of medication incidents and the implementation of a programme to
identify areas of improvement in relation to the prescribing and administration
of medications.
Monitored progress against the infection control targets and oversaw the
action taken in response to an outbreak of Clostridium difficile 027.
Preparation for the visits by the NHSLA to assess the Trust against the Level
2 general risk management standards.
Received regular updates and reviewed progress against the Trust’s
Safeguarding Children Action Plan, which includes the Trust’s response to
serious case reviews and national reports.
Received updates on the Trust’s progress in implementing the productive
ward programme.
The implementation of an action plan following a Dr Foster alert in relation to
Stroke mortality.

In addition, the committee received the following reports:






Quarterly clinical standards and governance report (Volumes I and II)
Annual Health and Safety and Environmental Risk Management Report
Medicines management annual report
Clinical Claims Annual Report
Results of the Healthcare Commission’s Hygiene Inspection

Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee has delegated responsibility for all aspects of
remuneration and terms of service for the chief executive and executive directors
of the Trust. Its responsibility includes all aspects of salary, provision for other
benefits including pensions, arrangements for termination of employment and
other contractual terms. The nomination and selection of candidates for
appointment as chief executive or executive director is undertaken separately by
an appointment committee.
The committee met on 11 November 2008 to consider the remuneration of the
chief executive and executive directors. Further details of the membership,
attendance and work of the remuneration committee are within the remuneration
report on page 95 of this report.
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Charitable Funds Committee
The charitable funds committee is responsible for making sure money donated to
the hospital is spent wisely. Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference
and include:













Receive the governing document of any newly registered fund for adoption.
Receive any recommendation for existing funds in respect of rationalising
such funds or increasing the number of funds;
Receive reports showing the income and expenditure position of the charity;
requests for expenditure in excess of £10,000, also details of legacies, and
donations in excess of £2,000. In addition the Committee will receive formal
feedback for expenditure in excess of £25,000.
Refer all requests for expenditure in excess of £100,000 to all trustees for
approval.
Review a statement of balances held and commitments, ensuring where
balances are held, that they can be justified in line with the reserves policy;
Receive reports on any irregularities in respect of fundraising or other matters
Be responsible for formulation of investment policies, the appointment of an
investment advisor/broker and for participation in any common investment
funds;
Receive reports reviewing investment performance
Receive details on the appointment of appropriate banking services
Receive the annual accounts/annual reports for the charity; and meet with all
trustees to approve these and to discuss any other charitable matters; and
Receive details of any audit reports relating to charitable funds

The committee is chaired by Deborah Fern, non-executive director of the Trust.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2008
and 31 March 2009 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Miss D Fern
Mr D Whitney
Mr P Briddock

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Director of Finance and Contracting

1/3
3/3
3/3

The meeting held on 15 December 2008 was the meeting of the executive and
non-executive members of the board as the corporate trustee at which all
members of the board (except the director of nursing) were in attendance.
During 2008/09 the charitable funds committee has overseen the following areas
of action:
The accounting records and the day-to-day administration of the funds are dealt
with by the finance department located at Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, Top Road, Calow, Chesterfield S44 5BL
The funds continue to support a wide range of charitable and health related
activities benefiting both patients and staff. In general they are used to purchase
the very varied additional goods and services that the NHS funding does not
provide. For example, during the year charitable donations were used to fund the
refurbishment of the chemotherapy suite, providing a modern facility and pleasant
surroundings for our patients and staff, and funds were also provided to purchase
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an animated garden in the new childrens’ outpatient department to improve the
patient environment.
To enhance the ward upgrade programme, patients’ day rooms and relatives’
rooms have been refurbished.
The ward charitable funds receive many donations specifically given to thank the
nursing and other ward staff and these are used for charitable activities that will
benefit staff. The charitable funds also enable consultants and other medical
staff to attend courses, not funded by the NHS, which will update them in the new
ideas and modern techniques in their specialties.
In March 2009 the Charity Commission approved the spending of a permanent
endowment bequeathed to us by Mrs Phyllis Annett. This Legacy is for the
benefit of Nurses and Physiotherapists and the intention is to purchase a fixed
ceiling mounted patient hoist system for installation in the new ward block.
The General Fund receives donations and legacies that can be used for any
charitable purpose relating to the NHS. This flexibility has been used to fund the
purchase of a state of the arts CT scanner to aid diagnosis and a Wii Fit to aid
the rehabilitation of patients in occupational therapy and physiotherapy.
The Trust has a team of volunteers who help patients and visitors navigate the
hospital site. There are around 30 volunteers and their contributions range from a
few hours a month to a weekly commitment. The management of the volunteer
project is funded by the NHS but the volunteers expenses that require
reimbursement are paid by the charity.
Other Commitments of Non-Executive Directors
In addition to participation at formal meetings of the board and its committees, the
non-executive directors devote time to other roles and responsibilities, eg
participation in project groups for service developments, attendance at
conferences and other events.
Directors’ biographies
Under section 17 and 19 of schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006,
the chairman, chief executive, executive and non-executive directors were
appointed to the Trust’s board of directors as follows:
Chairman: Richard Gregory OBE
Initially appointed 12 April 2006 to 11 April 2009
Re-appointed 12 April 2009 to 11 April 2012
Richard's board experience covers banking, media, regional development, higher
education, innovation and the arts.
Currently he is a non-executive director of National Australia Group Europe Ltd,
which includes the roles of Yorkshire Bank chair, director of Clydesdale Bank
PLC, and a member of the group's audit and risk committees.
He is also the senior non-executive director of Chesterfield based Imagesound
PLC, chair of Science City York and chair of Yorkshire Innovation, the regional
science and industry council.
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He is a former chairman of Sheffield Hallam University, former deputy chairman
of Yorkshire Forward, the regional development agency, and a former nonexecutive director of Business in the Community Ltd.
His executive career was in ITV, with Granada and Yorkshire Tyne Tees.
He was managing director of Yorkshire TV from 1997 to 2002, the culmination of
a 22-year career, which covered news, programme making, production and
broadcasting.
Awarded the OBE in June 2004, Richard lives in Hope and is married with two
grown up daughters. The family has lived in the Peak District for 30 years.
Non-executive director: Michael Hall DL Hon D Univ FCA FCMA FCT
Deputy chairman and senior independent director (from 29 November 2006)
Initially appointed 5 July 2005 to 4 July 2008
Re-appointed 5 July 2008 to 4 July 2011
Originally from Manchester, Michael qualified as a chartered accountant in 1963
and has worked in most aspects of commercial financial management
culminating in the position as financial director of an international group with a
turnover of £200m and 3000 employees.
Michael joined the University of Derby in November 1991. His role as deputy
vice-chancellor encompassed the implementation of a commercial approach and
attitude. Specific responsibilities included the various facilities provided in the
institution to accommodate the learning process, for example: catering, facilities,
including conferences, estates, finance, residences, reprographics and rooming.
Following his retirement in 2002, he was asked to serve as acting chief executive
of Derby Cityscape creating the urban regeneration for the City of Derby.
Subsequently, he was asked to chair Business Service East Midlands, an East
Midlands development agency activity formed to review the existing business
support arrangements for small and medium-sized enterprises, supported by
business link. During this time Michael was asked to chair the committee formed
to explore the possibility of merging the boards of North and Southern Derbyshire
chambers of commerce, and subsequently became the first president of the
Derbyshire chamber of commerce, where he is still a member of the board of the
enlarged organisation for Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire. He has served on the
national committee of the British Chamber of Commerce for the past five years,
chairs their National Audit Committee.
Michael's other interests include foundation governor of Derby High School and
the Anthony Gell School in Wirksworth, chairman of the Derbyshire Community
Foundation, trustee and finance director of the Arkwright Society in Cromford.
Michael lives at Ashford-in-the-water.
Non-executive director: Pam Liversidge
Appointed 6 July 2006 to 5 July 2009
Pam Liversidge is a Chartered Mechanical Engineer. During a career of over
thirty years in heavy industry she has worked as an engineer in the
manufacturing industry. She also spent five years as a Senior Executive in the

60

electricity industry during its privatisation. She now has interests in engineering
and medical device companies.
She is a Fellow of the Institution of Mechanical Engineers and was its first woman
President from May 1997 to May 1998, a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineers, of the City & Guilds Institute and of the Royal Society of Arts;
Chairman of Governors of Sheffield High School; a Member of the Company of
Cutlers in Hallamshire and a Liveryman of the Worshipful Company of Engineers.
She is a Guardian of the Sheffield Assay Office.
She is a Director of the Rainbow Seed Fund, a non-executive Director of the
Chesterfield Royal Foundation Trust Hospital and is local area Chairman of
Yorkshire Bank’s Financial Solutions Centre (FSC) in Sheffield.
Pam has
received a number of Honorary Doctorates from UK universities.
In the 1999 New Year’s Honours List Pam was awarded the OBE for her services
to the Institution of Mechanical Engineers and was made a Deputy Lieutenant of
South Yorkshire in October 1999. She held office as High Sheriff of South
Yorkshire from April 2004 to April 2005.
Pam lives in the Hope Valley.
Non-executive director: David Whitney
Appointed 1 August 2006 to 31 July 2009
David was formally a director of clinical management at Keele University, where
he was engaged in directing the clinical leadership programme. He is a visiting
professor at Sheffield University, where he teaches on the master programmes in
public health, and a non-executive director of Westfield Contributory Health
Scheme. He is also a part-time executive director for Kynixa Ltd a company
providing specialist clinical and vocational rehabilitation, and non-executive
director of One Health Group.
An NHS manager by background, David was a director of Trent Regional Health
Authority from 1985 to 1990 and chief executive of Central Sheffield University
Hospitals NHS Trust from 1990 to 2001.
David lives in Hathersage.
Non-executive director: Deborah Fern
Appointed 1 September 2006 to 31 August 2008
Reappointed 1 September 2008 to 31 August 2011
Deborah is an entrepreneur, who began her career working for Rolls Royce
where she qualified as a chartered secretary and an accountant. She later
founded and ran, for 15 years, a training company delivering government
programmes primarily for disadvantaged and disaffected people - which she sold
in February 2006. Deborah was a member of the Learning and Skills Council
adult learning committee and Leicestershire board. Currently Deborah is a
director of Derbyshire Association for the Blind, patron and divisional trustee
(Midlands and South West) of the NSPCC and is also studying for a joint honours
degree with the Open University.
Deborah lives in Darley Dale and is a member of the parochial church council for
Darley Dale.
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Non-executive director: Janet Birkin
Appointed 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2009
Janet began her career at Marks and Spencer where she worked for more than
thirty years, ending her career as the company's regional head of human
resources for the East Midlands. She was appointed chairman of Derbyshire
Police Authority in 2005, having been a member of the Authority since 2001. She
served as a county councillor (1988 to 1992) and a member of the Derbyshire
Probation Service Management Board (1993 to 1995). Janet was appointed as a
trustee director of Marks and Spencer Pension Trust Ltd in 2006.
Janet lives in Chesterfield and is a JP.
Chief executive: Eric Morton
The chief executive, Eric Morton, came into post in December 2001, having
previously been employed by the NHS trust as deputy chief executive and
director of finance and corporate services since January 1993. He is a qualified
accountant. He is past chairman of the Healthcare Financial Management
Association, and former vice-chairman of Chesterfield College.
His professional accountancy training was completed with Doncaster Council,
followed by various posts in several local authorities. He joined the National
Health Service in 1987, as senior assistant regional treasurer with Trent Regional
Health Authority. He moved to the Northern General Hospital in Sheffield as its
finance director, steering it to Wave 1 NHS trust status. He became director of
finance at North Derbyshire Health Authority in 1990, before transferring to the
Chesterfield Royal Hospital three months before it became an NHS trust.
Director of nursing: Ron Clarke
Retired 31 December 2008
Ron Clarke was a director since the former NHS trust’s beginning in 1993. After
completing his professional training, Ron held several clinical posts before
embarking on a management career. With his employment mainly in the Leeds
area, Ron’s previous management roles include that of patient service manager,
and director of nursing and assistant general manager.
In his original role as director of nursing, Ron was responsible for professional
leadership and advising on both nursing and clinical quality. He then took over
joint responsibility with the medical director for the clinical standards and
governance directorate, which leads on clinical governance, patient safety,
control of infection, research, patient involvement, education and training, and
workforce planning and development.
Corporate secretary: Terry Alty
Terry Alty, previously the NHS trust's executive director of personnel and hospital
services, was appointed in December 1993. He joined the NHS in 1984, after
working in local government and education. He held posts at Trent Regional
Health Authority in public health and policy development and at North Derbyshire
Health Authority in business planning, commissioning and contract management.
He joined Chesterfield Royal Hospital as contracts manager in April 1993.
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As corporate secretary he is responsible for human resource strategy, and for
employment and corporate governance.
Director of finance and contracting: Paul Briddock
Paul Briddock joined the Trust in March 2003. He is a chartered accountant,
having trained with Coopers and Lybrand, where he worked between 1990 and
1994, qualifying as an accountant in 1993.
Paul began his career in the NHS in 1994, joining Sheffield Children's Hospital
covering a number of posts, most latterly as their Director of Finance from 1999
to 2003.
At Chesterfield Royal Hospital Paul is responsible for the financial management
of the Trust, and leads contract negotiations with commissioners and capital
planning for the organisation.
Paul is also a visiting teaching fellow in the Faculty of Health and Wellbeing at
Sheffield Hallam University. He also sits on a number of national finance groups
including being chair of the HFMA Foundation Trust Technical Finance Group.
Medical Director: Bill Lambert
Retired 7 April 2008
Bill Lambert was a practising general surgeon, specialising in vascular surgery.
He has been at the forefront of the establishment and successful operation of the
Trust’s medical management and clinical directorate structure since his
appointment as a consultant surgeon in 1984. He was one of the country’s first
clinical directors, appointed in theatres in 1986, and has continuously held
medical management positions since then.
Bill became the Trust’s second medical director in 2000, and together with the
director of nursing, was co-director of the clinical standards and governance
directorate, which was established to integrate the research, clinical educational
and workforce planning agendas across the medical, nursing and allied health
professions. He was professionally accountable for clinical directors, chaired the
clinical management team and was the Trust’s Caldicott guardian.
Bill retired from the board of directors and from his employment as a consultant in
April 2008.
Medical Director: John McDonnell
From 1 April 2008
John McDonnell is a practicing obstetrician and gynaecologist. A consultant
since 1984, he has been actively involved in medical management since 1993.
After initially representing maternity and gynaecology as Clinical Director, his
remit then expanded to include acute and community paediatrics and child
psychiatry.
In 2003 he became the Trust's first Assistant Medical Director, leading the
development of the medical appraisal process. This will form the basis of medical
regulation as senior doctors move towards a formalised process of revalidation.
Appointed as Medical Director in spring 2008, John is co-director, with the Chief
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Nurse, of the clinical standards and governance directorate. The directorate
integrates the research, educational, workforce planning and clinical governance
agendas across the organisation.
He is professionally accountable for the Clinical Directors, chairs the Clinical
Management Team and is the Caldicott Guardian.
Register of Directors’ Interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the board
of directors. They must disclose details of company directorships or other
positions held, particularly if they involve companies or organisations likely to do
business, or possibly seeking to do business with the Trust. The public can
access the register at: www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making a request in
writing to:
The corporate secretary
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield
S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Contact with the Board
Information to contact directors of the board can be found through the Trust’s
Freedom of Information Act publication scheme. All directors can also be
contacted at communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
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COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
Composition, Roles and Responsibilities
Every NHS foundation trust is accountable to its local population and staff who
have registered for membership. All Trusts are required to have either a board or
council of governors.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a council to which 29
members are elected or appointed as governors:
17 public governors

Elected

From 5 boroughs/districts

4 staff governors

Elected

1 from medical and dental
1 from nursing and midwifery
1 from allied health professionals,
pharmacists and scientists
1 from all other staff groups

8 partner governors

Appointed

1 from Primary Care Trust
3 from local authorities
2 from education sector
2 from voluntary sector

The council of governors’ prime role is to represent the interests and views of
Trust members, the local community and other stakeholders in the stewardship of
the Trust. It has a right to be consulted on the Trust’s strategies and plans and
any matter of significance affecting the Trust or the services it provides.
The council of governors’ roles and responsibilities are outlined in law and are
detailed in the Trust’s constitution. The governors have a number of important
responsibilities to perform and are expected to act in the best interests of the
Trust. The council of governors would be expected to inform Monitor if it believed
that the Trust was at risk of breaching its terms of authorisation.
The council of governors is specifically responsible for the:





Appointment and removal of the chairman and other non-executive directors;
Approval of the appointment of the chief executive;
Appointment and removal of the Trust’s external auditor; and
Receipt of the annual report and accounts.

Link with Board of Directors
The council of governors holds the board of directors to account for the
performance of the Trust. This increases the level of local accountability in public
services.
The council of governors is required to advise the board of directors regarding
future plans and in monitoring performance against the Trust’s strategic direction.
By working in partnership with the board of directors, via receipt of significant
project information and via representation on specific groups and committees, the
views of governors are taken into consideration in board of directors’ discussions
and decision-making.
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To facilitate the board of directors’ understanding of the views of governors and
members, the minutes of the council of governor meetings are provided to the
board of directors, directors are invited to attend council of governors meetings
and a joint meeting of the council of governors and board of directors is held
twice yearly.
During the financial year ending 31 March 2009 the council of governors met nine
times to discuss and comment on a number of aspects of the functioning of the
Trust.
Election of Governors 2008 to 2009
Elections to the Trust’s council of governors in the public constituencies were
held in November 2008.
This year, because of staggered appointments put in place when the Trust was
granted foundation trust authorisation (1 January 2005), only the following public
governor seats fell vacant:



Two seats for the Chesterfield constituency
Two seats for the Bolsover constituency

In October 2008 and March 2009 elections were held for a staff governor to
represent the following constituency:


One seat for the nursing and midwifery constituency

Election Turnout
The Trust has always had good interest in, and a fair turnout for elections - and
for 2008/09 rates were as follows:
Public Governor Elections November 2008:
Constituency
Bolsover
Chesterfield

Number of
seats
2
2

Number of
candidates
8
10

% Turnout at
poll
32%
33%

The new governors took up their seats on the council on 1 January 2009. Two of
the four seats went to existing public governors who had opted to stand for reelection. This illustrates the membership’s support for the work the council is
undertaking on their behalf.
All appointments were made for a three-year term ending on 31 December 2011.
Staff Elections October 2008 and March 2009:
In October 2008, the Trust sought nominations for a vacant seat in the nursing
and midwifery constituency but no candidates put themselves forward at this
time. As a result, in March 2009 a second attempt was made to fill this seat with
details as follows:

66

Constituency
Nursing and midwifery

Number of
seats
1

Number of
candidates
5

% Turnout at
poll
21%

This appointment was made for a three-year term ending on 31 March 2012.
Board Assurance
Public governor elections 2008
The board of directors confirms that elections were held in accordance with the
rules stated within the Trust’s constitution. This is verified in the election report of
3 December 2008 as follows:
‘...This concludes my report of the voting in the above election. The election was
conducted in accordance with the rules and constitutional arrangements as set
out previously by the Trust, and Electoral Reform Services (ERS) is satisfied that
these were in accordance with accepted good electoral practice. I further confirm
that all candidates were eligible for the above constituencies...’

Matthew Reeve
Returning Officer, ERS
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Staff governor elections 2009
The board of directors confirms that elections were held in accordance with the
rules stated within the Trust’s constitution. This is verified in the election report of
31 March 2009, as follows:
‘…The elections were conducted in accordance with the rules and constitutional
arrangements as set out previously by the Trust, and ERS is satisfied that these
were in accordance with accepted good electoral practice…’
Yours sincerely

Tom Colling
Returning Officer
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
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Promoting Elections
The Trust continued to work to promote its annual elections and to encourage
greater interest and turnout. During the year it:


Work with Electoral Reform Services (the Trust’s independent scrutineers) to
adopt fair electoral processes that encourage participation of all active
members.
Maintained guidelines for running elections.




Worked with local media and other organisations (such as local councils) to
feature elections and the public governor role in newspaper, magazine and
radio media.
Ensured all members were fully informed about elections and the opportunity
to become a governor.



Following the 2008 elections there have been some changes to the membership
of the council of governors. These are included in the tables below.
Our Governors
Public Governors
There are five constituencies represented by 17 elected public governors. Brief
descriptions of the public constituency can be found in the Membership section of
this report. In the 2008 elections two public governors were re-elected and two
new public governors were appointed to vacant seats in the Bolsover and
Chesterfield constituencies.
Governor

Vote held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

Bolsover constituency – 3 seats
John Jeffrey

2005

1 Jan 2006

3 years

Kate Caulfield

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

Barbara Passey

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

John Jeffrey

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

(2nd term)

Barry Whittleston

31 Dec 2008
end of term

31 Dec 2009
resigned Jun 08

31 Dec 2010
31 Dec2011
re-elected

31 Dec 2011
new

Chesterfield constituency – 7 seats
31 Dec 2008

Terry Gilby

2005

1 Jan 2006

3 years

Janet Portman

2005

1 Jan 2006

3 years

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2009

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2009

Mick Portman

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

Dr Chris Day

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

Aileen DawsonPilling
Mererid Edwards
nd

(2

term)

(2nd term)
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didn’t re-stand

31 Dec 2008
end of term

31 Dec 2009
31 Dec 2010

Sheila Smith

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

Janet Portman

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

(2nd term)
(2nd term)

Dominic Frazer

31 Dec 2010
31 Dec 2011
re-elected

31 Dec 2011
new

North East Derbyshire constituency – 4 seats
Bernard Everett

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2009

Joyce Newton

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2009

Barry Jex

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

Carol Compton

2008

20 Mar 2008

3 years

19 Mar 2011

(2nd term)

Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley constituency – 2 seats
Peter Woolhouse

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2009

Pamela
Wildgoose

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

High Peak constituency – 1 seat
Pauline Fisher
2007
1 Jan 2008
nd

3 years

31 Dec 2010

(2nd term)

(2

term)

Staff Governors
There are four staff classes in the staff constituency.
Governor

Vote held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

Medical and dental class- 1 seat
1 January
Three
31 December
Dr Phil Rayner
2007
(2nd term)
2008
years
2010
Nursing and midwifery class – 1 seat
1 January
Three
31 December
Elaine Wyer
2007
2008
years
2010 retired May 08
Elections
held to
Seat currently
appoint from 1 April
vacant
09
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientist class – 1 seat
1 February
Three
31 January
Michael Edwards
2007
2007
years
2010
All other staff class – 1 seat
1 January
Three
31 December
Philip Cousins (2nd
2007
term)
2007
years
2010
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Partner Governors
There are eight appointed partner governor seats on the council of governors.
One new local authority governor was appointed in October 2008. Details are
presented in the table below.
Governor

Vote held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

Primary Care Trust – 1 seat
1 January
Three
31 December
2008
years
2010
Local Authority governors (appointments co-ordinated by Derbyshire Local
Government Association) – 3 seats
Councillor David
1 January
Three
31 December
2006
Allen
2007
years
2009
Councillor Carol
1 January
Three
31 December
2007
Walker
2008
years
2010
Councillor
1 October
Three
30 September
2008
Raymond Russell
2008
years
2011 new
Education governors (appointed by universities of Sheffield and Derby) – 2
seats
Three
31 December
Mike Wells
2007
January 2008
years
2010
Seat currently
Awaiting appointment
vacant
Voluntary sector governors (appointed by representatives of patient’s forum,
self-help forum, league of friends and North Derbyshire voluntary action) – 2
seats
1 January
Three
31 December
Joyce Cupitt
2007
2008
years
2010
1 January
Three
31 December
John Wardle
2007
2008
years
2010
Helen Dillistone
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Register of Governors’ Interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the
council of governors. Governors must disclose details of company directorships
or other positions held, particularly if they involve companies or organisations
likely to do business, or possibly seeking to do business with the Trust. The
public can access the register at: www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making a
request in writing to:
The corporate secretary
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Related Party Transactions
Under Financial Reporting 8 “Related Party Transactions”, the Trust is required to
disclose, in the annual accounts, any material transactions between the Trust and
members of the council of governos or parties related to them.
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There were no such transactions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009.
Attendance at the Council of Governors Meeting during the year April 2008
to March 2009

14/01/09

04/03/09

0

1

1

0

0
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1

0
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1

1
0
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
0
1
1

0
1
1
1
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
1
0
0

1
1

0
1

1
0
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
0
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
Didn’t re stand
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
Retired

Governor Expenses
Governors are not remunerated, but are entitled to claim expenses for costs
incurred while undertaking duties for the Trust as a governor, (i.e. travel
expenses to attend the council of governors meeting). The total amount of
expenses claim during the year from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 by governors
was £1,236.
Other Key Committees
The committees listed below also play a key role in the running of the council of
governors.
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Total

09/12/08

24/09/08

10/09/08

02/07/08

1
1
1
0
1
1
0
Resigned June 2008
1
0
1
0
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
0
1
1
0
1
1
1
0
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
Appointed January 2009
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
0
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
Appointed October 2008
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
Appointed January 2009
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1

05/11/08
Joint Mtg

Dave Allen, partner governor
Kate Caulfield, partner governor
Carol Compton, public governor
Phil Cousins, staff governor
Joyce Cupitt, partner governor
Aileen Dawson-Pilling, public governor
Chris Day, public governor
Helen Dillistone, partner governor
Mererid Edwards, public governor
Michael Edwards, staff governor
Bernard Everett, public governor
Dominic Frazer, public governor
Pauline Fisher, public governor
Terry Gilby, public governor
Barry Jex, public governor
John Jeffery, public governor
Joyce Newton, public governor
Barbara Passey, public governor
Janet Portman, public governor
Mick Portman, public governor
Philip Rayner, staff governor
Raymond Russell, partner governor
Shelia Smith, public governor
Carol Walker, partner governor
John Wardle, partner governor
Michael Wells partner governor
Barry Whittleston, public governor
Pam Wildgoose, public governor
Peter Woolhouse, public governor
Elaine Wyer, staff governor

14/05/08
Joint Mtg

22/04/08

A record is kept of the attendance at council of governor meetings. Below is the
table showing, which Governors have attended during the year. During the year
the nominations committee reviews the attendance of governors at meetings on
behalf of the council of governors and takes appropriate action to address any
concerns.

6 /9
1 /2
3 /9
9 /9
8/9
9 /9
6 /9
5 /9
5 /9
7 /9
9 /9
2 /2
7 /9
4 /7
9 /9
8 /9
8 /9
6 /9
9 /9
6 /9
8 /9
3 /4
9 /9
7 /9
7 /9
6 /9
2 /2
8 /9
8 /9
2 /2

Nominations Committee
The nominations committee was established in November 2006 to strengthen the
governance of the council of governors. The committee is a sub-committee of
the council of governors and has been authorised to undertaken a number of key
tasks including:






Overseeing the recruitment of non-executive directors via an appointments
committee convened for the purpose;
Managing and reviewing the appraisals of the chairman, non-executive
directors and council of governors;
Reviewing and making recommendations to the council of governors on the
annual uprating of the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive
directors;
Overseeing the periodic review of the remuneration packages for nonexecutive directors via a committee convened for the purpose; and
Considering and reviewing the position of the governors in respect of any
concerns relating to attendance, conduct or eligibility.

The nominations committee does not have decision-making powers, but does
make recommendations to the council of governors.
The composition of membership of the nominations committee is:
The chairman of the Trust;
Four public governors (inc deputy chairman of the sub-committee and council of
governors);
Two staff governors; and
Two partner governors.
Members of the committee other than the chairman are appointed for between
one and three years.
The committee is chaired by Richard Gregory, chairman. The attendance of
committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009
was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Sheila Smith
Richard Gregory
Carol Walker
Barry Jex
John Jeffrey
Phil Rayner
Pam Wildgoose
Michael Edwards
Helen Dillistone

Public Governor
Chairman
Partner Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor
Staff Governor
Public Governor
Staff Governor
Partner Governor

7/7
4/7
6/7
7/7
4/7
6/7
6/7
4/7
1/7

The council of governors held elections for membership of the sub committees
following the election held in December 2008 for the membership of the council of
governors. The governor elected to the nominations committee was Mrs Joyce
Newton.
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The committee meets a minimum of two times a year in private to complete its
delegated business and minutes are provided to the private session of the council
of governors for information.
Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2009
The committee has met seven times during 2008/09 and has undertaken the
following pieces of work:
1) Appointments




Reviewed the process for the appointment of chairman, senior independent
director and non-executive directors;
Considered and recommended the reappointment of the chairman; and
Considered and recommended the reappointment of two non-executive
directors.

There were no new non-executive director appointments to the board of directors
between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009
2) Appraisal systems



Reviewed the appraisal systems for the council of governors, chairman and
non-executive directors; and
During the year the committee oversaw the appraisal processes, reviewed a
number of reports and made recommendations to the council of governors.

2a) Chairman’s appraisal




Managed the timetable and process for the appraisal;
Reviewed the results of the appraisal and agreed the report for presentation
to the council of governors; and
Oversaw the development of the action plan resulting from the appraisal.

2b) Non – executive directors



Managed the timetable and process for the appraisal; and
Reviewed the results of the appraisal and developed a summary report for
presentation to the council of governors.

2c) Council of governors




Managed the timetable and process for the appraisal;
Reviewed the results of the appraisal and development of the composite
report presented to the council of governors for review and approval; and
Appointed a deputy chair of the nominations committee and recommended
that the same individual be appointed as deputy chair of the council of
governors.

3) Remuneration


Considered and made recommendations on the annual uprating of the
remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors for the current and
future years.
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4) Governor attendance


Monitored the attendance and conduct of governors.

5) Constitution


Considered the updated constitution.

Patient and Public Involvement Committee (PPI Committee)
The PPI committee was established in November 2006 to strengthen the Trust’s
PPI governance and to recognise the special role and responsibility of the council
of governors in representing the local community’s interests. The committee is a
sub-committee of the council of governors and its main role is to monitor the
Trust’s performance in meeting patient and public involvement responsibilities.
Emphasis is placed on issues relating to the patients experience to ensure
services are of a high standard and patient centred.
The objective of the committee is to build a partnership between the Trust,
patients and the public which is central to the modernisation of the health service.
Patient and pubic involvement contributes to:






Strengthening accountability to local communities;
Developing local health services which genuinely respond to patients and
carers;
A sense of ownership and Trust;
Monitoring the Trust’s performance in meeting PPI responsibilities; and
Making recommendations to the Trust’s PPI Review Group.

The function of the committee is to:








Be actively involved in the patient and public involvement agenda;
Review and influence the Trust’s strategy and development plan, and be
consulted on changes and developments;
Ensure that the council of governors is updated on the PPI agenda including
feedback from patients and the public, sharing good practice and action plans
developed to improve local services;
Review reports and action plans and scrutinise these to ensure appropriate
action has been identified to support a patient centred approach;
Where required, represent the council of governors on related projects and
initiatives e.g. environment checks, patient meals, standards for better health
and staff education;
Develop links with the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) and
complaints department; and
Nominate one or more representatives to serve on the patient council set up
by Sheffield University’s medical school.

The committee focuses key aspects of the patient’s experience, which include:







Food;
Cleanliness;
The environment;
Complaints and feedback;
Site facilities e.g. access, car parking, signposting; and
All other aspects of customer service.
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The PPI committee does not have decision-making powers, but does make
recommendations to the council of governors.
The composition of the membership of the PPI committee is:
Eight public governors (one public governor is chairman of the sub-committee);
One voluntary sector governor;
One education governor;
One Primary Care Trust (PCT governor); and
Chairman of the Trust.
The committee is also attended by:
Chief nurse;
Head of clinical governance (and/or clinical governance advisor);
Director of allied clinical and facilities services; and
PPI co-ordinator.
Members of the committee other than the chairman are appointed for between
one and three years.
The council of governors held elections for membership of the sub committees
following the election held in December 2008 for the membership of the council of
governors. The governors elected to the PPI committee were Mr Barry
Whittleston and Mrs Janet Portman.
The committee meets a minimum of two times a year in private to complete its
business and minutes are provided to the open session of the council of
governors for information.
Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2009
The committee has met four times during 2008/09 and has continued to make
progress in becoming more integrated within the Trust and being directly involved
in finding out what patients think by focusing on building a partnership between
the Trust, patients and the public which is central to the modernisation of the
health service.
As part of the committees work a number of priorities were identified to give
members direction and to support them in achieving their objectives. The
committee has taken part in a number of projects and the following details
examples:






Continued to be actively involved in the front entrance re-development
project;
Undertaken a regular programme of unannounced ward and department visits
to assess cleanliness. In addition, members of the committee joined Trust
staff to undertake the PEAT inspection;
Members have continued to support the Trust in its clean hands campaign
and the introduction of increased facilities for hand washing on the wards for
staff, patients and visitors. These changes in practice have helped the Trust
in its continued efforts to prevent and reduce infection;
Worked in partnership with self help groups from across Derbyshire to
complete an access audit of toilet and bathrooms facilities within the hospital.
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Actions have been identified as a result of this and findings have been used
to influence plans for ward upgrades and the development of new wards;
Developed a protocol to support committee members when carrying out ward
visits;
Members of the committee completed a training session to develop interview
skills which would support them when talking to patients on the wards about
their experience;
Developed a tool in order to collect information from patients when
undertaking structured interviews;
Undertaken a regular programme of unannounced ward visits to talk to
patients about their experience of being in hospital;
Supported the Trust in their decision not to extend the use of mobile phones
within ward areas.
Began work to review the timeliness of the administration of medicines at a
ward level and this work will be taken forward for 2009-10; and
Submitted a commentary on the Trust’s performance in line with the
Healthcare Commissions Standards for Better Health.

Outreach Committee
The outreach committee was set up in October 2007 to support member
recruitment, engagement and involvement. The committee is a sub-committee of
the council of governors and undertakes the following functions:


Review and analysis of the Trust’s membership – recommending an annual
work programme for governors to support membership recruitment, retention
and development;



Engagement with local forums, groups and organisations - promoting
membership and the work of governors and the council; and



Development and encouraging of two-way dialogue and involvement between
the council and its constituency members.

The outreach committee does not have decision-making powers, but does make
recommendations to the council of governors.
Membership of the outreach committee is voluntary and currently comprises:
The deputy chairman of the council of governors (chairman of the subcommittee);
Two further public governors Two staff governors;
One staff governor; and
One partner governor.
Members of the committee are appointed for between one and three years.
Membership is not static and interested governors can be considered for
membership at any point in time.
During 2008/09 the outreach committee welcomed a new member, Mr Philip
Cousins, as a staff governor.
The committee meets a minimum of four times a year in private to complete its
business and minutes are provided to the open session of the council of
governors for information.
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Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2009
The outreach committee is key to membership engagement; and to developing
processes and methods that will enable public governors in particular to have
contact with their membership. It is acknowledged that this is one of the most
challenging areas of foundation trust status.
The Trust has developed a corporate identity for the council of governors,
through the outreach committee, to demonstrate an acknowledgement of the
working arrangements between the Trust and the council. This was adopted in
July 2008 and used on public relations materials, membership correspondence,
promotional items etc:

The committee has focussed its work on putting members in touch with
governors. This has included:






Membership evenings to promote the Trust’s innovative prostate cancer
service and to seek views on a £13m ward development proposal;
Publication of a membership magazine;
A membership day to unveil a new £5m unit for specialist Children’s Services
(The Den);
Arranging attendance at key local events – for example the 2008 Ashover
show; and
Governor promotional events in local libraries.

The committee’s annual plan for 2009/10 will continue this work.
Corporate Citizenship Committee (CCC)
The corporate citizenship committee was established in September 2007 to
support the Trust in its contribution to the wider health and sustainability of the
local population. The committee is a sub-committee of both the board of
directors and the council of governors and is tasked with examining the Trust
strategy on:







Carbon management;
Sustainable local food;
Involvement of and with local business;
Green travel plans;
Waste management; and
Procurement.

The corporate citizenship committee does not have decision-making powers, but
does make recommendations to the board of directors and to the council of
governors.
The membership of the corporate citizenship includes representation from:
The chairman of the Trust (chairman of the sub-committee);
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Non-executive directors;
Executive directors;
Council of governors;
Staff members.
The committee aims to meet on a quarterly basis and minutes from meetings are
provided to the board of directors and to the open session of the council of
governors for information.
Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2009
The committee has met four times during 2008/09 and has undertaken work to
become actively engaged in the whole of the corporate citizenship agenda.
This has included:

















Sign up to wave three of the Carbon Trust NHS carbon management
programme;
Opportunities workshop to develop ideas behind carbon reduction proposals;
Agreement of carbon management including reduction targets;
Successful bid for DH energy funding towards replacement of boilers;
Appointment of energy manager within estates;
Event for local businesses as part of the Public Sector Food Procurement
initiative;
Opening of Café@theRoyal in November 2008;
Local sourcing of products for Trust catering concession;
Inclusion of capital funding for investment in patient feeding over next 2 years;
Adoption of green travel plan;
Staff travel survey;
Improvement of site footpaths;
Introduction of ‘on your bike’ scheme;
Increased engagement with local forums;
Improved waste recycling facilities; and
Introduction of recyclable sharps containers.
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MEMBERSHIP
Membership Overview 2008 to 2009
The Trust has two membership constituencies – community and staff. It does not
host a patient constituency.
Our Constituencies
The Trust’s public constituency is defined as ‘those people living in specific wards
of local authorities within the Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust area’. It
represents a catchment population of over 400,000 – with more than 335,000
eligible for foundation trust membership.
Residents of the following local government administrative areas are eligible for
membership of the NHS foundation trust:
Chesterfield Borough (all wards)
Bolsover District (all wards)
North-East Derbyshire District (all wards)
Derbyshire Dales District and Amber Valley Borough District (the wards of
Alfreton, Alport, Belper Central, Belper East, Belper North, Belper South,
Bakewell, Bradwell, Calver, Chatsworth, Codnor and Waingroves, Crich, Darley
Dale, Hartington and Taddington, Hathersage and Eyam, Heage and Ambergate,
Ironville and Riddings, Lathkill and Bradford, Litton and Longstone, Masson,
Matlock All Saints, Matlock St Giles, Ripley, Ripley and Marehay, Somercotes,
Stanton, Swanwick, Tideswell, Wingfield, Winster and South Darley)
High Peak Borough (the wards of Barms, Blackbrook, Burbage, Buxton Central,
Chapel East, Chapel West, Corbar, Cote Heath, Hayfield, Hope Valley,
Limestone Peak, New Mills East, New Mills West, Sett, Stone Bench, Temple
and Whaley Bridge)
Our catchment area:
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At the present time we also have 173 affiliated members. These are mainly
residents of the Derbyshire Dales, High Peak Borough and Amber Valley
Borough who live in wards currently outside our current constitutional catchment
area.
Co-terminosity
In the north of the county, the PCT has co-terminosity with several local authority
boundaries:







Chesterfield Borough Council.
North-East Derbyshire District Council
Bolsover District Council
High Peak Borough Council
Derbyshire Dales District Council
Amber Valley Borough Council

Around 95% of the patients treated at Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
foundation trust as in-patients, day cases and outpatients live in these areas.
However residents in some council wards also look to bordering acute providers
for their routine care:




North-East Derbyshire and Bolsover District - Sheffield, Worksop and
Mansfield.
Derbyshire Dales and Amber Valley – Southern Derbyshire and Mansfield
High Peak - Stockport, Manchester and Macclesfield.

A handful of the affiliated members of the foundation trust live in these border
areas.
Eligible Population Information and Community Membership Make-up
Derbyshire (excluding the city of Derby – population 233,750) has a population of
747,520 (1). This is forecast to increase to around 828,000 by 2028.
Each of the county’s nine main towns (not all in the foundation trust’s catchment
area) has populations of over 20,000 (Belper, Buxton, Chesterfield, Dronfield,
Glossop, Ilkeston, Long Eaton, Ripley and Swadlincote), with the largest
concentration of population in the Chesterfield area. In contrast, some 16% of
Derbyshire’s population live in sparsely populated rural areas.
Only 1.5% of Derbyshire’s population classify themselves as being from ethnic
minority backgrounds, a much smaller proportion than the 9.1% average for
England as a whole.
Of the districts, only Erewash, Chesterfield and South Derbyshire have sizeable
ethnic minority populations. The largest of the three broad minority ethnic groups
is the Indian group, which makes up 0.4% of the total population.
A high proportion of Derbyshire’s population was born in England (95.5%). This
compares with 87.4% for England. 1.4% of the county’s population was born
outside the European Union.
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(1)
(2)

Source: Registrar General's District mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office for National Statistics
ONS-based 2003 Sub national Population Projections.

* Source: Derbyshire County Council Race Equality Scheme 2005 – 2008

Our Community Membership – Overall Size and Movements 2008 to 2009
Last year
At year start (1 April 2008)
New members
Members leaving
Affiliated members
At year-end (31 March
2009)

11,770
3,874
268
173*
15,549

Estimated
year
15,549
750
250
50
16,099

for

next

* People who have opted to register for membership, although they live just outside our constitutional catchment
area and therefore they do not have voting rights.

Last year, the Trust said it would aim to grow its membership by an estimated
2,500 – specifically in areas of its catchment that were under-represented.
Through a targeted recruitment campaign, aimed at specific postcode and council
ward areas, membership increased from 12,000 in February 2009, to almost
15,500 by 31 March. The return rate for the campaign was 4% - once again
showing that local people have a real interest in the Trust’s future.
The foundation trust continues to undertake regular data cleansing, to ensure the
families of deceased patients do not receive unwanted membership
correspondence. Cleansing also ensure resignations, ‘gone aways’ and members
who have left the catchment area are removed from the database. This year,
through data cleansing, 260 community members of the foundation trust were
removed from the database.
The overall growth for membership during 2008/09 was therefore 3,784
members.
Eligible Population and Community Membership Breakdown (31 March 2009)
Constituency

Total number
of members

Total
population of
constituency*

69359
98884
94589

Number
eligible for
membership*
(aged 16
years and
over)
55681
79863
77049

Number of
members
as a
percentage
of eligible
population
4.4%
7.3%
2.8%

Bolsover
Chesterfield
Derbyshire Dales &
North Amber Valley
High Peak
North-East
Derbyshire
Totals

2443
5798
2125
738
4272

57029
96901

45577
79030

1.6%
5.4%

15,376

416,762

337,200

4.6%

*Source: Registrar General’s Mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office of National Statistics (ONS)
**Figures only include Derbyshire Dales, as a breakdown to account for the North of Amber Valley only – ie.
those who are eligible for community membership of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust are not
available.
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Constituency Membership Breakdown by Council Ward at 31 March 2009
To help with membership growth and to enable under-represented areas to be
targeted in recruitment campaigns, the Trust is now able to access membership
down to council ward level. The following tables illustrate membership by eligible
council ward for each of the public constituencies:
Bolsover constituency
Barlborough
Blackwell
Bolsover North West
Bolsover South
Bolsover West
Clowne North
Clowne South
Elmton-with-Creswell
Pinxton
Pleasley
Scarcliffe
Shirebrook East
Shirebrook Langwith
Shirebrook North West
Shirebrook South East
Shirebrook South West
South Normanton East
South Normanton West
Tibshelf
Whitwell
Total membership

166
131
217
204
184
201
194
142
46
133
125
40
57
63
44
73
61
124
161
83
2443

Chesterfield constituency
Barrow Hill and New Whittington
Brimington North
Brimington South
Brockwell
Dunston
Hasland
Hollingwood and Inkersall
Holmebrook
Linacre
Loundsley Green
Lowgates and Woodthorpe
Middlecroft and Poolsbrook
Moor
Old Whittington
Rother
St Helen's
St Leonard's
Walton
West
Total membership

274
198
346
366
340
378
383
212
249
238
220
225
279
200
322
230
433
439
466
5798
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Derbyshire Dales & North Amber Valley constituency
Alfreton
111
Bakewell
172
Bradwell
85
Calver
126
Chatsworth
63
Codnor and Waingroves
23
Crich
46
Darley Dale
207
Hartington and Taddington
43
Hathersage and Eyam
166
Heage and Ambergate
36
Ironville and Riddings
48
Lathkill and Bradford
55
Litton and Longstone
47
Masson
72
Matlock All Saints
177
Matlock St Giles
209
Ripley
52
Ripley and Marehay
44
Somercotes
49
Stanton
68
Swanwick
46
Tideswell
64
Wingfield
37
Winster and South Darley
79
Total membership
2125
High Peak constituency
Barms
Blackbrook
Burbage
Buxton Central
Chapel East
Chapel West
Corbar
Cote Heath
Hayfield
Hope Valley
Limestone Peak
New Mills East
New Mills West
Sett
Stone Bench
Temple
Whaley Bridge
Total membership

27
29
15
56
28
37
51
47
28
132
28
50
35
18
49
39
69
738
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North East Derbyshire constituency
Ashover
Barlow and Holmesfield
Brampton and Walton
Clay Cross North
Clay Cross South
Coal Aston
Dronfield North
Dronfield South
Dronfield Woodhouse
Eckington North
Eckington South
Gosforth Valley
Grassmoor
Holmewood and Heath
Killamarsh East
Killamarsh West
North Wingfield Central
Pilsley and Morton
Renishaw
Ridgeway and Marsh Lane
Shirland
Sutton
Tupton
Unstone
Wingerworth
Total membership

154
62
218
321
216
155
140
216
126
117
110
189
190
144
91
133
273
249
74
43
170
276
160
59
386
4272

Age Report 2008 to 2009
Derbyshire has an older age structure than England with 16.7% of the population
being in the 65+ age group. There are fewer children in the 0-15 age group
(19.6%) compared to the national average (20.2%). The proportion of population
of working age is only slightly lower in Derbyshire (63.6%) than in England as a
whole (63.9%). The age structure of Derbyshire’s ethnic minority population is
significantly younger with around one-third (33.2%) under 15 years old, compared
to just a fifth (19.5%) of white people.
Source: Derbyshire County Council Race Equality Scheme 2005 – 2008

Our Community Membership by Age at 31 March 2009

Age
16-22
23-35
36-50
51-65
66-80
81+
Unknown
Total

Bolsover
33
178
518
764
616
162
172
2,443

Dales/ North
Amber
Chesterfield Valley
68
27
451
102
1190
369
1675
641
1400
614
445
230
569
142
5,798
2,125

* Excluding 173 affiliated members
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High Peak
9
50
135
241
200
63
40
738

North-East
Derbyshire
34
283
762
1132
1172
368
321
4,272

Total public
membership
171
1064
2974
4653
4002
1268
1245
15,376*

Age Representation at 31 March 2009
Age

Number of members

Age 16-22
Age 23-35
Age 36 to 50:
Age 51 to 65:
Age 66 to 80:
Age 80+:
Age not stated:
Total

171
1064
2974
4653
4002
1268
1244
15,376*

Representing % of
current membership
1.1%
7.0%
19.3%
30.3%
26.0%
8.2%
8.1%
100.0%

* Excluding 173 affiliated members

Eligible Population by Age in Each Class of the Constituency at 31 March 2009*
Population age
groups (ONS)

Eligible in
Bolsover

Eligible in
Chesterfield

Eligible in
High Peak

Eligible in
North-East
Derbyshire

22649
21426
18276
12907
4605
79,863

Eligible in
Derbyshire
Dales/North
Amber
Valley**
19560
20414
19902
12425
4748
77,049

15-34
35-49
50-64
65-79
80+
Total population
of constituency
eligible for
membership
Total population
of constituency

16076
14871
12870
8919
2945
55,681

11945
12963
11146
6883
2640
45,577

20412
21049
20263
13122
4184
79,030

69,359

98,884

94,589

57,029

96,901

*Source: Registrar General’s Mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office of National Statistics (ONS)
**Figures only include Derbyshire Dales as a breakdown to account for the North of Amber Valley only – ie
those who are eligible for community membership of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not
available.

Ethnicity report 2008 to 2009
Ethnicity – Membership Breakdown at 31 March 2009

Ethnicity
Asian
Black
Mixed
Other
White
Unknown
Totals

Bolsover
8
5
1
3
2281
145
2,443

Chesterfield
37
34
8
16
5074
629
5,798

* Excluding 173 affiliated members
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Dales/
North
Amber
Valley
4
1
1
7
1961
151
2,125

High
Peak
0
1
2
0
708
27
738

North-East
Derbyshire
14
6
6
3
3884
358
4,272

Ethnic
group
totals
63
47
18
29
13908
1310
15,376*

Gender Report 2008 to 2009
Gender Breakdown by Constituency at 31 March 2009

Gender
Female
Male
Not stated
Total

Bolsover
1294
1138
11
2,443

Chesterfield
3117
2620
61
5,798

Dales/
North
Amber
Valley
1198
913
14
2,125

High
Peak
415
319
4
738

North-East
Derbyshire
2250
1995
27
4,272

Ethnic
group
totals
8274
6985
117
15,376*

* Excluding 173 affiliated members

Gender Breakdown by Percentage at 31 March 2009
Gender
Female
Male
Not stated
Total

Total membership
8274
6985
117
15,376*

Gender percentage
54%
45%
1%
100%

* Excluding 173 affiliated members

Socio-economic Report 2008 to 2009
Using 2001 census information for all constituency classes we have an overall
picture of each constituency for targets for membership. We have also analysed
our membership using the consumer classifications ACORN.*
ACORN is a geo-demographic tool used to identify and understand the UK
population and the demand for products and services. It is often used to make
informed decisions on where direct marketing campaigns will be most effective.
ACORN classifies all 1.9m UK postcodes, which have been described using over
125 demographic statistics and 287 lifestyle variables within England, Scotland,
Wales and Northern Ireland. From this classification we can see that our
membership has the following social grade groupings.
Socio-economic Groupings at 31 March 2009
Grouping

Number of members

Potential membership
pool (ACORN
statistics)

ABC1
C2
D
E
Unclassifiable
Total

7396
5671
641
1641
27
15376*

112785
140808
51024
97347
54
402018

* Excluding 173 affiliated members
Note: The Trust’s external membership management company Computershare provided the socio economic
profile above, which was mapped from ACORN to National Readership Survey (NRS) gradings (A, B, C1, C2, D
and E).
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Staff Membership 2008 to 2009
Staff Membership Size and Movements 2008 to 2009
Last year
At year start (1 April 2008)
New members
Members leaving
Additions through data corrections
Deletions through data corrections
At year-end (31 March 2009)

3207
703
562
121
0
3469

Estimated
year
3469
600
570
0
0
3499

for

next

The staff constituency comprises:



Permanent members of staff
Temporary members of staff who have been employed in any capacity by the
organisation for a minimum continuous period of one year.

For directly employed staff membership runs on an opt-out basis – ie. all
qualifying staff are automatically members unless they seek to opt out. All
permanent contract holders are eligible for membership from the date they take
up their employment.
The staff constituency is broken down into four classes:





Medical and dental staff
Nursing and midwifery staff
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff

By sub-dividing the staff constituency in this way, representation from each major
staff grouping is possible, and therefore a balanced contribution from staff
members is achievable.
Breakdown of Staff Membership within Staff Constituencies at 31 March 2009:
Constituency

Medical and dental
Nursing and midwifery
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff
Total

Number of
members
(at 31 March 2009)
231
1598
248
1392
3469

Class
Medical and dental
Nursing and midwifery
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff
Total

Membership %
6.7%
46.1%
7.1%
40.1%
100%
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Developing a Representative Membership
Current Position
During 2008 to 2009, the prime source for recruiting members was, and remains,
those people who have an existing relationship with the Royal Hospital. This can
be as past and present patients or carers, or those who are potential users of the
service as residents of North Derbyshire (or the Trust’s defined catchment area).
The Trust will continue to manage its membership effectively, with cleansing and
review exercises undertaken regularly (six to eight times per year). This will
ensure that as far as possible inappropriate contacts are not made.
Community Membership
At 31 March 2009, the Trust was ahead of where it expected to be with
community membership (in terms of number). Within its catchment area,
337,200 local people are eligible for membership. At 31 March 2009, 15,376
members had registered with the foundation trust – 4.6% of the eligible
population.
The focus for this year is not large growth in terms of membership number.
Instead, our recruitment plans will look to add to these broad areas:






Ages 16-22
Ages 23-35
Black and ethnic minority groups
Specific council ward/postcode areas of all five constituencies
Socio-economic groups D and E

Staff Membership
The Trust’s aim is to have 90% of eligible employees registered as members.
Since foundation status was granted in 2005, staff membership has varied
between 92% and 99%. At 31 March 2009 membership stood at around the 99%
mark, with no opt outs recorded during 2008/09. The Trust does not expect the
position to change over the financial year 2009/10.
Representative Recruitment Plans
During 2008 to 2009, the Trust continued to work with secondary schools to
promote its Strength in numbers campaign. Every school in the Trust’s
catchment area received leaflets and posters, encouraging young people aged
16-19 to register for membership. Schools were also invited to have a visit from
governors, so they can learn more about the foundation trust, its role in the
community and how it is accountable to local people. The Trust also contributed
to a monthly School Matters magazine, which is distributed to all schools across
Derbyshire – to raise awareness of membership and encourage youngsters to
sign up. The Trust’s 16-19 membership saw a small increase over the last
financial year, but it remains an area of concern to be addressed.
A working party of governors examined the Trust’s constitution over the year reviewing the membership eligibility criteria for council wards. The outreach
committee (see below) requested that additional council wards be brought into
the Trust’s membership catchment area so an increased number of local people
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could have full membership status. This was particularly important for the
Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley area, where many people were
registered with affiliate membership status only. This expansion was supported
and a full list of eligible council wards can be seen on page 82 of this report.
The Trust is mindful that with almost 5% of its eligible population already
registered as members, the ‘pot’ of willing volunteers has grown smaller. The
challenge for this year is to undertake smaller membership recruitment exercises,
which will seek to target precise council ward areas and therefore specific socioeconomic groups.
Membership Recruitment Objectives
The Trust continues to believe that membership should be ‘voluntary’ - to show
definite willing and interested participation. Our membership recruitment
objectives for 2008 to 2009 were:









To ensure all current and future staff working for the Trust (including
contracted-out staff) were aware of staff membership, what it means for them
and to encourage them not to decline membership
To strive to for the composition of community membership to reflect diversity geographically spread across our proposed catchment area and reflecting
age, gender, ethnicity and socio-economic groups
To keep accurate and informative databases of members to meet regulatory
requirements and to provide a tool for membership development
To define the right and responsibilities of membership to strengthen the
partnership between the Trust and its members
To recognise and use members as a valuable resource
To provide targeted communications that offer timely, consistent and regular
messages about membership
To use various methods to deliver the message about membership
To set up a two-way feedback system, so staff and community members have
suitable channels to feedback their ideas and concerns, raise issues, ask
questions and find out more information

Engaging Our Membership
By the end of the financial year, the Trust had 15,549 local people registered as
community members (including affiliates) and a further 3,429 staff members.
This is an audience of almost 20,000 people to seek views and opinions from.
We are keen to meet the challenge of ensuring our members are involved,
informed and on-board. Membership is an integral part of our day-to-day
business and is an important part of our success. It is vital that both the Trust
and governors are able to reach and interact with this large audience.
Responsibility for membership engagement falls to the Trust’s communications
team, through the chief executive’s directorate. The team work closely with the
Council of Governor’s outreach committee to decide an annual engagement plan
and membership strategy. Since we became an NHS foundation trust, we have
actively sought opinion and views from governors and members – to help shape
services, develop projects and to see plans come to fruition. Last year, members
had the opportunity to be involved with the Trust in a number of ways, including
the following:
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Prostate cancer membership evening – around 500 members attended one of
two evenings which outlined and promoted the Trust’s prostate cancer service
and the work of the ‘nurse of the year’, - nurse consultant Nikki James. Members
had the opportunity to ask questions and receive advice about the illness.
Patients were also present to tell members about their experiences at
Chesterfield Royal Hospital.
Carbon management debate – in September 2008, around 60 staff and
community members joined Trust board and council of governor representatives
to debate – with the Carbon Trust – ways that the hospital could reduce its
carbon footprint.
Improving quality through capacity – the Trust’s proposal to build three new
wards on site (at a cost of around £14.5m upwards) was discussed with over 200
staff and community members at a presentation evening in January 2009. Part of
the Trust’s pre-planning application process, members were asked to put forward
their views on the planned development and to offer ideas and suggestions about
what they thought would make the development a success.
Expansion of car parking – through the membership magazine, members were
asked to state how they would choose to travel to hospital and why. Responses
revealed that public transport remains a difficult choice for patients who live in the
more rural areas of the Trust’s catchment. The feedback helped the Trust to
secure a planning application for a further 520 car parking spaces on site. As
part of the scheme the Trust also agreed to support the funding of a cycle route
from the town centre to the hospital, as well as improving pedestrian access on
site.
NHS Review - last year it was also clear that foundation trust memberships offer
health communities excellent consultation opportunities. The Trust’s council of
governors, while discussing Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust’s ‘vision’ for
health and healthcare document, felt the debate should be opened far wider.
Governors felt the issues (stemming from Lord Darzi’s review of the NHS) would
have far-reaching outcomes for local people – and they should have an
opportunity to ‘have their say’.
In an unprecedented move, the Trust organised the consultation for the PCT in
October 2008. As well as its own 12,000 members, the memberships of (aspirant
FT) Derbyshire Mental Health Services NHS Trust and Derby Hospitals NHS
foundation trust were also consulted. This amounted to over 20,000 people in
the county.
With a response rate of almost 25%, the PCT now has a comprehensive range of
opinions and thoughts on which to base their final decisions. It is believed to be
one of the largest, most successful consultations undertaken with foundation trust
members.
Membership open day – In October 2008, more than 1500 members came to the
Trust’s first membership open day. The family-fun event, held on site, included
children’s entertainment, an exhibition marquee with community organisations
hosting stands and a chance to visit the new £5m specialist children’s services
unit – The Den. The Trust’s governors had the opportunity to speak with their
members, to promote the work of the council and how governors represent the
membership and the wider community.
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Awareness raising – members had the opportunity to meet governors at a
number of key local events – for example the 2008 Ashover show and
Chesterfield Borough Council’s Valuing all our Communities event 2008.
Governor also hosted promotional events in local libraries, shopping centers and
at local markets.
Members were also kept informed and involved through the following channels:






Quarterly newsletter
Membership discount scheme (members of the foundation trust currently
have access to discounts in 150 local shops and services) (See Appendix D)
The Trust’s internet area for members and governors
The Annual General Meeting (which was held in a large local venue off site to
meet demand for attendance)
Information leaflets that promote the role of governors and how they
represent local people and members; and
Annual council of governor elections to ensure a good candidate spread and
turn-out for voting

Direct Contacts
Members have a direct route they can use if they wish to communicate with
governors or directors of the Trust.
Governors can be reached through the Trust’s communications department,
either by phone or by letter. In 2007, the Trust also set up an email contact for
governors: governors@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Consultations
Details of consultations and results are stored on the Trust’s website at
www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Patient and Public Involvement (PPI)
The Trust values the views of its patients, visitors and community members in
order to continually improve the services delivered locally and ensure they are
patient-centred. By listening and responding to what patients have to say the
Trust has an opportunity share good practice and identify areas for improvement.
The following details examples of PPI activity, which have been used to identify
good practice and areas for improvement in the services delivered.
National Emergency Department Survey 2008
As part of the national patient survey programme administered by the Healthcare
Commission, the Trust took part in an exercise to evaluate the experience of
those patients attending the Emergency Department at the Chesterfield Royal
Hospital during March 2008. The results of the survey were positive and staff
have implemented the following actions to continually improve the patient
experience:


Introduced a medication counselling package for nursing staff to inform
patients about new medicines and any side effects.
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Waiting times reviewed to ensure patients are assessed promptly by the See
and Treat service within the Emergency Department.
Training and awareness for staff in the use of a pain score to improve the
control of pain and prompt administration of pain relief.
Patient information reviewed to ensure patients receive timely and accurate
information about their condition/treatment and who to contact if worried.

National Inpatient Survey 2008
As part of the national patient survey programme administered by the Healthcare
Commission, the Trust took part in an exercise to evaluate the experience of
those patients who were inpatients at the Chesterfield Royal Hospital during
August 2008. Actions identified to improve the patient experience included:








Developing plans to improve patient meal times e.g. protected meal times,
new menus, temperature monitoring and new snack boxes.
Reduction in noise at night on wards to ensure patients are not disturbed.
Reviewing turnaround times for medicines to take home in order to reduce
delays.
Ward based pharmacy technicians to provide appropriate information on
medicines at the time of discharge.
To continually monitor cleanliness levels to maintain the positive ratings given
by patients.
Discharge co-ordinators recruited to improve the discharge process for
patients leaving hospital.
Plans to refurbish the Trust’s Coronary Care Unit to improve the facilities,
environment and privacy and dignity for patients, visitors and staff.

In addition, a significant piece of work, to be led by the Chief Nurse and Principal
Matron, has been identified for 2009/10 which is to monitor the care and
treatment provided at ward level and obtain regular feedback from the patients.
This work will help to monitor action plans and performance in order to continually
improve the services delivered and ensure that they are patient centred.
North Derbyshire Cancer Services User Group
Over the last few years the group has concentrated its efforts on supporting and
encouraging staff to increase the amount of chemotherapy undertaken locally.
This year their efforts have paid off and the group successfully influenced the
introduction of more local chemotherapy sessions for cancer patients within the
Chesterfield and North Derbyshire area. In addition, the members helped to
introduce Headstrong to the Trust; this service is for patients who loose their hair
as a result of cancer treatment and offers advice and products, such as hats and
headscarves. Some members have even joined Headstrong as volunteers to
help provide the service to patients.
The group have also taken part in other involvement activities in order to ensure
that the cancer patient and carer views are constantly integrated within the
development of local cancer services. One of the elements has been to critique
draft patient information and log books, which support patients through their
cancer diagnosis and treatment.
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Pain Management Department - Readers Panel
The Trust has a Patient Information Policy to ensure that patients can access
high quality information about care, treatment or procedures available including
the benefits, risks, side effects and alternatives (where appropriate). Part of the
policy details the requirement of consulting with patients, staff and other
representatives on written patient information in order for them to give their views,
ideas and suggestions in the development of new, and the review of existing
information.
In order to enhance existing structures to involve patients in the development and
review of patient information within the Pain Management Department, a
‘Readers Panel’ was established during September 2008.
The ‘Readers Panel’ has become integral to the review and production of patient
information, helping to ensure that the information is easy to read, clear, well
designed and of good quality.
SCBU
As part of a regular quality assurance process for the Special Care Baby Unit
(SCBU) parents are asked for feedback on an annual basis in order to share
good practice and identify further improvements. A sample of parents whose
baby was discharged during April to June 2008, were asked to complete a
questionnaire. The findings from the evaluation have helped to ensure that
parents and their baby are central to the service delivered, with the following
actions introduced:





Providing parents with information on the availability of the long stay parking
ticket.
Encouraging parents to use the parent’s sitting room when doctors are
reviewing other babies in order to respect baby’s privacy.
Ensuring all parents are given the direct phone number to SCBU
Improving the environment for parents e.g. more chairs for visitors to the unit.

Access Audit Working Group
The Access Audit Working Group, a sub-group of the PPI Committee, was
established during October 2007. The group was made up of self-help group
representatives and governors and their remit was to:



Ensure that access issues identified as part of the 2007 PEAT, annual selfassessment review were revisited.
Enable dedicated audit work to be undertaken from the patient’s perspective.

The working group’s first task was to audit the access to toilet and washroom
facilities for patients on the wards. As part of this the group spent some time
developing an audit tool and refining this before undertaking the audit work.
As a result of the audit a number of positives were identified in terms of the ease
in which toilet and washroom facilities could be accessed. In addition, a number
of issues were identified to improve access and the working group produced an
exceptions report to detail these. These exceptions are now being addressed
and in addition, the issues identified have been used to inform other
developments within the hospital to maintain access for all patients.
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Tonsillectomy Day Case Patients
In order to evaluate the day case tonsillectomy service, patients were asked to
give feedback on their experience of attending the hospital before and after their
procedure, and being discharged. The aim of the exercise was to identify good
practice and areas for further improvement.
Patients gave extremely positive
feedback about the service but also helped to identify further developments,
which included supporting work to introduce nurse led discharges for
tonsillectomy day case patients.

94

REMUNERATION REPORT
Introduction
This report contains details of senior managers’ remuneration and pensions. The
figures relate to those individuals who have held office as a senior manager of
the Trust during the reporting year. A ‘senior manager’ is defined as ‘those
persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or
controlling the major activities of the foundation trust’. The Trust deems this to be
the executive and non-executive members of the board of directors.
Remuneration of the Chief Executive and Executive Directors
A committee of the board of directors, the remuneration committee has delegated
responsibility for all aspects of remuneration and terms of service for the chief
executive and executive directors of the Trust. Its responsibility includes all
aspects of salary, provision for other benefits including pensions, arrangements
for termination of employment and other contractual terms. The nomination and
selection of candidates for appointment as chief executive or executive director is
undertaken separately by an appointment committee.
The membership of the committee during 2008/09 was as follows:




Pam Liversidge – non-executive director and chairman of the committee
Richard Gregory – chairman of the Trust
Michael Hall – non-executive director, deputy chairman, senior independent
director and chairman of the audit committee.

The committee met on 11 November 2008. All members were present for the
meeting.
The chief executive attended the meeting to provide advice on executive
performance from appraisals held during 2008/09. He did not participate in the
parts of the meeting where matters related to his own remuneration.
The key item of business in the year was the review of the remuneration for the
executive directors.
Remuneration Policy
With the exception of the chief executive and the executive directors, all
employees of the Trust, including senior managers, are remunerated in
accordance with the national NHS pay structure, Agenda for Change.
The remuneration of the chief executive and the four other executive directors is
determined by the board of directors’ remuneration committee (see above) taking
into account market levels, key skills, performance and responsibilities.
The chief executive and the three whole-time executive are paid a flat rate salary
within the range determined by the remuneration committee. The part-time
executive director (medical director) is paid a flat rate within the range determined
by the remuneration committee, which is separate from his salary as a medical
practitioner.
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In reviewing remuneration, the committee has regard to the Trust’s overall
performance, the delivery of the agreed corporate objectives for the year, the
pattern of executive remuneration among foundation Trusts and the wider NHS,
and the individual director’s level of experience and development in the role. The
annual review comprises a cost of living uplift (which is the same as that for staff
on Agenda for Change) and progression within the range set for the post by the
committee.
The Trust does not operate performance related-pay or bonuses.
The
performance of the executive directors is assessed on a continuing basis via
formal appraisal and unsatisfactory performance may provide grounds for
termination of contract.
The ‘service contract’ for the chief executive and executive directors is the
contract of employment. This is substantive and continues until the director
reaches the age of sixty-five, when it terminates automatically unless there is
agreement to extend it. Otherwise, the notice period for termination by the Trust
is twelve months and for termination by the director, six months. The contract
does not provide for any other termination payments.
Details of the service contract for each executive director as at 31 March 2009:
Post title

From

Chief executive

01.01.02

Director of finance and contracting

17.03.03

Director of nursing

01.04.93

Corporate secretary

13.12.93

Medical director

01.04.00

Unexpired terms (years)*
0 -10
11-20
21-30


Retired
31.12.08



*This distribution is shown because the directors have not given consent for age
to be disclosed.
Further details of the appointments are included within the statements of board of
directors experience and expertise on page 59 of this report.
The provisions for compensation for early retirement and redundancy are as set
out in section 16 of the Agenda for Change: NHS Terms and Conditions of
Service Handbook.
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Remuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
As a foundation trust the nominations committee of the council of governors has
responsibility for the appointment, remuneration and appraisal of the chairman
and non-executive directors. Full details of membership and of the work
undertaken by the committee during 2008/09 may be found on page 72 of this
report. This work included:


A review of the appraisal systems for the council of governors, chairman and
non-executive directors; and an overview of these processes within year; and



Consideration of and recommendations to the council of governors on the
annual uprating of the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive
directors for the current and future years.

Assessment of Performance of Senior Managers
Individual performance is reviewed through the Trust’s appraisal process to
evaluate the extent to which senior managers have met their objectives
contributed to the delivery of the Trust’s strategic objectives.
Salary and Allowances of Senior Managers
In the year to 31 March 2009, the salaries and allowances of senior managers
can be seen in the table below.

97

Salary and Pension Entitlement of Senior Managers
a) Salaries

Name

Mr E Morton
Mr P Briddock

Title

Chief Executive
Director of Finance and
Contracting
Mr T Alty
Corporate Secretary
Mr R Clarke
Director of Nursing (retired 31
December 2008)
Mr W Lambert
Medical Director (retired 7 April
2008)
Mr J McDonnell
Medical Director (from 1 April
2008)
Mr R Gregory
Chairman
Mr M Hall
Senior Independent Director and
Non-Executive Director
Mrs P Liversidge Non-Executive Director
Mr D Whitney
Non-Executive Director
Miss D Fern
Non-Executive Director
Mrs J Birkin
Non-Executive Director
* taxable expense allowances

Director
Salary

2008-2009
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties

Benefits in
Kind*

Director
Salary

2007-2008
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties

Benefits in
Kind*

(Bands of
£5,000)

(Bands of £5,000)

(Rounded to
the nearest
£100)

(Bands of
£5,000)

(Bands of £5,000)

(Rounded to
the nearest
£100)

£000

£000

£00

£000

£000

£00

170-175
135-140

0
0

7
10

155-160
130-135

0
0

5
9

110-115
140-145

0
0

0
1

105-110
105-110

0
0

0
2

0-5

0-5

0

35-40

145-150

1

35-40

150-155

1

0

0

0

45-50
15-20

0
0

0
0

40-45
15-20

0
0

1
0

10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
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b) Pensions

Name

Title

Real
increase in
pension at
age 60

Real
increase in
lump sum
at age 60

Total
accrued
pension at
age 60 at
31 March
2009

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2009

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2008

Real
increase in
Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value

(Bands of
£5,000)

Lump sum
at age 60
related to
accrued
pension at
31 March
2009
(Bands of
£5,000)

(Bands of
£2,500)

(Bands of
£2,500)

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Mr E Morton

Chief Executive

7.5-10

25-27.5

85-87.5

260-262.5

2,070

1,238

561

Mr P Briddock

Director of Finance and
Contracting
Corporate Secretary

0-2.5

5-7.5

20-22.5

65-67.5

316

223

61

0-2.5

5-7.5

35-37.5

110-112.5

715

513

132

Director of Nursing (retired 31
December 2008)
Medical Director (retired 7 April
2008)
Medical Director (from 1 April
2008)

0-2.5

65-67.5

50-52.5

217.5-220

n/a

775

n/a

(17.5)-(15)

170-172.5

57.5-60

395-397.5

n/a

n/a

n/a

12.5-15

42.5-45

75-77.5

227.5-230

1,907

1,112

537

Mr T Alty
Mr R Clarke
Mr W Lambert
Mr J McDonnell

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there are no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.
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A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital
value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point
in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment
made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and
chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their
service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures,
and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in
another scheme or arrangement, which the individual has transferred to the NHS
Pension Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to
the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the
employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common
market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
* the pension and lump sum figures for Mr R Clarke and Mr W Lambert reflect
their decision to commute part of their pension to a lump sum.

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
5 June 2009
Ends
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DIRECTION BY MONITOR, INDEPENDENT REGULATOR OF NHS FOUNDATION TRUSTS IN
RESPECT OF THE KEEPING OF ACCOUNTS AND THE PREPARATION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, in exercise of powers conferred on it
by paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006, hereby directs that
the keeping of accounts and the annual report and accounts of each NHS foundation trust shall be
in the form as laid down in the annual reporting guidance for NHS Foundation Trusts within the NHS
Foundation Trust Financial Reporting Manual, known as the NHS Foundation Trust FReM, that
is in force for the relevant financial year.
Signed by authority of Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts

Signed:

Name: Dr William Moyes (Chairman)
Dated: 17 January 2008
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NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE ACT 2006
DIRECTION BY MONITOR IN RESPECT OF NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE FOUNDATION
TRUSTS' ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS foundation trusts, with the approval of HM Treasury, in
exercise of powers conferred on it by paragraph 25(1) of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act
2006, (the 2006 Act) hereby gives the following Directions:
1. Application and interpretation
(1) These Directions apply to NHS foundation trusts in England
(2) In these Directions 'The Accounts' means:
for an NHS foundation trust in its first operation period since authorisation, the accounts
of an NHS foundation trust for the period from authorisation until 31 March; or
For an NHS foundation trust in its second or subsequent operating period following
authorisation, the accounts of an NHS foundation trust for the period from 1 April
until 31 March.
'the NHS foundation trust' means the NHS foundation trust in question.
2. Form of accounts
(1) The accounts submitted under paragraph 25 of Schedule 7 to the 2006 Act shall show, and give a true
and fair view of, the NHS foundation trust's gains and losses, cash flows and financial state at the end of the
financial period.
(2) The accounts shall meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Financial Reporting
Manual (FT FReM) as agreed with HM Treasury, in force for the relevant financial year.
(3) The Balance Sheet shall be signed and dated by the chief executive of the NHS foundation trust
(4) The statement on Internal Control shall be signed and dated by the chief executive of the NHS
foundation trust.
3. Statement of accounting officer's responsibilities
(1) The statement of accounting officer's responsibilities in respect of the accounts shall be signed and
dated by the chief executive of the NHS foundation trust.
4. Approval on behalf of HM Treasury
(1) These directions have been approved on behalf of HM Treasury.
Signed by the authority of Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts

Signed:

Name: Dr William Moyes (Chairman)
Dated: 17 January 2008
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Statement of the chief executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of Chesterfield Royal
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

The National Health Service Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS
Foundation Trust. The relevant responsibilities of accounting officer, including their responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and the keeping of proper
accounts, are set out in the accounting officers' Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS
Foundation Trusts ('Monitor').
Under the National Health Service Act 2006, Monitor has directed the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set
out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS
Foundation Trust Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:
- observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
- make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
- State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Financial
Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial
statements; and
- prepare the Financial statements on a going concern basis.
The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable him/her to ensure
that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting officer
is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor's
NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Signed ........................................................…

Date: 5 June 2009

ERIC MORTON
Chief Executive
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a public benefit corporation
STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
For the year ending 31 March 2009

1

Scope of responsibility

1.1

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives,
whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for
ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officers Memorandum.

1.2

There are external arrangements in place for working with partner organisations. Those
operating at Chief Executive level are as follows:


East Midlands Chief Executives’ Forum;



East Midlands Acute Trust Chief Executives’ Partnership;



NORCOM;



South Yorkshire Partnership of Acute Chief Executives;



Derbyshire Chief Executives’ Group.



Derbyshire Partnership Forum



Foundation Trust Network group for Chairman & Chief Executives.

There are similar arrangements in place for working with partner organisations that operate at
director level for finance, business and service planning, clinical governance, communication
and risk management.
1.3

Risk Management
The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of key risks. The key areas of
those risks are managed through:
Strategic business risk management
Integration of risk management
Board Assurance Framework
Clinical and non-clinical risk registers
Financial risk management
Compliance with targets

iv

The board receives details of key risks through regular board reports. The monthly Finance
and Activity Report records all key financial risks. The Performance Report records all key
operational risks and the Clinical Standard and Governance Report records all the key clinical
risks. The board receives a Trust risk profile at each meeting which details the high level, high
priority risks for review.
The board also addresses the risks when the quarterly self-assessment document is
completed for Monitor. This arrangement ensures the Board of Directors understands the
strategic business risks to the Trust in the context of the Trust’s strategic direction.
The Risk Committee, whose membership comprises of the chairman of the Trust, the
chairman of the Trust's audit committee and clinical governance committee and the chief
executive, is a board committee responsible for reviewing risks in detail and providing
additional assurance to the Board of Directors on the key risks in the organisation.
1.4

The Board is supported by four committees (each chaired by a Non-Executive Director) that
ensure effective monitoring and accountability arrangements for the system of internal
control. These, and their key responsibilities, are set out below:
Audit committee



Financial risk management
Soundness of overall system of internal control

Clinical governance committee



Clinical risk management
Clinical governance

Remuneration committee


Review of the Executive Director remuneration package

Risk committee



Consider risks in detail
Provide assurance to the board about the key risks

1.5

The minutes and other key documents from these committees are submitted to the Board of
Directors. The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Clinical Governance Committees
are Non-Executive Directors and members of the Board of Directors. The Risk Committee is
chaired by the Chairman of the Trust. Membership of the four committees is shared among
the Non-Executive Directors.

2

The purpose of the system of internal control

2.1

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to:
 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of
the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, and
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Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2009 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts.
3

Capacity to handle risk

3.1

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the management of risk of the trust. The
other members of the Executive Team exercise lead responsibility for the specific types of risk
as follows:





3.2

Clinical risk
Operational risk
Business risk
Financial risk

Director of Nursing and Medical Director
Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities Services
Director of Planning and Performance
Director of Finance and Contracting

The role of the Executive Director is to ensure that appropriate arrangements and systems
are in place to achieve:


Identification and assessment of risks or hazards;



Elimination or reduction of risk to an acceptable level;

 Compliance with internal policies and procedures, and statutory and external
requirements;

Integration of functional risk management systems and development of the assurance
framework.
These responsibilities are managed operationally through corporate managers supporting the
Executive Directors working with designated lead managers in directorates.
3.3

The Trust has a Risk Management Strategy in place, which is reviewed annually and
endorsed by the Board. The strategy is regularly reviewed during the year to ensure that it is
fully embedded into the day-to-day management of the organisation and conforms to best
practice. The strategy defines risk and identifies individual and collective responsibility for risk
management within the organisation. It also sets out the trust’s approach to the identification,
assessment, scoring, treatment and monitoring of risk.

3.4

Staff are equipped to manage risk in a variety of ways and at different levels of strategic and
operational functioning. These include:

Formal in-house training for staff as a whole in dealing with specific everyday risks, e.g.
fire safety, health and safety, moving and handling, infection control, security;
Training and induction in incident investigation, including documentation, root cause

analysis, steps to prevent or minimise recurrence and reporting requirements;

Developing shared understanding of broader business, financial, environmental and
clinical risks through collegiate clinical, professional and managerial groups (such as strategy
and performance group, professional advisory group, clinical risk group) and sharing good
practice with other peer foundation trusts through appropriate forums such as the foundation
trust network.
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4

The risk and control framework

4.1

The Risk Management Strategy

Defines the objectives of risk management and the process and structure by which it is
undertaken;

Sets out the lead responsibilities and the organisational arrangements as to how these
are discharged;


Sets out the key policies, procedures and protocols governing risk management;



Identifies the link between directorate and corporate risk management.

4.2

The risk evaluation and treatment model is based on a grading matrix of likelihood and
consequence. This produces a risk score to enable the risk to be prioritised against other
risks. The score, in turn, is linked to a matrix of the cost and responsibility of risk treatment so
that either the risk is addressed locally by the directorate within its resources or it feeds into
the organisation wide Risk Register. The risks are also mapped to the strategic themes and
objectives identified within the Trust’s planning process along with the various other initiatives
to confirm the score given to a risk.

4.3

The Trust has an assurance framework. This identifies the most serious risks facing the Trust
in the achievement of its principal objectives, the sources of assurance currently available
both internally and externally, the classification of principal risk which identifies the lead
responsibility within the trust, how the risks are being managed or treated, any gaps in
sources of assurance and the actions and timescale for addressing the gaps.

4.4

During 2008/09, the Board has received assurances on the effectiveness of the system of
internal control as indicated in section 5. The assurance framework has been updated on a
regular basis during the year.

4.5

The Trust has a fully updated organisation wide Risk Register.
The managers with responsibility for clinical and non-clinical risk management:
 Ensure the effective identification and treatment of risks in relation to NHSLA
standards; and
 Develop whole system solutions to clinical and non-clinical operational risks that
have the greatest potential to disrupt patient care.

4.6

A number of forums exist that allow communication with stakeholders, the forums provide a
mechanism for risk identified by stakeholders that affects the Trust to be discussed and
where appropriate action plans can be developed to resolve any issues.
Examples of the forums and methods of communication with stakeholders are as follows:
Council of Governors
The council has a formal role as a stakeholder body for the wider community in the
governance of the trust.
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Regular newsletters;

 Minutes of the council of governors meetings including joint meetings with the board of
directors.
Staff






Payslip bulletin;
Electronic newsletter;
Staff meetings and team briefings;
Annual statement on the ‘fair blame’ policy on incident reporting;
Staff surveys

Public and service users






Patient surveys;
PALS service;
Patient forum;
Meetings with voluntary and self-help groups;
Face to face interviews.

Partner organisations
 Other health and social care community (e.g. clinical leaders’ group, whole systems
capacity group);

4.7

Clinical and professional networks in East Midlands;

Information governance assurance programme
The Trust has a strong information governance (IG) focus, and has consistently performed
well against the Information Governance Toolkit standards. Patient data confidentiality
remains a high priority, with regular internal audit reviews and an annual report to the Board
of Directors on these issues by the Caldicott Guardian.
The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for all aspects of IM&T, including security and
IG, and is accountable to the trust’s Board of Directors.
In addition, an IM&T Steering Group, chaired by the Director of Planning and Performance,
has been established to oversee all aspects of IM&T. Membership of the group also includes
the Medical Director and the Director of Nursing as well as having clinical, professional and
user representation, and is responsible for recommending policy. In addition, it acts as the
Project Board for all IM&T projects, unless other arrangements are specifically identified.
The Medical Director acts as the trust’s Caldicott Guardian.
The Head of Health Informatics has responsibility for operational management of all IM&T
and IG issues, and also acts as the trust’s Data Protection Officer and IM&T Security Officer.
Information Governance risks are managed in accordance with trust risk management
standards, and, where appropriate, recorded on directorate risk registers. Each IT system has
a designated system manager, with defined responsibilities, including risk management and
responsibility for identifying IG risks.
All staff are governed by a code of confidentiality, and access to data held on IT systems is
restricted to authorised users. Information governance training is incorporated as appropriate
in all IT training sessions, and the corporate induction process has a dedicated IG session.
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There were no information governance SUIs reported by the trust during 2008/09.
4.8

Compliance with NHS pension scheme regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS pension scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s
contributions and payments in to the scheme are in accordance with the scheme rules, and
that member pension scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the
timescales detained in the regulations.

4.9

Compliance with equality, diversity and human rights legislation
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation's obligations under equality,
diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.

4.10 Compliance with Healthcare Commission targets
The Trust is fully compliant with the core standards for better health.

5

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

5.1

During the year the Board of Directors have received regular reports informing of the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. The reports provide detail on
the financial, clinical and performance of the Trust during the previous period and highlight
any areas through benchmarking or traffic light system where there are concerns. The
Executive Managers of the Trust supply these reports.

5.2

Internal Audit have reviewed the systems and processes in place during the year and
published reports detailing the required actions within specific areas to ensure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources is maintained, the outcome of these
reports are graded according to the level of outstanding risks within the area.

5.3

The Board of Directors has also received assurances on the use of resources from agencies
outside the trust including Monitor. Monitor requires the Board of Directors to self assess on a
quarterly basis. Monitor scores the assessment on a traffic light system.

5.4

The Trust further obtains assurance of its systems and processes and tests its benchmarking
by membership of the Foundation Trust network where other Foundation Trusts share good
practice.

6

Review of effectiveness

6.1

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by
the work of the Internal Auditors and the Executive Managers within the NHS Foundation
Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework, and comments made by the External Auditors in their management letter and
other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee and Risk
Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.
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6.2

My review is also informed by:
 Maintained accreditation of the trust granted in June 2007 for NHSLA at level one for
general standards;
 Maintained accreditation granted in June 2007 at level three of the CNST maternity
standards;


Achieving Practice Plus accreditation for IWL (March 2006);



Healthcare commission performance rating (October 2008);



External Audit management letter;

 Continuing improvements and internal review following action taken as a result of the
Health and Safety Executive audit.
 Confirmation by Monitor through quarterly monitoring that the Trust is compliant with
Monitor's regime with:


a financial risk rating of at least a 5 throughout the year



a mandatory services risk rating of green throughout the year


a governance risk rating of green at the year end confirming a sustained
improvement to meet the annual trajectory on Clostridium difficile which had been under
threat following an adverse rate in quarter one.
 Confirmation that the Trust has declared full compliance with the Healthcare Commission
standards for better health declaration for 2008/09.
6.3

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the committees identified at 1.3 above, by the Board’s monitoring
of corporate and directorate performance, by the publication of audit reports in line with their
work programme by internal audit during the year, and by the evidence of the assessment of
the Trust and the capacity and capability of the Board by Monitor in relation to its financial
management, governance arrangements and risk management systems, the Board’s selfcertification to Monitor.

6.4

During 2008/09 work has continued on a number of developments to strengthen the
internal control framework.
 Further enhancements have been made to the risk register system to ensure that the
registers are embedded and controlled in a single risk management system.
 Work has been carried out to develop the internal approach to risk, governance and
control which links and supports the Trust’s capacity to meet both Monitor’s compliance
framework and the Healthcare Commission’s Assessment for improvement framework.
 Work has been A new role of Head of Compliance has been established within the Trust's
structure to ensure that the Trust maintains its capacity to monitor effectively its compliance
with the terms of authorisation and all relevant NHS standards and targets. This post has lead
responsibility for the co-ordination of standards for better health.

x

Conclusion
There are no significant internal control issues that have been identified during the
period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 that require disclosure in this statement.

……………………………………………………………….

Eric J Morton
Chief Executive
5 June 2009
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out on the following pages and comprise the Income and
Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Notes to the Accounts.

The accounts have been prepared by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with Schedule 7,
of the National Health Service Act 2006 in the form in which Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation
Trusts, has, with the approval of HM Treasury, directed.

Signed ........................................................…

Date: 5 June 2009

Eric Morton (Chief Executive)
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009

NOTE

2008/09

2007/08

£000

£000

Income from activities

3

146,382

136,722

Other operating income

4

15,945

14,605

(152,928)

(142,394)

9,399

8,933

1

4

SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST

9,400

8,937

Finance Income
Finance Costs - interest expense
Other Finance Costs - unwinding of discount

1,037
(3)
(37)

1,420
0
(33)

SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD

10,397

10,324

Public Dividend Capital dividends payable

(2,644)

(2,452)

7,753

7,872

Operating expenses

5-8

OPERATING SURPLUS
Profit on disposal of fixed assets

9

RETAINED SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD
The notes on pages 5 to 34 form part of these accounts.
All income and expenditure are derived from continuing operations.
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BALANCE SHEET
at 31 March 2009

As at
31 March
2009

As at
31 March
2008

£000

£000

10
11
12

453
98,007
0
98,460

286
96,810
0
97,096

Stocks and work in progress
Debtors
Investments
Cash at bank and in hand

13
14
15
19

1,012
3,301
3
21,206
25,522

953
4,210
1
15,591
20,755

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

16

(12,308)

(11,285)

13,214

9,470

937

509

112,611

107,075

NOTE
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments
CURRENT ASSETS

NET CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

14

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

16

(307)

(519)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

17

(1,969)

(1,863)

110,335

104,693

49,077
33,256
2,111
25,891

48,349
36,550
1,881
17,913

110,335

104,693

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED
FINANCED BY:
TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Donated asset reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

18
18
18
18

TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY

Signed: ………………………………………………… Eric Morton Chief Executive
Date: 5 June 2009
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009
2008/09
2007/08
£000

£000

Surplus for the financial period before dividend payments

10,397

10,324

Fixed asset impairment losses

(3,074)

(21)

0

5,744

615

157

Reduction in the donated asset reserve due to depreciation

(380)

(364)

Total gains recognised in the financial period

7,558

15,840

Unrealised surplus on fixed asset revaluations
Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of donated
assets

Page 3

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2009
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009

NOTE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash inflow from operating activities

19.1

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE:
Interest received
Interest paid

2008/09

2007/08

£000

£000

17,999

9,831

1,039
(3)

1,411
0

1,036

1,411

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire intangible assets

(11,981)
1
(137)

(9,453)
152
(202)

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure

(12,117)

(9,503)

(2,644)

(2,452)

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

DIVIDENDS PAID
Net cash inflow before management of liquid resources and financing
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
Purchase of current asset investments
Sale of current asset investments
Net cash outflow from management of liquid resources
Net cash inflow before financing

4,274

(713)

(102,446)
102,444

(86,419)
86,458

(2)

39

4,272

(674)

FINANCING
New public dividend capital received
Other capital receipts (Donated assets / Government grants)

728
615

105
157

Net cash inflow from financing

1,343

262

Increase in cash

5,615

(412)

Page 4

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2009

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1 Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of
the NHS Foundation Trust Financial Reporting Manual which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the
following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2008/09 NHS Foundation Trust Financial
Reporting Manual (FT FReM) issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow UK
generally accepted accounting practice for companies (UK GAAP) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to
the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.
1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
tangible fixed assets at their value to the business by reference to their current costs. NHS Foundation Trusts, in
compliance with HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual, are not required to comply with the FRS 3 requirements
to report “earnings per share” or historical profits and losses.
1.2 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
The NHS Foundation Trust had no acquisitions or discontinued operations in the periods of account.
1.3 Income recognition
Income is accounted for applying the accruals convention and is shown gross except where an administrative
arrangement exists, whereby the associated income is netted off with the corresponding expenditure in accordance with
the FT FReM.
The main source of income for the Trust is from contracts with Commissioners in respect of healthcare services. Income
is recognised in the period in which services are provided. Where income is received for a specific activity, which is to
be delivered in the following financial year, that income is deferred.
Where income has not been received prior to the year end but the provision of a healthcare service has commenced i.e.
partially completed patient spells, then income relating to the patient activity is accrued. The accrued income is
estimated based on the number of days of incomplete spells at an average daily tariff adjusted to reflect the case-mix.
The NHS Foundation Trust has accrued income from incomplete patient spells as it is considered to be material, in
accordance with FRS 5 and UITF 40. The reduction of £155,000 (2007/08: £256,000) is shown as part of income from
activities.
The NHS Foundation Trust contracts with NHS Commissioners to follow the Department of Health’s Payment by
Results (PbR) methodology. In both 2008/09 and 2007/08 the full gain from this form of contract was retained.

1.4 Expenditure
Expenditure is accounted for applying the accruals convention and is shown gross except where an administrative
arrangement exists, whereby the associated income is netted off with the corresponding expenditure in accordance with
the NHS Foundation Trust Financial Reporting Manual (FT FReM).
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1.5 Tangible fixed assets
Capitalisation
Tangible assets are capitalised if they are capable of being used for a period which exceeds one year and they:
- individually have a cost of at least £5,000; or
- form a group of assets which individually have a cost of more than £250 and collectively have a cost of at
least £5,000, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial
control; or
- form part of the initial setting-up cost of a new building or refurbishment of a ward or unit, irrespective of
their individual or collective cost.
Valuation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at the lower of replacement cost and recoverable amount. On initial recognition they are
measured at cost (for leased assets, fair value) including any costs, such as installation, directly attributable to bringing them
into working condition. The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in periods if events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The costs arising from financing the
construction of the fixed asset are not capitalised but are charged to the income and expenditure account in the year to which
they relate.
All land and buildings are revalued using professional valuations in accordance with FRS 15 every five years. A three yearly
interim valuation is also carried out.
Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual . The last full asset valuations were undertaken in 2004 as at the
prospective valuation date of 1 April 2005. The revaluation undertaken at that date was accounted for on 31 March 2005.
The interim revaluation was undertaken in 2007/08 for a valuation date of 1 April 2008 was accounted for on 31 March
2008.
The valuations are carried out primarily on the basis of depreciated replacement cost for specialised operational property and
existing use value for non-specialised operational property. The value of land for existing use purposes is assessed at existing
use value. For non-operational properties including surplus land, the valuations are carried out at open market value.
The Trust Board of Directors has approved a plan to dispose of land and buildings at Saltergate & Edmund Street. The main
Saltergate property is in temporary use for two more years and is deemed to be surplus but still in operational use at 31
March 2009 and therefore in accordance with FRS3 & FRS15 is required to continue to be carried at depreciated
replacement cost, with an accelerated depreciation profile. The other Saltergate properties (Marsden Street clinic & The
Child Development Centre)are also surplus but are not in operational use and have been economically impaired to a zero
valuation as at 31 March 2009. Saltergate land continues to be valued at Depreciated Replacement Cost. Edmund Street land
and buildings surplus and not in operational use and are ready for sale and are impaired to the likely Open Market Value and
depreciation is ceased in accordance with FRS3, FRS15 & FRS11
Assets in the course of construction are valued at cost and are valued by professional valuers as part of the five or threeyearly valuation or when they are brought into use.
The Trust has no residual interests in off-balance sheet private finance initiative (PFI) properties.
Operational equipment is carried at current cost. Where assets are of low value, and/or have short useful economic lives,
these are carried at depreciated historic cost as a proxy for current value. Equipment surplus to requirements is valued at net
recoverable amount.
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated at rates calculated to write them down to estimated residual value on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, and assets surplus to requirements.
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
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Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on their current value over the estimated remaining life of the asset
as assessed by the NHS Foundation Trust’s professional valuers.
Equipment is depreciated on its current cost evenly over the estimated life. Asset lives fall into the following ranges
Plant & Machinery
5 to 15 years
Transport Equipment
7 years
Information Technology 5 to 8 years
Furniture & Fittings
5 to 10 years
Fixed asset impairments resulting from losses of economic benefits are charged to the income and expenditure
account. All other impairments are taken to the revaluation reserve and reported in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses to the extent that there is a balance on the revaluation reserve in respect of the particular asset.
1.6 Intangible fixed assets
Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in a trust's activities for more than one year; they
can be valued; and they have a cost of at least £5,000.
Intangible fixed assets held for operational use are valued at historical cost and are amortised over the estimated life of
the asset on a straight line basis. The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of the
first full year following acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable.
Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of at least £5,000 is
incurred and amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their useful economic lives.
1.7 Donated fixed assets
Donated fixed assets are capitalised at their current value on receipt and this value is credited to the donated asset
reserve. Donated fixed assets are valued and depreciated as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on
revaluations are also taken to the donated asset reserve and, each year, an amount equal to the depreciation charge on
the asset is released from the donated asset reserve to the income and expenditure account. Similarly, any impairment
on donated assets, charged to the income and expenditure account, is matched by a transfer from the donated asset
reserve. On sale of donated assets, the net book value of the donated asset is transferred from the donated asset reserve
to the income and expenditure reserve.
1.8 Liquid resources
The NHS Foundation Trust had no fixed asset investments during the accounting periods. Current asset investments
held, relate to notice period deposits and money market deposits, ranging from 7 days to 6 months. The amounts stated
relate to the amounts held in these accounts during the year and at the year end.
1.9 Government grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from Primary Care Trusts or NHS Trusts
for the provision of services. Grants from the Department of Health, including those for achieving three star status,
are accounted for as Government grants. Where the Government grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken
to the income and expenditure account to match that expenditure. Where the grant is used to fund capital expenditure
the grant is held as deferred income and released to the income and expenditure account over the life of the asset on a
basis consistent with the depreciation charge for that asset.
1.10 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
The NHS follows HM Treasury’s Technical Note 1 (Revised) “How to Account for PFI transactions” which provides
definitive guidance for the application of application note F to FRS 5.
The NHS Foundation Trust has no Private Finance transactions in the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 or the
previous year.
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1.11 Stocks and work-in-progress
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The NHS Foundation Trust has no work in progress.
1.12 Cash, bank and overdrafts
Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at the current values of these balances in the NHS Foundation Trust’s
cash book. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS Foundation Trust’s bank account belonging to patients
(see “third party assets” below). Account balances are only set off where a formal agreement has been made with the
bank to do so. In all other cases overdrafts are disclosed within creditors. Interest earned on bank accounts and interest
charged on overdrafts is recorded as, respectively, “interest receivable” and “interest payable” in the period to which
they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in the periods to which they relate.
1.13 Research and development
Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised if it meets the following criteria:
- there is a clearly defined project;
- the related expenditure is separately identifiable;
- the outcome of the project has been assessed with reasonable certainty as to its technical feasibility
and its resulting in a product or services that will eventually be brought into use; and
- adequate resources exist, or are reasonably expected to be available, to enable the project to be
completed and to provide any consequential increases in working capital.
Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the income and
expenditure account on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It is revalued on the
basis of current cost. Expenditure, which does not meet the criteria for capitalisation, is treated as an operating cost in
the year in which it is incurred. Where possible, NHS Foundation Trusts disclose the total amount of research and
development expenditure charged in the income and expenditure account separately.
However, where research and development activity cannot be separated from patient care activity it cannot be identified
and is therefore not separately disclosed.
Fixed assets acquired for use in research and development are amortised over the life of the associated project.
1.14 Provisions
The NHS Foundation Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the
balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury’s
discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
1.15 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are provided for where a transfer of economic benefits is probable. Otherwise, they are not
recognised, but are disclosed in note 22 unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent
liabilities are defined as:
Possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or
Present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
The NHS Foundation Trust had no contingent assets.
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1.16 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS Foundation Trust pays
an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is
administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the NHS Foundation
Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust
is disclosed at note 17.
1.17 Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.
Both are risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and
in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any
‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims, are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
1.18 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. (Details of the benefits
payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.uk/pensions.). The Scheme
is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed
under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that
would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying Scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the
Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, based on a five year valuation cycle),
and a FRS17 accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows:
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking
into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and
scheme members. The last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31
March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date.
The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the Scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against
the notional assets as at 31 March 2004. However, after taking into account the changes in the benefit and
contribution structure effective from 1 April 2008, the Scheme actuary reported that employer contributions could
continue at the existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay. On advice from the Scheme actuary, scheme contributions
may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities. Up to 31 March 2008, the vast majority
of employees paid contributions at the rate of 6% of pensionable pay. From 1 April 2008, employees contributions are
on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total earnings.
b) FRS17 Accounting valuation
In accordance with FRS17, a valuation of the Scheme liability is carried out annually by the Scheme Actuary as at the
balance sheet date by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to the
Scheme Actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the Scheme membership are updated to
allow the Scheme liability to be valued.
The valuation of the Scheme liability as at 31 March 2009, is based on detailed membership data as at 31 March 2006
(the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2009 with summary global member and accounting data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the Scheme is contained in the Scheme Actuary report, which forms part of
the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be
viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
Scheme provisions as at 31 March 2009
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme.
The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the income and expenditure account at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.
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1.18 Pension costs (continued)
The Scheme provides the opportunity to members to increase their benefits through money purchase Additional
Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) provided by an approved panel of life companies. Under the arrangement the
employee/member can make contributions to enhance an employee's pension benefits. The benefits payable relate
directly to the value of the investments made. From 1 April 2008 a voluntary additional pension facility becomes
available, under which members may purchase up to £5,000 per annum of additional pension at a cost determined by
the actuary from time-to-time.
Early payment of a pension is available to members of the Scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their
duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in
service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement, less pension already paid, subject to a maximum
amount equal to twice the member’s final year’s pensionable pay less their retirement lump sum for those who die
after retirement, is payable.
Existing members as at 1 April 2008
Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th of the best of the last 3 years pensionable pay for each year of service.
A lump sum normally equivalent to 3 years pension is payable on retirement. From 1 April 2008 there is the
opportunity of giving up some of the pension to increase retirement lump sum. Annual increases are applied to pension
payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve
months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. On death, a pension of 50% of the member’s pension is
normally payable to the surviving spouse or eligible unmarried partner.
New entrants from 1 April 2008
Annual pensions for new entrants from 1 April 2008 will be based on 1/60th of the best three-year average of the
pensionable earnings in the ten years before retirement. Members wishing to obtain a retirement lump sum may give
up some of this pension to obtain a retirement lump of up to 25% of the total value of their retirement benefits.
Survivor pensions will be available to married and unmarried partners and will be equal to 37.5% of the member's
pension.
1.19 Value Added Tax
All healthcare activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does
not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.20 Corporation Tax
The NHS Foundation Trust has carried out a review of corporation tax liability on its other operating income. At
present all activities are either ancillary to the NHS Foundation Trust's patient care activity or are below the de
minimus level at which corporation tax is due.
1.21 Foreign exchange
Transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the
dates of the transactions. Resulting exchange gains and losses are taken to the income and expenditure account.
1.22 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since
the NHS Foundation Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in note 26 to the accounts,
in accordance with the requirements of the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual.
1.23 Leases
After applying the accounting principles of SSAP 21, & FRS 5, all leases held are regarded as operating leases and the
rentals are charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
The NHS Foundation Trust has no leases where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are
borne by the NHS Foundation Trust.
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1.24 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities i.e.
the net assets of a public benefit corporation.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS Foundation Trust, is paid over as PDC dividend.
The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the
NHS Foundation Trust. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities,
except for donated assets and cash held with the Office of the Paymaster General. Average relevant net assets are
calculated as a simple mean of opening and closing relevant net assets.
1.25 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is 'any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability in
another entity'. These can be split into primary instruments e.g. cash, trade debtors, trade creditors and loans, and
derivative financial instruments. The Trust has no derivative financial instruments.
Recognition & derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial assets expire. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification & measurement
All of the Trust's financial assets are classified as 'Loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted on an active market. These include:
Cash and cash equivalents
NHS debtors
Accrued income
Other debtors
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and are re-measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method where appropriate.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the income and
expenditure account.
All of the Trust's financial liabilities are classified as 'Other Liabilities'. These include:
NHS creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
They are recognised initially at fair value , net of transaction costs and are re-measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method where appropriate.
Interest on other liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to
the income and expenditure account.
Impairment of financial assets
The Trust has assessed at the balance sheet date whether any financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are
impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset.
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1.25 Financial instruments (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate.
The loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly
or through the use of a bad debt provision. Bad debt provisions are used when there is uncertainty that the debt will be
paid. Bad debts are written off directly only when there is certainty that the debt will not be paid.
For the common financial instruments listed above the policies are already covered in the accounting policies above.
For disclosure purposes FRS 29 has been followed.
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2 Segmental Analysis
Due to the singular nature of the Trust's business, segmental reporting is not required under SSAP 25.

3.1. Income from Activities

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
Other types of activity income*
A&E income
Private patient income

2008/09

2007/08

£000

£000

31,989
52,622
25,119
31,763
4,779
110

31,148
49,441
25,098
25,879
5,048
108

146,382

136,722

The Terms of Authorisation set out the mandatory goods and services that the Trust is required to provide as
protected services. All of the income from activities except private patient income shown above is derived from
the provision of protected services.
*Other income includes direct access services such as pathology £3,768,000 (2007/08: £3,439,000), radiology
£1,427,000 (2007/08: £1,253,000), audiology £1,163,000 (2007/08: £1,127,000), critical care services
£7,814,000 (2007/08: £7,547,000), child health services £7,190,000 (2007/08: £6,135,000), community
midwifery £997,000 (2007/08: £1,236,000), screening services £1,346,000 (2007/08: £1,327,000), excluded
high cost drugs £3,314,000 (2007/08: £2,294,000) and NHS injury scheme income £1,200,000 (2007/08:
£698,000).
NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 7.8% (2007/08: 7.8%) to reflect
expected rates of collection.

3.2 Private Patient Income

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

Private patient income
Total patient related income

110
146,382

108
136,722

Proportion (as percentage)

0.08%

0.08%

Section 44 of the National Health Service Act 2006 requires that the proportion of private patient income to the
total patient related income of NHS Foundation Trusts should not exceed its proportion during 2002/03. The
allowable percentage for Chesterfield Royal NHS Foundation Trust was 0.2%. The note above shows that the
Trust was compliant for both periods.
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3.3 Income from Activities

Primary Care Trusts
Department of Health
NHS Other
Non NHS:
- Private Patients
- Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
- NHS injury scheme
- Other

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

141,391
3,642
31

132,241
3,623
0

110
8
1,200
0

108
15
698
37

146,382

136,722

The Department of Health income relates to the Market Forces Factor adjustment to income based on actual
patient care activity.

4. Other Operating Income

Research and development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Transfers from donated asset reserve
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other income

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

130
6,446
0
380
6,070
2,919

47
5,762
2
364
5,896
2,534

15,945

14,605

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

679
404
420
234
212
175
795

587
333
297
0
219
110
988

2,919

2,534

The breakdown of other income is as follows:

Car Parking Income
Staff Accommodation rentals
Accommodation, royalties, & utility charges to external contractors
Catering
Income released to offset government granted asset depreciation
Clinical Excellence Awards
Other
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5. Operating Expenses
5.1 Operating expenses comprise:

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from other NHS Bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Executive directors' costs
Non-executive directors costs
Staff costs
Drug costs
Supplies and services - clinical
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Bad debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Fixed asset impairments and reversals
Audit fees
Clinical negligence
Other expenditure

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

1,210
47
1,025
152
946
123
102,324
8,329
14,099
3,741
2,172
1,020
6,641
136
6,367
999
59
1,494
2,044

1,045
891
1,058
212
679
119
95,141
6,900
14,715
3,747
2,164
139
7,020
10
4,443
(88)
47
1,812
2,340

152,928

142,394

Audit fees include £6,900 for the audit of the restatement of the opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2008 under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The limitation of auditor's liability for work undertaken for audit services is £1,000,000 (2007/08: £1,000,000).
The above directors and staff costs include £9,973,000 pension contributions (2007/08: £9,364,000).

The breakdown of other operating expenses is as follows:

Training costs
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Fees
Security services
Hospitality and Publishing
Insurance Costs
Provisions arising in the period *
Provisions reversed unused in the period *
Other

* Note 17 provides further details
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2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

528
378
291
255
162
306
(53)
177
2,044

553
245
271
273
179
300
(30)
549
2,340

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2009

5.2 Operating leases
5.2/1 Operating expenses include:

Hire of plant and machinery
Other operating lease rentals

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

65
153

66
104

218

170

5.2/2 Annual commitments under non - cancellable operating leases are:
Land and
buildings

Land and
buildings

Other

Other

2008/09
£000

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

2007/08
£000

10
20
0

48
72
0

0
0
0

86
100
0

30

120

0

186

Operating leases which expire:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
After 5 years
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5.3

Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers
A) Remuneration

Director Salary

2008-2009
Remuneration for
Clinical duties

(bands of £5000)
£000

(bands of £5000)
£000

Name and Title

Benefits in kind

Director Salary

2007-2008
Remuneration for
Clinical duties

(bands of £5000)
£000

(bands of £5000)
£000

£00

Benefits in kind

£00

Executive Directors
Mr. E. Morton Chief Executive

170-175

0

7

155-160

0

5

Mr. P. Briddock Director of Finance & Contracting

135-140

0

10

130-135

0

9

Mr. T. Alty Corporate Secretary

110-115

0

0

105-110

0

0

Mr. R. Clarke Director of Nursing (retired 31 December 2008)

140-145

0

1

105-110

0

2

0-5

0-5

0

35-40

145-150

1

35-40

150-155

1

0

0

0

Mr. W. Lambert Medical Director (retired 7 April 2008)
Mr. J. McDonnell Medical Director (from 1 April 2008)
Non - Executive Directors
Mr. R. Greggory Chairman
Mr. M. Hall Non-Executive Director
Mrs. P Liversidge
Non-Executive Director
Mr. D Whitney
Non-Executive Director
Miss. D. Fern
Non-Executive Director
Mrs. J. Birkin
Non-Executive Director

45-50

0

0

40-45

0

1

15-20

0

0

15-20

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

All the Benefits in Kind shown relate to taxable expense allowances, & are shown in £hundred

B) Pensions

Name and title

Real increase in
pension sum at
age 60

(bands of £2500)
£000
Mr. E. Morton - +
Chief Executive
Mr. P. Briddock Director of Finance & Contracting
Mr. T. Alty Corporate Secretary
Mr R. Clarke - *
Director of Nursing & Clinical Development (retired 31 December 2008
Mr. W. Lambert - *
Medical Director (retired 7 April 2008)
Mr. J. McDonnell Medical Director (from 1 April 2008)

Real increase in
Total accrued
Lump sum at age Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent
lump sum at age pension at age 60 at 60 related to
Transfer Value Transfer Value at
60
31 March 2009
accrued pension
at 31 March
31 March 2008
at 31 March
2009
2009
(bands of £2500) (bands of £2500) (bands of £2500)
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000

Real Increase in
Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value

£000

7.5-10

25-27.5

85-87.5

260-262.5

2,070

1,238

0-2.5

5-7.5

20-22.5

65-67.5

316

223

561
61

0-2.5

5-7.5

35-37.5

110-112.5

715

513

132

0-2.5

65-67.5

50-52.5

217.5-220

n/a

775

n/a

(17.5)-(15.0)

170-172.5

57.5-60

395-397.5

n/a

n/a

n/a

12.5-15

42.5-45

75-77.5

227.5-230

1,907

1,112

537

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits
and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the
pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement
which the individual has transferred to the NHS Pension Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at
their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another pension sheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
* the pension and lump sum figures disclosed for both Mr. R. Clarke and Mr. W. Lambert reflect their decision to commute part of their pension to a lump sum.
+ Mr Morton was appointed interim Chief Executive at Mid Staffordshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on 5th March 2009. He still remains Chief Executive of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust whilst carrying out this additional role.
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6. Staff costs and numbers
6.1 Staff costs
2008/09
Total
£000

2007/08
Total
£000

81,827
5,666
9,973
299
5,505

76,621
5,361
9,364
0
4,474

103,270

95,820

2008/09
Total
WTE

2007/08
Total
WTE

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants & other support staff
Nursing, midwifery & health visiting staff
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Bank & Agency
Other

308
490
23
1,153
412
18
148
290

298
532
18
1,137
403
18
84
276

Total

2,842

2,766

Salaries and wages
Social Security Costs
Employer contributions to NHSPA
Other pension costs
Agency/contract staff

6.2 Average number of persons employed

WTE = Whole Time Equivalents

6.3 Employee benefits
There are no schemes which provide an employee benefit. No facilities, amenities/events were provided/held in the periods of account.

6.4 Retirements due to ill-health
During the period 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2009 there were 4 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health.
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £110,000.
There were 6 ill-health retirements in the period 1st April 2007 to 31st March 2008, with estimated liabilities of £559,000.
The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Pensions Agency.
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7. Public Sector Payment Policy
7.1

Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
2008/09

2007/08

Number

£000

Number

£000

Total
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

66,360
63,902
96.3%

65,850
63,234
96.0%

61,802
60,232
97.5%

58,974
57,232
97.0%

Non NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

63,652
61,253
96.2%

52,123
49,671
95.3%

59,471
57,949
97.4%

46,434
45,093
97.1%

NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

2,708
2,649
97.8%

13,727
13,563
98.8%

2,331
2,283
97.9%

12,540
12,139
96.8%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid NHS and non NHS creditors by the due date
or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

7.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
No payments were made in respect of the Late Payment of Commercial Debt (Interest) Act 1998 in either period of account.

8. Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets
There was a £1,000 profit on disposal of fixed assets in the 2008/09 period of account (2007/08: £4,000).

9. Finance Income, Finance Costs and Other Net Gains / (Losses) on Financial Instruments
9.1 Finance income
Finance income was received, in the form of interest receivables of £1,037,000 in 2008/09 (2007/08:£1,420,000)
9.2 Finance costs
The trust had £3,000 interest payable or other finance costs in 2008/09 (2007/08 : £nil)
9.3 Other net gains / (losses) on financial instruments
There were no net gains / losses on financial instruments in either year of account
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10.1 Intangible Fixed Assets
Software
Licences

Total
31 March 2009

Total
31 March 2008

£000
839
0
151
0
137
0
0
1,127

£000
839
0
151
0
137
0
0
1,127

£000
623
0
129
0
87
0
0
839

Amortisation at 1 April 2008
Provided during the period
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Other revaluation
Disposals
Amortisation at 31 March 2009

553
121
0
0
0
0
0
674

553
121
0
0
0
0
0
674

468
85
0
0
0
0
0
553

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2008
- Donated at April 2008
- Total at 1 April 2008

284
2
286

284
2
286

- Purchased at 31 March 2009
- Donated at 31 March 2009
- Total at 31 March 2009

452
1
453

452
1
453

Software
Licences

Total
31 March 2009

Total
31 March 2008

£000

£000

£000

0
453
453

0
453
453

0
286
286

Gross cost at 1 April 2008
Impairments
Reclassifications
Other revaluation
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Disposals
Gross cost at 31 March 2009

10.2 Analysis of intangible fixed assets
Net book value
- Protected Assets as at 31 March 2009
- Unprotected Assets as at 31 March 2009
- Total at 31 March 2009
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11. Tangible Fixed Assets
11.1 Tangible fixed assets at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

£000

£000

Furniture &
fittings

£000

Total

Total

31 March 2009

31 March
2008

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2008
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Other Revaluations
Disposals
At 31 March 2009

19,405
0
0
(105)
0
0
0
19,300

56,799
7,947
18
(3,968)
4,758
0
0
65,554

5,650
9
0
0
0
0
0
5,659

5,620
1,450
0
0
(5,561)
0
0
1,509

19,948
653
563
0
548
0
(2,192)
19,520

16
0
0
0
0
0
0
16

5,252
469
15
0
104
0
(446)
5,394

117
524
19
0
0
0
0
660

112,807
11,052
615
(4,073)
(151)
0
(2,638)
117,612

£000

102,637
10,221
157
0
(129)
802
(881)
112,807

£000

Depreciation at 1 April 2008
Provided during the period
Impairments
Reversal of Impairments
Reclassifications
Other Revaluations
Disposals
Depreciation at 31 March 2009

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
3,712
0
0
0
0
0
3,713

0
121
0
0
0
0
0
121

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

12,152
1,901
0
0
0
0
(2,192)
11,861

16
0
0
0
0
0
0
16

3,787
474
0
0
0
0
(446)
3,815

41
38
0
0
0
0
0
79

15,997
6,246
0
0
0
0
(2,638)
19,605

17,381
4,358
64
(131)
0
(4,942)
(733)
15,997

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2008
- Donated at 1 April 2008
Total at 1 April 2008

19,405
0
19,405

55,858
940
56,798

5,650
0
5,650

5,620
0
5,620

6,869
927
7,796

0
0
0

1,453
12
1,465

76
0
76

94,931
1,879
96,810

- Purchased at 31 March 2009
- Donated at 31 March 2009
Total at 31 March 2009

19,300
0
19,300

60,942
899
61,841

5,538
0
5,538

1,509
0
1,509

6,383
1,276
7,659

0
0
0

1,661
(82)
1,579

562
19
581

95,895
2,112
98,007

There were no residual interests in off balance sheet PFI schemes during the period of account.
Included within Land is £1,640,000 and within Buildings excluding dwellings £199,000 relating to unprotected assets that are anticipated to be sold by the Trust. Further details are available in note 1.5

11.2 Analysis of tangible fixed assets
Land

Net book value
- Protected Assets as at 31 March 2009
- Unprotected Assets as at 31 March 2009
- Total at 31 March 2009

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

Total

31 March 2009

31 March
2008

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

15,404
3,896
19,300

57,230
4,611
61,841

0
5,538
5,538

0
1,509
1,509

0
7,659
7,659

0
0
0

0
1,579
1,579

0
581
581

72,634
25,373
98,007

65,832
30,978
96,810

11.3 Assets held at open market value
Of the totals at 31 March 2009, £1,455,000 (2008: £1,410,000) related to land valued at open market value and £5,734,000 (2008: £5,765,000) related to buildings and dwellings valued at open market
value.
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11.4 Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust held no assets under finance leases or hire purchase contracts.

11.5 The net book value of land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 2009 comprises:
31 March 2009
Protected
£000

31 March 2009
Unprotected
£000

31 March 2008
Protected
£000

31 March 2008
Unprotected
£000

Freehold

72,634

14,045

65,832

16,021

TOTAL

72,634

14,045

65,832

16,021

11.6 Analysis of impairments of fixed assets
During the year there were £4,073,000 of fixed asset impairments arsing from changes in market price. (2008: £64,000 from loss or damage from normal operations)

12. Fixed asset investments
There are no fixed asset investments at 31 March 2009 or 31 March 2008.

13. Stocks

Raw materials and consumables

31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

1,012

953

31 March 2009
£000

Financial
assets
£000

14.1 Debtors
Non-financial
assets
£000

31 March 2008
£000

Financial assets
£000

Non- financial
assets
£000

Amounts falling due within one year:
NHS debtors
Provision for impaired debtors
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors
Sub Total

1,352
(192)
754
158
1,229
3,301

1,352
(192)
0
158
1,038
2,356

0
0
754
0
191
945

2,078
(117)
822
200
1,227
4,210

2,078
(117)
0
200
873
3,034

0
0
822
0
354
1,176

Provision for impaired debtors
Other debtors
Sub Total

(79)
1,016
937

(79)
1,016
937

0
0
0

(43)
552
509

(43)
552
509

0
0
0

TOTAL

4,238

3,293

945

4,719

3,543

1,176

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

There were no prepaid pension contributions as at 31 March 2009 or 31 March 2008.
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14.2 Provision for impairment of debtors
31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

160
199
(31)
(57)
271

132
138
(110)
0
160

Ageing of impaired debtors
Up to 3 months
In three to six months
Over six months
Total

155
30
86
271

65
15
80
160

Ageing of non-impaired debtors past their due date
Up to 3 months
In three to six months
Over six months
Total

257
112
186
555

408
44
122
574

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amount utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March
14.3 Analysis of impaired debtors

15 Current Asset Investments

Cost at 1 April
Additions
Disposals
Cost at 31 March 2009

Fixed term bank
accounts
£000

Total
31 March 2009
£000

Total
31 March 2008
£000

1
102,446
(102,444)
3

1
102,446
(102,444)
3

40
86,419
(86,458)
1

The current asset investments relate to monies held during the period with Bank of Scotland and Yorkshire Bank in 7 day deposit and short term money market deposits held with Lloyds
TSB, Anglo Irish and Bank of Ireland.

16. Creditors
16.1 Creditors at the balance sheet date are made up of:

Amounts falling due within one year:
NHS creditors
Tax and social security costs
Capital Creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
Sub Total

31 March 2009
£000

Financial
liabilities
£000

Non-financial
liabilities
£000

31 March 2008
£000

Financial
liabilities
£000

Non- financial
liabilities
£000

3,448
2,014
832
947
3,245
1,822
12,308

2,144
0
832
947
3,245
0
7,168

1,304
2,014
0
0
0
1,822
5,140

2,521
68
1,144
1,359
4,659
1,534
11,285

2,477
0
1,144
1,359
1,233
0
6,213

44
68
0
0
3,426
1,534
5,072

307
307

0
0

307
307

519
519

0
0

519
519

12,615

7,168

5,447

11,804

6,213

5,591

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Other creditors
Sub Total
TOTAL

There are no payments due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 years.
There was £1,274,000 outstanding pensions contributions at 31 March 2009 included in NHS creditors (2008: £nil).
The creditor falling due after more than one year relates to government grant deferred income to be released in line with depreciation on the assets to which the grants relate.
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16.2 Loans and other long-term financial liabilities
The Trust had no loans or other long-term liabilities in either of the periods of account.

16.3 Prudential borrowing limit.
The NHS Foundation Trust is required to comply with, and remain within, a prudential borrowing limit. This is made up of two elements.
- the maximum cumulative amount of long term borrowing. This is set by reference to the five ratios set out in Monitor's Prudential
Borrowing Code. The financial risk rating set under Monitor's Compliance Framework determines one of the ratios and therefore
can impact on the long term borrowing limit.
- the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.
Further information on the NHS Foundation Trusts Prudential Borrowing Code & Compliance Framework can be found on the
website of Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.
The Trust had a prudential borrowing limit of £34.4 million in 2008/09 (£32.4m 2007/08) . No borrowing has been undertaken during
the year.
The Trust has a £11 million (£11 million to 31 March 2008) approved working capital facility. This is in place but has not been used
during the periods of account.
The financial ratios for 2008/09 (2007/08) as published in the Prudential Borrowing Code are shown below with the actual level of
achievement for the period.
As the NHS Foundation Trust did not require any loans, only the minimum dividend cover ratio is applicable.
Financial Ratio

Actual Ratio
2008-2009

Minimum Dividend Cover

6.34

Minimum Interest Cover

Approved PBL ratio
2008-2009

Actual Ratio
2007-2008

Approved PBL ratio
2007-2008

>1

6.02

>1

>3

-

>3

Minimum Debt Service Cover

-

>2

-

>2

Maximum Debt to Capital ratio

-

40%

-

40%

Maximum Debt Service to Revenue

-

<3%

-

<3%

16.4 Finance lease obligations/commitments
The NHS Foundation Trust has not entered into any contracts to lease any assets under a finance lease in the periods of account, and
there are no future obligations in either period.
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17. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Pensions Legal claims **
relating to
former staff *

At 1 April 2008
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the period
Utilised during the period
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2009

Permanent
injury benefits

Other ***

Total

Total

31 March
2008
£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

31 March
2009
£000

1,015
0
92
(74)
0
23
1,056

236
0
166
(167)
(53)
0
182

527
0
140
(35)
0
14
646

85
0
0
0
0
0
85

1,863
0
398
(276)
(53)
37
1,969

1,787
0
300
(227)
(30)
33
1,863

75
283
698
1,056

182
0
0
182

34
133
479
646

85
0
0
85

376
416
1,177
1,969

417
387
1,059
1,863

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

* Arising for revised pensions provision is charged to staff costs as part of other pension costs.
** Legal claims relate to employment tribunal claims and public and employee liability claims through the NHS Litigation Authority risk
pooling scheme up to the Trusts excess limits. Amounts and probability of settlement are assessed in accordance with recommendations
given by the NHS Litigation Authority and external solicitors where available
*** Other claims relate to a claim by HM Revenue and Customs for back Tax and National Insurance on Student nurses pay
As at 31 March 2009 £21,911,000 (2008: £18,817,000) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical
negligence and liabilities of the Trust.
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18.1 Movement in taxpayers' equity
31 March
2009
£000

31 March
2008
£000

104,693

91,200

10,397
(2,644)
(3,074)

10,324
(2,452)
(21)

0
728
235
0
110,335

5,744
105
(207)
0
104,693

31 March
2009
£000

31 March
2008
£000

48,349
728
49,077

48,244
105
48,349

Taxpayers' equity at start of period
Surplus for the financial year
PDC dividends
Fixed asset impairment
Surplus from revaluation of fixed assets and current asset
investments
New public dividend capital received
Additions/(reductions) in donated asset reserve
Other movements in reserves
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2009

18.2 Movements in public dividend capital:

Public dividend capital at start of period
New public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital at 31 March 2009
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18.3

Movements on Reserves

Movements on reserves in the year comprised the following:
Revaluation
reserve

Donated
Asset reserve
£000

Income and
Expenditure
reserve
£000

£000

31 March 2009
£000

36,550

1,881

17,913

56,344

0

0

7,753

7,753

(3,074)

0

0

(3,074)

(220)

(5)

225

0

Receipt of donated assets

0

615

0

615

Transfers to the income and expenditure account for depreciation, impairment,
and disposal of donated assets

0

(380)

0

(380)

33,256

2,111

25,891

61,258

At 1 April 2008 as previously stated
Transfer from the income and expenditure account
Fixed asset impairments
Transfer of realised profits (losses) to the income and expenditure reserve *

At 31 March 2009

The transfer of realised losses from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve consists of :
* £225,000 elimination of reserve balances on disposal of fixed assets.
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19.

Notes to the cash flow statement

19.1 Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash flow from operating activities:
2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

9,399
6,367
999
0
(380)
(58)
481
1,122
69

8,933
4,443
43
(131)
(364)
(151)
420
(3,406)
44

17,999

9,831

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

Increase in cash in the period
Cash inflow from increase in liquid resources
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows
Non - cash changes in debt
Net funds at 1 April 2008

5,615
2
5,617
0
15,592

(412)
(39)
(451)
0
16,043

Net funds at 31 March 2009

21,209

15,592

Total operating surplus
Depreciation and amortisation charges
Fixed asset impairments
Fixed asset reversal of impairments
Transfer from donated asset reserve
Increase in stocks
Decrease in debtors
Increase(decrease) in creditors
Increase in provisions
Net cash inflow from operating activities

19.2 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
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19.3 Analysis of changes in net funds
Non-cash changes
in year
£000

At 31 March 2009

£000

Cash changes in
year
£000

49
15,542
1

670
4,945
2

0
0
0

719
20,487
3

15,592

5,617

0

21,209

At 1 April 2008

Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash at OPG (Office of Paymaster General)
Current asset investments
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20. Contractual Capital Commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at the balance sheet date were £2,238,000 (2008: £4,415,000)
The breakdown by project is:
Central Delivery Suite refurbishment
Professional fees relating to the construction of new wards
Children's new build development
Medical records facility
Ward upgrades
Suite 5
Histology laboratory
CT scanner relocation
Water circulation
Medical equipment and IT

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

1,556
616
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
66

0
0
2,816
513
469
216
149
114
31
107

2,238

4,415

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

0
0
0

(200)
0
(200)

21. Post Balance Sheet Events
There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts in 2008/09.

22. Contingent liabilities

Gross Value
Amounts recoverable (if any)
Net contingent liability
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23. Related Party Transactions
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a public benefit corporation authorised by Monitor - the
Independent Regulator for NHS Foundation Trusts. All NHS Foundation Trusts are independent bodies which are not
controlled by the Secretary of State. The Trust has considered whether or not the working relationships it has with any
NHS bodies and Government departments and agencies meet the definition of a related party under FRS 8, and has
concluded that the main NHS entities with which the trust has dealings require disclosure. These entities are:
*Derbyshire County PCT
NHS Litigation Authority
National Blood and Transplant
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
*East Midlands SHA
NHS Supply Chain
*Of the above the only NHS organisations with which the Trust considers material transactions have taken place
are Derbyshire County PCT and East Midlands SHA. Details of the transactions are:
Income

Derbyshire County PCT
East Midlands SHA

Expenditure
£000

Debtor

£000

£000

Creditor
£000

142,611
5,835

756
0

220
6

574
0

The Trust has received revenue and capital contributions from Chesterfield Royal Hospital charitable funds
(Charity Reg NO. 1052913). Details of the transactions are shown below:

Contributions from charitable funds to cover expenditure
Capital contributions from charitable funds

2008/09
£000

2007/08
£000

38
616

29
157

654

186

As at 31 March 2009, the Trust was owed £1,830 by the charity (2008: £2,733).
The Trustees of the charitable organisation are also members of the NHS Foundation Trust Board.
During the year none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any
material transactions with Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
The following declarations were made by Board Members in relation to positions held by them or their partners in organisations
which engage in business with the Trust :
Eric Morton declared that he was Vice Chairman of Chesterfield College until January 2009. He was also appointed Interim Chief
Executive at Mid Staffordshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on 5th March 2009. He still remains Chief Executive of
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust whilst carrying out this additional role.
Richard Gregory declared that he is currently a Non-Executive Director of National Australia Group Europe Limited who trade as
Yorkshire Bank.
Michael Hall declared that his wife was engaged by The Derbyshire Mental Health Trust as a Non-Executive Director until 30
September 2008.
In the case of the two declarations relating to Chesterfield College and The Yorkshire Bank and Clydesdale Bank plc, Chesterfield
Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust do undertake material transactions with the organisations concerned. Transactions however,
are strictly on commercial terms and neither party can influence or are party to the arrangements.
The balance with Yorkshire Bank at 31 March 2009 was £4,424.
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24. Private Finance Transactions & Pooled Budgets
24.1 Private Finance Transactions
The Trust had no PFI transactions either on or off balance sheet.
24.2 Pooled Budget Projects
The Trust had no pooled budget projects requiring memorandum trading accounts.

25 Financial Instruments
FRS 29, Disclosure of Financial Instruments, applies to all financial instruments within the scope of FRS 25. Due to the continuing
service/provider relationship that the Trust has with the local PCT and the way those PCTs are financed, the Trust is not exposed to
the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or
changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to which FRS 25 & FRS 29 are mainly aimed at. Financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risk facing the Trust in undertaking its
activities.

Liquidity risk
The NHS Foundation Trust's net operating costs are incurred under three year service agreement contracts with local PCTs, which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust also largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made
available through internally generated resources. In addition the Trust can borrow from the Department of Health financing facility
and commercially to finance capital schemes. Financing is drawn down to match the spend profile of the scheme concerned and the
Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks in the area.
Interest-Rate Risk
Trust's financial assets are either invested at fixed rates of interest or carry a relatively stable interest rate. Chesterfield Royal
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest rate risk.
Credit Risk
There is not considered to be any risks that the financial instruments disclosed will cause financial loss for another party
Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust has negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.
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25.1 Financial Assets by Category

£000

Loans and
Receivables
£000

Fixed asset investments
NHS debtors
Provision for impairment of debtors
Accrued income
Other debtors
Current asset investments
Cash at bank and in hand

0
1,352
(271)
158
2,054
3
21,206

0
1,352
(271)
158
2,054
3
21,206

Total at 31 March 2009

24,502

24,502

Fixed asset investments
NHS debtors
Provision of irrecoverable debts
Accrued income
Other debtors
Current asset investments
Cash at bank and in hand

0
2,078
(160)
200
1,425
1
15,591

0
2,078
(160)
200
1,425
1
15,591

Total at 31 March 2008

19,135

19,135

Total
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25.2 Financial Liabilities by Category
Total
£000

Other
Financial
Liabilities
£000

NHS creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Capital creditors

2,144
947
3,245
832

2,144
947
3,245
832

Total at 31 March 2009

7,168

7,168

NHS creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Capital creditors

2,477
1,359
1,233
1,144

2,477
1,359
1,233
1,144

Total at 31 March 2008

6,213

6,213

25.3 Fair Values
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values. FRS 26 states that amortised cost is analogous to fair
value.

26 Third Party Assets
The Trust held £1,296 in cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2009 which relates to monies held on behalf of patients.
This has been excluded from cash at bank and in hand figure reported in the accounts. As at 31 March 2008, the
corresponding amount was £21,862.

27 Losses and Special Payments
There were 145 cases of losses and special payments totalling £117,482 approved during the year 1st April 2008 to 31st March
2009. There were 131 cases totalling £128,665 during the year 1st April 2007 to 31st March 2008.
In line with Monitor's guidance these represent the cash payments made for the years concerned and are not calculated on an
accruals basis.
There were no clinical negligence, fraud, personal injury, compensation under legal obligation or fruitless payment cases where the
net payment exceeded £100,000.

28 Prior period adjustment
There are no prior period adjustments reported in the accounts for the years ended 31 March 2009 or 31 March 2008.
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